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Survey of key data

Raiffeisen International Group

Monetary values in € million 2008 Change 2007 2006’ 2005 2004
Income statement

Net interest income after provisioning 2,452 18.9% 2,062 1,455 1,035 666
Net fee and commission income 1,496 19.7% 1,250 933 607 441
Net trading income 168 31.1% 128 175 101 78
General administrative expenses (2,633) 20.6% (2,184) (1,694) (1,163) (823)
Profit before tax 1,429 15.5% 1,238 891 569 341
Profit after tax 1,078 10.8% 973 686 460 270
Consolidated profit (after minorities) 982 16.7% 841 594 382 209
Balance sheet

Loans and advances to banks 9,038 (18.2)% 11,053 8,202 5,794 4,779
Loans and advances to customers 57902 18.5% 48,880 35,043 24,714 16,242
Deposits from banks 26,213 31.5% 19927 13,814 10,236 6,620
Deposits from customers 44,206 9.3% 40,457 33,156 24,890 18,169
Equity (including minorities and profit) 6,518 (1.6)% 6,622 4,590 3,277 2,177
Balance sheet total 85,397 17.4% 72,743 55,867 40,695 28,907
Key ratios

Return on equity before tax 22.0%  (3.7)PP 25.7% 27.3% 21.8% 22.2%
Return on equity affer tax 16.6%  (3.6) PP 20.2% 21.0% 17.6% 17.6%
Consolidated return on equity (after minorities) 17.4%  (2.7) PP 20.1% 21.4% 17.2% 17.0%
Cost/income ratio 54.0%  (3.6) PP 57.6% 59.1% 61.6% 63.5%
Return on assets before tax 1.77% (0.21) PP 1.98% 1.90% 1.68% 1.40%
Net provisioning ratio (avg. risk-weighted assets) 1.32%  0.48 PP 0.84% 0.97% 0.81% 0.98%
Risk/earnings ratio 24.1% 9.3 PP 14.8% 17.5% 13.9% 171%
Bank-specific information?

Risk-weighted assets (credit risk) 60,388 21.3% 49,802 38,002 26,582 16,690
Total own funds 6,992 4.6% 6,684 4,513 2,938 2,359
Total own funds requirement 5,767 33.6% 4,317 3,284 2,393 1,571
Excess cover 21.2% (33.6) PP 54.8% 37.4% 22.8% 50.2%
Core capital ratio (Tier 1), credit risk 9.7% (1.7) PP 11.4% 9.8% 9.0% 11.8%
Core capital ratio (Tier 1), total 8.1%  (2.4) PP 10.5% 9.0% 8.0% 10.1%
Own funds ratio 97%  (2.7) PP 12.4% 11.0% 9.8% 12.0%
Stock data

Earnings per share in € 6.39 10.2% 5.80 417 2.79 1.93
Price on 31.12. in € 19.30 (81.4)% 103.60 115.51 55.55

High (closing prices) in € 110.20  (10.0)% 122.50 115.51 59.40°

Low (closing prices) in € 16.23  (83.5)% 98.25 55.20 39.25°

Number of shares on 31.12. in million 154.67 - 154.67 142.77 142.77

Market capitalization on 31.12. in € million 2,985 (81.4)% 16,024 16,492 7931

Dividend per share in € 0.93* - 0.93 0.71 0.45 0.31
Resources

Number of employees on 31.12. 63,376 8.6% 58365 52,732 43,614 22,851
Number of business outlets 3,231 7.2% 3,015 2,848 2,443 916

! Excluding one-off effects due to the sale of Raiffeisenbank Ukraine and the stake in Bank TuranAlem.
2 Calculated according to the Austrian Banking Act (Bankwesengesetz, BWG). Raiffeisen International as part of the RZB-Group is not subject to the Austrian Banking Act.

325 April 2005 (IPO) until 31 December 2005.
“ Proposed at the Annual General Meeting.
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An

exceptiona
year!

2008 was an exceptional year: The financial
crisis unfolded and expanded into an economic
crisis with global implications. No financial
institution anywhere in the world was left
unscathed. Our company has not been entirely
spared either. The causes and effects of the
crisis, which has also swept over Central and
Eastern Europe, have been the subject of much
debate, reporting, analysis, and speculations,
rose-tinted reports and dire forecasts. This is
why we have deliberately avoided being

too wordy in this annual report. We decided

to let the hard facts and numbers speak for
themselves. In times like these, the reality is
often less horrifying than what is left to the
imagination. Judge for yourself.

Below you will also find brief profiles of the
countries in Central and Eastern Europe where
Raiffeisen International is currently active.

The data has been derived from the Fischer
World Almanac 2009.
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Poland

Official name

Republic of Poland/
Rzeczpospolita Polska

Surface area 312,685 km?
(World ranking: 68)
Inhabitants 38.1 million
(World ranking: 32)
Capital Warsaw/Warszawa
(1.7 million
inhabitants)
Other large tédz, Krakdw,
cities Wroctaw, Poznan,
Gdansk
Official language Polish
Currency Ztoty
Population
Inhabitants per km? 122
Average growth (0.1)%
Poles 98.7%
Other 1.3%
Religion
Catholics 96%
Other 4%
Economy
Gross national product
in US$ billion 338.7
Gross national income
per capita us$ 8,210

Poznan

Wroctaw

Warsz
L]

todz

awa

GDP by sector

Agriculture 4.5%
Industry 31.5%
Services 63.9%
Employment

Agriculture 18%
Industry 29%
Services 53%
Foreign trade

Total amount of imports

in € billion 118.8
Import goods (Top 5)

Machinery and transport equipment 38%
Chemicals and related products 16%
Metallurgic products 13%
Minerdls, fuels, and lubricants 1%
Food and live animals 7%
Top 5 countries of import

Germany 24%
Russia 9%
PR China 7%
Italy 7%
France 5%
Total amount of exports

in € billion 101.1
Export goods (Top 5)

Machinery and transport equipment 42%
Metallurgic products 13%
Chemicals and related products 12%
Food and live animals 10%
Minerdls, fuels, and lubricants 4%
Top 5 countries of export

Germany 26%
Italy 7%
France 6%
United Kingdom 6%
Czech Republic 6%

Raiffeisen International in Poland

Balance sheet total in € million
Branches

Employees

7,108
123
3,271



Czech Republic

Official name
Surface area
Inhabitants

Capital

Other large
cities

Czech Republic/
Ceské republika
78,866 km?

(World ranking: 112)
10.3 million

(World ranking: 78)
Prague/Praha

(1.2 million
inhabitants)

Brno, Ostrava, Plzen,
Olomouc, Liberec

Official language Czech

Currency

Population

Czech crown

Inhabitants per km? 130
Average growth 0.4%
Czechs 90.3%
Moravians 3.7%
Slovaks 1.9%
Other 4.1%
Religion

Non-denominational 59%
Catholics 27%
Other 14%
Economy

Gross domestic product

in US$ billion 143.0
Gross national income

per capita us$ 12,790
GDP by sector

Agriculture 2.7%
Industry 39%
Services 58.3%
Employment

Agriculture 4%
Industry 40%
Services 56%

Foreign trade

Total amount of imports

in € billion 85.8
Import goods (Top 5)

Electronics 14%
Machinery 12%

Chemicals and chemical products 9%

Fuels and lubricants 9%
Motor vehicles and parts 9%
Top 5 countries of import
Germany 28%
PR China 8%
Poland 6%
Slovakia 5%
Italy 5%
Total amount of exports
in € billion 88.9
Export goods (Top 5)
Motor vehicles and parts 17%
Machinery 14%
Electronics 14%
Electro-technology 9%
Chemicals and chemical products 6%
Top 5 countries of export
Germany 31%
Slovakia 9%
Poland 6%
France 5%
Austria 5%
Raiffeisen International
in the Czech Republic
Balance sheet total in € million 7198
Branches 107
Employees 2,654

L]
Plzen

L]
Liberec

L]
Olomouc

Page 9
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Ostrava
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Slovakia

Official name Republic of Slovakia/  GDP by sector
Slovenské republika Agriculture 3.6%
Surface area 49,034 km? Industry 31.6%
(World ranking: 126) Services 64.8%
Inhabitants 5.4 million
(World ranking: 109) Employment
Capital Bratislava Agriculture 4.7%
(426,091 inhabitants) Industry 309
Other large Kosice, Presov, Nitra, Services 56%
cities Zilina, Banskd Bystrica
Official language Slovakian Foreign trade
Currency Eur.o (Slovakian crown T2 o T imports
until 31 Dec. 2008) in Sk billion 1,442
Population Import goods (Top 5)
Inhabitants per km? 110 Machinery and transport equipment 44%
Average growth 0.1%  Mineral oils, lubricants 11%
Slovaks 85.8%  Chemical products 9%
Hungarians 9.7%  Food, beverages, tobacco 5%
Roma 1.7%  Iron and steel 5%
Other 2.8%
Top 5 countries of import
Religion Germany 20%
Roman Catholic 69%  Czech Republic 12%
Protestant 8%  Russia 9%
Greek Catholic 4% PR China 5%
Other 19%  Hungary 5%
Economy Total amount of exports
Gross domestic product in Sk billion 1,421
in US$ billion 3.0 Export goods (Top 4)
Gross nfuﬁonal income Machinery and transport equipment 54%
per capita us$ 9,610
Iron and steel 8%
Chemical products 5%
Metal goods 4%
Top 5 countries of export
Germany 22%
Czech Republic 12%
e France 7%
Zilina . Austria 6%
Presov Hungary 6%
Banské Bystrica Koites Raiffeisen International
in Slovakia
Balance sheet total in € million 10,973
Branches 162
Employees 3,885
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Hungary

Official name Republic of Hungary/  Energy sources 10%
Magyar Kéztarsasdg Food, beverages, tobacco 4%
Surface area 93,030 km? Raw materials 29%
(World ranking: 107)
Inhabitants 10.1 million Top 5 countries of import
(World ranking: 80) Germany 27%
Capital Budapest Russia 7%
(1.7 million Austria 6%
inhabitants) - .
Other large Debrecen, Miskolc, PR China 6%
cities Szeged, Pécs, Gydr ltaly 6%
Official language Hungarian Total amount of exports
Currency Forint in € billion 68.5
Population Export goods (Top 5)
Inhabitants per km? 108  Machinery and transport equipment 62%
Average growth (0.2)%  Processed goods 27%
Hungarians 96.6%  Food, beverages, tobacco 6%
Other 3.4%  Energy sources 3%
o Raw materials 2%
Religion
Catholics 61%  Top 5 countries of export
Protestants 16%  Germany 28%
Non-denominational 15%  Italy 6%
Other 8%  Austria 5%
Slovakia 5%
Economy Romania 5%
Gross domestic product
in US$ billion 1129 Raiffeisen International in Hungary
Gross national income Balance sheet total in € million 9568
per capita us$ 10,870 Branches 164
GDP by sector Employees 3,960
Agriculture 4%
Industry 30%
Services 66%

Employment

Agriculture 5%
Industry 32% Miskolc
Services 63%

Foreign trade

Total amount of imports
in € billion 68.8

Import goods (Top 5)

Machinery and transport equipment 52%

Processed goods 32%
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Slovenia

Official name

Republic of Slovenia/

Republika Slovenija

Surface area

20,253 km?

(World ranking: 150)

Inhabitants

2.0 million

(World ranking: 142)

Capital

Lijubljana

(246,753 inhabitants)

Other large
cities

Maribor, Celie, Kranj,
Velenije, Koper

Official language Slovenian

Currency Euro

Population

Inhabitants per km? 99
Average growth 0.3%
Slovenians 83.1%
Serbs 2.0%
Croats 1.8%
Other 13.1%
Religion

Catholics 58%
None 7%
Orthodox Christians 4%
Other 31%
Economy

Gross domestic product

in US$ billion 373
Gross national income

per capita US$ 18,660

L[]
Velenje

L]
Celje

Ljubljana

L]
Maribor

GDP by sector

Agriculture 2.3%
Industry 34.6%
Services 63.1%
Employment

Agriculture 8.8%
Industry 37%
Services 53%
Foreign trade

Total amount of imports

in € billion 21.5
Import goods (Top 5)

Machinery and transport equipment 34%
Chemical products 12%
Semi-finished products 10%
Petroleum and products 6%
Iron and steel 6%
Top 5 countries of import

Germany 19%
Italy 18%
Austria 13%
France 5%
Croatia 4%
Total amount of exports

in € billion 19.4
Export goods (Top 4)

Machinery and transport equipment 40%
Chemical products 14%
Semi-finished products 13%
Iron and steel 4%
Top 5 countries of export

Germany 19%
Italy 13%
Croatia 8%
Austria 8%
France 7%

Raiffeisen International in Slovenia

Balance sheet total in € million
Branches

Employees

1,509
16
344
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Croatia

Official name Republic of Croatia/ Food and live animals 7%
Republika Hrvatska Iron and steel 5%

Surface area 56,542 km?
(World ranking: 123) Top 5 countries of import

Inhabitants 4.4 million Italy 16%
(World ranking: 116) Germany 14%

Capital Zagreb Russia 10%
(779,145 inhabitants) PR China 6%

(?t.her large Split, Rijeka, Osijek, Slovenia 6%

cities Zadar, Karlovac

Official language Croatian Total amount of exports

Currency i in € billion 9.0

Export goods (Top 5)

Population

Inhabitant o 5 Machinery and vehicles 31%
nnapirants per km
A ° th 0.0% Preliminary products 15%
verage grow 0%
C rg : 80.62% Chemical products 9%
roats 6%
Serb 4.5% Petroleum and petroleum derivatives 9%
S . o
Oth 509, Food and live animals 8%
er 99
Reliai Top 5 countries of export
eligion
Ital 19%
Catholics 88% 9
Orthodox Christi 49 Bosnia and Herzegovina 14%
rthodox Christians b
Muslims 1% Germany 10%
Other 7 Slovenia 8%
e o
Austria 6%
Economy o ) . .
Gross domestic product Raiffeisen International in Croatia
in US$ billion P 429  Balance sheet total in € million 5,984
Gross national income Branches 79
per capita US$ 9,310  Employees 2,333
GDP by sector
Agriculture 7%
Industry 32%
Services 61%

Employment .
Agriculture 17% o Karlovac
Industry 29%
Services 54%

Foreign trade

Total amount of imports
in € billion 18.8

Import goods (Top 5)

Petroleum and petroleum derivatives 12%

Chemical products 1%
Road vehicles 9%
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Bosnia and Herzegovina

Bosnia and
Herzegovina/Bosna i
Hercegovina

Official name

Surface area 51,129 km?

(World ranking: 124)
Inhabitants 3.9 million

(World ranking: 124)
Capital Sarajevo

(304,075 inhabitants)
Other large Banja Luka, Tuzla,
cities Zenica, Mostar, Bihaé
Official Bosnian,
languages Croatian or Serbian
Currency Convertible marks
Population
Inhabitants per km? 77
Average growth 0.3%
Bosnians 48%
Serbs 37%
Croats 14%
Other 1%
Religion
Muslims 48%
Orthodox Christians 34%
Catholics 15%
Other 3%
Economy
Gross domestic product
in US$ billion 12.3
Gross national income
per capita us$ 3,230

L]
Banja Luka

L]
Zenica

Sarajevo

L]
Mostar

GDP by sector

Agriculture 10%
Industry 25%
Services 65%
Employment

Agriculture n/a
Industry n/a
Services n/a

Foreign trade

Total amount of imports
in € billion 5.8

Import goods (Top 4)

Machinery and devices 16%
Minerals, fuels, and lubricants 15%
Chemical products 9%
Transport equipment 7%

Top 5 countries of import

Croatia 17%
Germany 12%
Serbia (incl. Montenegro) 10%
Italy 9%
Slovenia 8%

Total amount of exports
in € billion 2.6

Export goods (Top 5)

Machinery and devices 13%
Aluminium and products 1%
Wood and wood products 9%
Minerals, fuels, and lubricants 8%
Chemical products 7%

Top 5 countries of export

Croatia 19%
ltaly 14%
Germany 13%
Serbia (incl. Montenegro) 13%
Slovenia 12%

Raiffeisen International
in Bosnia and Herzegovina

Balance sheet total in € million 2,395
Branches 100
Employees 1,776



Albania

Official name

Republic of Albania/

Top 5 countries of import

Page 15

Republika e Shqipérisé i)y 27%
Surface area 28,748 km? Greece 15%
(World ranking: 139) Turkey 7o
Inhabitants 3.2 million . Germany &%
(World ranking: 131)
Capital Tirana/Tirané Russia 4%
(343,078 Einwohner) Total amount of exports
Other large Durrés, Elbasan, in Lek billion 97
cities Shkodra, Vlora, Korca
Official language Albanian Export goods (Top 5)
Currency Lek Clothing, textiles, shoes 48%
Building material and metals 16%
Population Mineral fuel, petrol, electricity 15%
Inhabitants per km? 110 Food, beverages, tobacco 7%
Average growth 0.6%  Machinery and equipment 4%
Albanians 95% ‘
Other 5% Top 5 countries of export
Italy 68%
Religion Greece 8%
Muslims 70%  Germany 2%
Orthodox Christians 20%  Macedonia 2%
Catholics 10%  Turkey 2%
Economy Raiffeisen International in Albania
Gross domestic product Balance sheet total in € million 2,048
in US$ billion 9.1 Bicrdies 102
Gross national income Employees 1,427
per capita US$ 2,930
GDP by sector
Agriculture 23%
Industry 21%
Services 56%
Employment
Agriculture 58%
Industry 14%
Services 28%
Foreign trade
Total amount of imports
in Lek billion 377
Import goods (Top 5)
Machinery and equipment 21%
Mineral fuel, petrol, electricity 17%
Food, beverages, tobacco 17%
Building material and metals 16%
Chemical and plastic products 1%
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L ]
Peja/Peé

Kosovo

Official name

Republic of Kosovo/
Republika e Kosovés

Economy

Gross domestic product

(Albanian)/ in € billion 2.2
Republika Kosovo ; -
. Gross national income
(Serbian) .
per capita n/a
Surface area 10,887 km?
(World ranking: 161) GDP by sector
Inhabitants 2.1 million Agriculture n/a
(World ranking: 139) Industry n/a
Capital Pristina/Pristina Services n/a
(166,000 inhabitants)
Other large Prizren, Ferizaj, Employment
cities Mitrovica, Gjakova, Agriculture n/a
Peja
— Industry n/a
Official Albanian, Serbian Servi
languages ervices n/a
C E
S — Foreign trade
. Total amount of imports
Populat P
2p=oon in € million 1,180
Inhabitants per km? 195
Average growth n/a Import goods (Top 4)
Albanian 92%  Food 25%
Serbs 5%  Machinery 21%
Other 3% Mineral products 18%
Chemical products and wood 10%
Religion
Muslims n/a  Top 4 countries of import
Orthodox Christians n/a  EU and Switzerland 36%
Catholics n/a  Macedonia 19%
Serbia (incl. Montenegro) 14%
Turkey 7%
Total amount of exports
in € million 48.9
Export goods (Top 2)
Metal wastes 49%
Food 16%
(no other information available)
Top 4 countries of export
EU and Switzerland 37%
e Macedonia 20%
Mitrovica Serbia (incl. Montenegro) 14%
° Albania 1%

Prishtina/Pristina

L]
Prizren

L]
Ferizaj/Urosevac

Raiffeisen International in Kosovo

Balance sheet total in € million
Branches

Employees

598
47
720



Serbia

Official name Republic of Serbia/

Republika Srbija

Surface area 77,474 km?
(World ranking: 114)
Inhabitants 7.4 million
(World ranking: 95)
Capital Belgrade/Beograd
(1.3 million
inhabitants)
Other large Novi Sad, Nis,
cities Kragujevac, Subotica

Official language Serbian

Currency Serbian dinar

Population

Chemical products 14%

Semi-products 9%

Food, live animals, beverages, tobacco 5%

Top 5 countries of import

Russia 14%
Germany 12%
Italy 10%
PR China 7%
Slovenia 4%

Total amount of exports
in € billion 6.4

Export goods (Top 5)

Inhabitants per km? 96 Food, live animals, beverages, tobacco  17%
Average growth 0.0%  Semi-products 15%
Serbs 82.7%  Machinery and transport equipment 14%
Hungarians 3.9%  Chemical products 10%
Bosnians 1.8%  Raw materials 5%
Other 11.6%

Top 5 countries of export
Religion Italy 12%
Orthodox Christians (majority) n/a  Bosnia and Herzegovina 12%
Catholics n/a  Montenegro 11%
Muslims n/a  Germany 11%
Other n/a  Russia 5%
Economy Raiffeisen International in Serbia
Gross domestic product Balance sheet total in € million 2913
in US$ billion 32.0 Brsmdies 103
Gross national income Employees 2,210
per capita US$ 4,030
GDP by sector
Agriculture 13%
Industry 25%
Services 62%

Employment

Agriculture 7.3%
Industry 34.2%
Services 58.4%

Foreign trade

Total amount of imports
in € billion 13.4

Import goods (Top 5)

Machinery and transport equipment 29%

Mineral oil and lubricants 17%

L]
ovi Sad

([ ]
Beograd

L[]
Kragujevac

Page 17
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Bulgaria

Official name Republic of Bulgaria/ GDP by sector
Republika Balgarija Agriculture 99,
Surface area 110,994 km? Industry 31%
(World ranking: 101) Services 60%
Inhabitants 7.7 million
(World ranking: 93) Employment
Capital Sofia/Sofija Agriculture 9%
et Industy 4
Other large Plovdiv, Varna, Burgas, Services 7%
cities Ruse, Stara Zagora .
o - Foreign trade
Official language Bulgarian -
Currency Low :I'otal amount of imports
in Lew billion 42.8
Population Import goods (Top 5)
Inhabitants per km? 69  Machinery, means of transport 29%
Average growth (0.6)%  Industrial goods 21%
Bulgarians 83.5%  Mineral fuel 20%
Turks 9.5%  Chemical products 9%
Roma 4.6% Raw materials 8%
Other 2.4%
Top 5 countries of import
Religion Russia 12%
Orthodox Christians 86%  Germany 12%
Muslims 13%  ltaly 9%
Other 1%  Ukraine 7%
Turkey 7%
Economy
Gross domestic product :I'oral amount of exports
in US$ billion 315 inLew billion 26.3
Gross national income Export goods (Top 5)
per capita US$ 3,990 In:ustrigl goods ’ 29%
Diverse finished products 19%
Machinery, equipment,
means of transport 15%
Mineral fuel 15%
Chemical products 8%
Top 5 countries of export
Turkey 12%
Germany 10%
ltaly 10%
Greece 9%
Belgium 6%

L]
Plovdiv

L]
Stara Zagora

Raiffeisen International in Bulgaria

Balance sheet total in € million

Branches

Employees

4,766

197

3,708
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Romania

Official name Romania/Roménia Import goods (Top 5)
Surface area 238,391 km? Supply products to industry 35%
(World ranking: 80) Capital goods without means of transport 22%
Inhabitants 21.6 million Means of transport and parts 15%
. o] el drg Sl Durable consumer goods 12%
Sophe Bucho.re.st/Bucure§ti Fuel and petrol, mineral oil 1%
(1.9 million
inhabitants)
Other large Cluj-Napocaq, lasi, Top 5 countries of import
cities Constanta, Timisoara, Germany 17%
Craiova Italy 13%
Official language Romanian Hungary 7%
Currency Lei Russia 6%

France 6%

Population

Total amount of exports

Inhabitants per km? o1 -
in € billion 29.4
Average growth (0.2)%
Romanians 89.5% Export goods (Top 5)
Hungarians 6.6% Supply products to industry 37%
Roma 2:5%  Dyrable consumer goods 24%
Other 14%  Means of transport and parts 15%
. Fuel and petrol, mineral oil 8%
Religion Food and b 3%
Orthodox Christian 7% oo oncoeverages -
Catholics 5% Top 5 countries of export
Protestant 3% ltaly 17%
Other 5% Germany 17%
France 8%
Gross domestic product = oo
in US$ billion 1216 Hungory 6%
Gross national income —_ . . .
per capita US$ 4,830 Raiffeisen International in Romania
Balance sheet total in € million 6,561
GDP by sector Branches 557
Agriculture 11%  Employees 6,899
Industry 38%
Services 51%

Employment
Agriculture 32%
Industry 30%

Services 38%

L]
Cluj-Napoca

Foreign trade

Total amount of imports
in € billion 51.0

L]
Craiova
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Ukraine

Official name Ukraine/Ukraina GDP by sector
Surface area 603,700 km? Agriculture 9%
(World ranking: 43) Industry 35%
Inhabitants 46.8 million Services 56%
(World ranking: 27)
Capital Kiev/Kyiv Employment
(2.7 million Agriculture 19%
inhabitants) Industry 24%
C?I"her large Ch.ClrkiV, Services 56%
cities Dnipropetrovs'k,
Odesa, Donec’k,
ZaporizZja Foreign trade
Official language Ukrainian :I'oral am.ol.mt of imports
- in US$ billion 60.7
Currency Hryvnia
Import goods (Top 5)
Population Primary energy sources and
Inhabitants per km? 78  mineral products 30%
Average growth (0.7)%  Machinery and
Ukrainians 778% electro-technological products 17%
Russians 17.3%  Vehicles 14%
Belarusians 09%  Chemicals 9%
Other 49 Food products 7%
Religion Top 5 countries of import
Orthodox Christian (maijority) n/a Russia 28%
Catholics 10% Germany 10%
Muslim 4.3% Turkmenistan 8%
Other n/a PR China 6%
Poland 5%
Economy
Gross domestic product :I'orql gmount of exports
in US$ billion 106,5 nUS$ billion 492
Gross national income Export goods (Top 5)
per capita US$ 1,940 | o metdl 40%
Food products 13%
Machinery and
electro-technological products 10%
Primary energy source and
mineral products 9%
Chemicals 8%
Top 5 countries of export
Russia 26%
Turkey 7%
Italy 5%
Poland 3%
Germany 3%

Raiffeisen International in Ukraine

Balance sheet total in € million

Branches

Employees

6,285
1,134
17,368



Belarus

Official name Belarus/

Respublika Belarus'
Surface area 207,595 km?

(World ranking: 83)
Inhabitants 9.7 million

(World ranking: 81)
Capital Minsk

(1.7 million

inhabitants)
Other large Homel’, Mahilég,
cities Vicebsk, Hrodna, Brést
Official Belarusian,
languages Russian
Wadhrung Belarus rouble
Population
Inhabitants per km?2 47
Average growth (0.4)%
Belarusians 81%
Russians 1%
Poles 4%
Other 4%
Religion
Orthodox Christian 60%
Roman Catholic 8%
Other 32%
Economy
Gross domestic product
in US$ billion 36.9
Gross national income
per capita US$ 3,470
GDP by sector
Agriculture 9%
Industry 42%
Services 49%
Employment
Agriculture 10.7%
Industry 34.5%
Services 54.8%
Foreign trade
Total amount of imports
in US$ billion 28.7
Import goods (Top 5)
Mineral products, primary

36%

energy source

Reactors, boilers, equipment 12%

Chemicals, plastics 11%
Iron metal, iron metal products 9%
Food products 8%
Top 5 countries of import

Russia 60%
Germany 8%
Ukraine 5%
PR China 3%
Poland 3%
Total amount of exports

in US$ billion 24.3
Export goods (Top 5)

Mineral products,

primary energy sources 36%
Chemicals, plastics 14%
Means of transport 12%
Food products 7%
Iron metal, iron metal products 7%
Top 5 countries of export

Russia 36%
The Netherlands 18%
United Kingdom 6%
Ukraine 6%
Poland 5%

Raiffeisen International in Belarus

1,646
103

2,168

Balance sheet total in € million

Branches

Employees

L[]
Mahiléo
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Russia

Official name Russian Federation/
Rossijskaja Federacija

Surface area 17,075,400 km?
(World ranking: 1)

Inhabitants 142.5 million
(World ranking: 9)
Capital Moskow/Moskva
(10.4 million
inhabitants)
Other large St. Petersburg,
cities Novosibirsk,

Yekaterinburg, NiZznij
Novgorod, Samara

Official language Russian

Currency Rouble

Population

Inhabitants per km? 8.3
Average growth (0.5)%
Russians 79.8%
Tatars 3.8%
Ukrainians 2.0%
Other 14.4%
Religion

Orthodox Christian 52.6%
Muslim 14.4%
Catholics 0.6%
Other 32.4%
Economy

Gross domestic product

in US$ billion 986.9
Gross national income

per capita us$ 5,770

i
® Moskva
g?iinii Novgorod

Sanyﬂ . ¢ Ekaterinburg

- :
® Novosibirs {j

GDP by sector
Agriculture 5%
Industry 39%
Services 56%
Employment
Agriculture 10%
Industry 30%
Services 60%
Foreign trade
Total amount of imports
in US$ billion 200.0
Import goods (Top 5)
Machinery, equipment,
means of transport 49%
Chemical products and rubber 14%
Food 14%
Metals and metal products 8%
Clothing and shoes 4%
Top 5 countries of import
Germany 13%
PR China 12%
Ukraine 7%
Japan 6%
USA 5%
Total amount of exports
in US$ billion 353.0
Export goods (Top 5)
Energy sources 65%
Metals and metal products 14%
Chemical products and rubber 6%
Machinery, equipment 5%
Wood and wood products 4%
Top 5 countries of export
The Netherlands 12%
Italy 8%
Germany 8%
Turkey 5%
Belarus 5%
' Raiffeisen International in Russia
; Balance sheet total in € million 14,952
" Branches 236
Employees 10,276
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Preface

Preface by the

MANAGING BOARD

Ladies and gentlemen,

Although 2008 was a year shaped by the
great challenges of the global financial crisis,
we managed to achieve another record result.
That success was due to our business model,
which is based on diversification in our bank's
geographical reach, products, and customer
groups. Moreover, we took decisive steps to
safeguard our company for the long term in an
increasingly difficult market environment.

In the course of the year, the market uncertain-
ties triggered by the subprime crisis developed
into a crisis of confidence that eventually led to
turmoil on the global money and capital mar-
kets and hence to a full-scale banking crisis.
The real economic effects of this development
were also already noticeable in the economic
region of Central and Eastern Europe toward
the end of 2008. The growth rates of the coun-
tries there slowed and will probably continue

to decline in 2009.

This change in the global economic situation
has led us to focus even more on the quality of
our assets. Therefore, a risk policy geared to
the new environment is the centerpiece of our
action package. We have committed ourselves
to even stricter underwriting standards on new
loans concerning credit limits, maturities and
collateralization. Credit growth will slow down
noticeably, and we will see an increase in loan
defaults from companies and private house-
holds. Further measures are aimed at increas-
ing efficiency and continuously growing in the
retail division, where our primary goal is
to promote further expansion of customer
deposits.

SUPERVISORY BOARD

OVERVIEW

Chairman of the
Managing Board

Particularly in the current economic environ-
ment, it is important to point out that our home
market again proved to be the growth engine
of Europe last year. The convergence story of
Central and Eastern Europe is not over - that
region will continue to offer above-average
potential in the future. The continuing growth
of some of the region’s countries supports this
view and stands in contrast to developments
in Western Europe and many other parts of
the world.

We are also positioned very well for this new
and challenging market environment. Raiff-
eisen International’s leading branch network
in the region, our presence in 17 markets, and
our expertise and service orientation in corpo-
rate and personal banking business enabled
us to again acquire approximately a million
new customers in 2008. We thus had more
than 14.7 million customers at the end of the
reporting period - a good starting point for
the current year.

The Czech Raiffeisenbank’s merger with eBan-
ka in July 2008 marked the successful conclu-
sion of the integration of our tenth acquisition.
For the second year in a row, we refrained
from purchasing another bank in 2008. This
was a logical step, given that we are already
extremely well-positioned throughout the re-
gion and in light of the global deterioration of
the economic environment. This in part signifi-
cant macroeconomic downturn also provided
the grounds for the bank’s first reduction in staff
numbers - namely, in Ukraine - after many
years of continual staff expansion. Unfortu-
nately, we also had to take a similar step in
Hungary at the beginning of the current year.

INTERVIEW STOCK
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In Russia, Raiffeisenbank was one of the first system-relevant banks to
sign an agreement with the Russian Central Bank. Based on that agree-
ment, loans by Raiffeisenbank to the country’s smaller banks are guar-

anteed to a large extent by the central bank. That has improved the flow
of liquidity to small and medium-sized local banks and contributed to
stabilizing the banking market.

We are pleased that the services and positioning of Raiffeisen Inter-
national received recognition from leading financial magazines even
in a difficult market environment. Euromoney, Global Finance, and The
Banker all agreed in 2008 that Raiffeisen International together with
RZB is the best banking group in Central and Eastern Europe.

In this year of very great challenges for all people and businesses, the
confidence of our customers and business associates is enormously im-
portant. | therefore wish to thank them for that confidence. My gratitude
also extends to our shareholders, both to Raiffeisen Zentralbank as our
stable core-shareholder as well as to our institutional and private inves-
tors. We greatly appreciate their confidence in view of the unpleasant
situation on the stock markets. Finally, | sincerely thank our more than
63,000 employees. They were the ones who made our outstanding
development possible and will use their expertise and dedication to
best utilize the opportunities of the crisis.

Herbert Stepic
Chairman of the Managing Board
Raiffeisen International Bank-Holding AG

MANAGEMENT REPORT SEGMENT REPORTS CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Managing Board

Managing

Board of Raiffeisen
International

flir:

Herbert Stepic
Chief Executive Officer

Peter Lennkh
Member of Management Board

Aris Bogdaneris
Member of Management Board

Martin Grill
Member of Management Board
(Chief Financial Officer)

Heinz Wiedner
Member of Management Board

(Chief Operating Officer)

Rainer Franz
Member of Management Board

MANAGING BOARD SUPERVISORY BOARD

OVERVIEW
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Report of the
Supervisory Board

MANAGING BOARD

As in the past, there was open dialogue be-
tween the Managing Board and the Supervi-
sory Board of Raiffeisen International in the
reporting period. The Managing Board of
Raiffeisen International regularly informed the
members of the Supervisory Board and the
Comnmittees in a timely and comprehensive
manner about all issues relevant to business
development, including the company’s risk situ-
ation and risk management and that of mate-
rial Group entities. The Managing Board con-
sulted with the Supervisory Board about the
Company's strategic orientation and discussed
the status of the strategy’s implementation at
regular intervals. The information was in all
cases provided to the Supervisory Board in a
timely manner, which enabled it to make well-
founded decisions and fulfill its supervisory du-
ties. The discussions and exchange of informa-
tion took place both during and between the
meetings.

The effects of the changes in capital market
conditions on the Company and the Group
were also dealt with thoroughly both during
and between the Supervisory Board meetings.
In addition, the Supervisory Board received
regular reports on the current earnings position
and liquidity and risk situation of the Group.

The Supervisory Board held five meetings dur-
ing the year under review. All members of the
Supervisory Board participated in more than
half of the meetings. At all the meetings, the
Supervisory Board performed the tasks pre-
scribed to it by law in compliance with the Aus-
trian Corporate Governance Code.

The annual financial statements and manage-
ment report as well as the consolidated finan-
cial reports and consolidated management
report for 2007 were examined at the meeting
on 26 March 2008. Pursuant to the Audit Com-

SUPERVISORY BOARD

OVERVIEW

mittee’s recommendation, the annual financial
statements were ratified, and the proposal re-
garding the use of profit was approved. The
Supervisory Board was informed about the
management letter. Note was taken of the
corporate governance report together with the
external examination. The Supervisory Board
joined in the Audit Committee’s proposal to
appoint KPMG Austria GmbH, Wirtschafts-
prifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft as
auditor and submitted that proposal to the
Annual General Meeting. Finally, the merger of
Raiffeisen International GROUP IT GmbH with
Raiffeisen International was discussed, and a
report was given on that topic to the Annual
General Meeting.

At the meeting on 9 June 2008, the compli-
ance report was submitted and discussed in
addition to the regular report on the situation
of the Company and the Group.

At the meeting on 10 June 2008, the distribu-
tion of Supervisory Board remuneration was
decided in accordance with the resolution of
the Annual General Meeting.

At the meeting of 16 September 2008, the ef-
fects of the financial crisis on the banking sec-
tor and particularly on the liquidity situation of
the Group were discussed in detail.

The current situation on the capital markets also
shaped the meeting on 3 December 2008. At
that meeting, the planning for 2009 was pre-
sented to the Supervisory Board and subse-
quently discussed. In addition, the Managing
Board reported on lending policy measures
and projects in the area of IT. A status report
was given on the topic of compliance. At that
meeting, the Supervisory Board appointed
Rainer Franz as a member of the Managing
Board for another year.

INTERVIEW STOCK
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The Chairs of the Working, Audit, and Personnel Committees reported
regularly to the Supervisory Board about the work of the respective
committee.

The Working Committee dealt essentially with the appointment of offi-
cers in the Group and disposition of shareholdings in Group companies.
The Audit Committee prepared the ratification of the annual financial
statements and dealt with the proposal concerning the distribution of
profit and the management letter. It furthermore made a proposal for the
selection of the auditor of the financial statements. The Personnel Com-
mittee concerned itself with matters related to the remuneration of the
Managing Board, including the bonus arrangements and the directors
and officers insurance.

The Annual General Meeting elected Johann Strobl to the Supervisory
Board on 10 June 2008. His period in office will end at the Annual
General Meeting that will decide on the discharge of board members
for 2012. The Supervisory Board plans to propose at least one more
candidate with international banking experience for election to the
Supervisory Board at the next regular Annual General Meeting.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements (income state-
ment, balance sheet, and notes) and the consolidated management
report as well as the annual financial statements and management re-
port of Raiffeisen International were audited by KPMG Austria GmbH,
Wirtschaftspriifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft, Vienna. The
audit has revealed no reasons for objection, and the statutory require-
ments have been fully satisfied, thus allowing an unconditional auditor’s
certificate to be issued. After thorough review and discussion of the con-
solidated financial statements and the annual financial statements in the
Audit Committee and in the Supervisory Board, the Supervisory Board
has declared its agreement with the proposal regarding the use of profit
and approves the annual financial statements of Raiffeisen International
Bank-Holding AG. They have thus been ratified in accordance with Sec-
tion 125 (2) of the Austrian Stock Corporation Act (AktG).

Vienna, February 2009

For the Supervisory Board
Walter Rothensteiner, Chairman

MANAGEMENT REPORT SEGMENT REPORTS CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Overview
of Raiffeisen
Internationa

Raiffeisen International is one of the leading banking groups in Central and Eastern Europe. lts
roots go back to 1986, when the first subsidiary bank was founded in Hungary. This occurred at
a time when the fall of the Iron Curtain was not yet in sight. So, Raiffeisen International may be
described as a pioneer of the expansion to Central and Eastern Europe. In the subsequent years,
the Group first established banks of its own in various countries of the region. In 2000 the acquisi-
tion of existing banks began as well. The most recent acquisition was that of Impexbank in Russia
in 2006, whose merger with the Russian Raiffeisenbank has now been completed. As a result,
one of the most important banking networks in Central and Eastern Europe has arisen.

The network comprised 15 banks and further specialist companies, including leasing companies,
in 17 markets at the end of December 2008. The banks and specialist companies had 3,231
business outlets and 63,376 employees serving more than 14.7 million customers. This expansion
documents not only the great importance of the Raiffeisen International network, but also means
security through geographical risk diversification in a difficult market environment. Because the
network banks in these 17 markets all operate as mutually independent units, an unfavorable
development in one country can be offset by a positive trend in another market.

Raiffeisen International’s leading role in Central and Eastern Europe is shown not least by the
ranking of its network banks in their individual markets. At the end of the year, 7 network banks
were among the top three banks in their respective countries.

Awards from respected institutions

Raiffeisen International’s importance is further evidenced by the many awards given to the com-
pany in 2008 by internationally recognized institutions. Raiffeisen International has received
some of those prizes already over several consecutive years. The most important awards in the
reporting period came from Global Finance, Euromoney, and The Banker.

ooy TheBanker

EUROMONEVRS

nansls @
«, excellence

Bank of the Year 2008

CENTRAL & EASTERN EUROPE
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Global Finance named Raiffeisen International together with RZB as “Best Bank in Central and
Eastern Europe 2007” in March 2008. In addition, Global Finance gave the network banks in
Albania, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Serbia, and Slovakia the “Best Bank” award.

Euromoney awarded Raiffeisen International and RZB the award “Best Banking Group in Central
and Eastern Europe (CEE)” in July 2008 for the fourth year running. The magazine also honored
the network banks in Albania, Belarus, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Kosovo, Serbia, and Slovakia
as “Best Bank”.

The Banker named Raiffeisen International together with RZB “Bank of the Year” in Central
and Eastern Europe in November 2008. At the same time, it honored the local subsidiaries in

Bulgaria, Croatia, and Slovakia as “Bank of the Year”.

Markets of Raiffeisen International

Data as of Balance sheet

31 December 2008 total in € million Change' Business outlets Number of staff
Albania 2,048 5.0% 102 1,427
Belarus 1,646 52.3% 103 2,168
Bosnia and Herzegovina 2,395 12.9% 100 1,776
Bulgaria 4,766 20.2% 197 3,708
Croatia 5,984 7.3% 79 2,333
Czech Republic 7198 27.0% 107 2,654
Hungary 9,568 18.4% 164 3,960
Kazakhstan 97 (18.1)% 1 30
Kosovo 598 26.4% 47 720
Poland 7,108 19.3% 123 3,271
Romania (incl. Moldova) 6,561 17.1% 557 6,899
Russia 14,952 22.8% 236 10,276
Serbia 2,913 (0.1)% 103 2,210
Slovakia 10,973 39.9% 162 3,885
Slovenia 1,509 7.0% 16 344
Ukraine 6,285 1.9% 1,134 17,368
Subtotal 84,601 19.0% 3,231 63,029
Other/consolidation 796 - - 347
Total, Raiffeisen International 85,397 17.4% 3,231 63,376
1 Change of balance sheet total versus 31 December 2007. Growth in local currencies differs due to fluctuating euro exchange rates.
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Interview

Emerging from the
crisis stronger
with our customers

Interview with Herbert Stepic,
Chairman of the Managing Board of Raiffeisen
International Bank-Holding AG

MANAGING BOARD

How would you
summarize the crisis

year of 2008?

My assessment of last
year has two sides.
On the one hand,
we achieved another
record result in 2008,
and our profit after
tax and minority inter-
ests grew by signifi-
cantly more than 10
per cent compared
with 2007. That is an
impressive  accom-

/
1

the other hand, the global financial crisis has

p|ishmenf that many
competitors envy. On

led to a significantly worsened environment.
Funding facilities are severely limited and more
costly than before. And to top it off, the real
economy is also suffering considerably from
these conditions, and the consequences of
that will find expression in rising insolvencies
and increased unemployment figures. Our
stock price has also suffered substantially in
the wake of this situation and the pessimistic
expectations of market observers.

SUPERVISORY BOARD

OVERVIEW

Development in Eastern Europe has been
viewed much more negatively since last au-
tumn. What do you think of that assessment?

Risk aversion has risen very sharply on the
global markets since Lehman Brothers filed
for Chapter 11 protection in mid-September.
That has put pressure on national economies
worldwide, including the emerging countries of
Central and Eastern Europe. The market also
differentiates less according to individual re-
gions or countries in such phases. The fact is
that the domestic saving ratio in Central and
Eastern European countries is not sufficient to
cope with the economic catch-up process with-
in one to two decades, a time-frame that would
be reasonable to expect of the population. It is
therefore right and important to rely on foreign
funds. That is done by way of foreign direct
investments or through loans to businesses and
households. Economically, that makes very
clear sense, and in exceptional circumstances
such as now exist, great challenges and also
risks arise. Nevertheless, it is very important
that these capital flows not be interrupted and,
if necessary, that they be assumed temporarily
by institutions like the International Monetary
Fund and the European Union, as has occurred
in Hungary and Ukraine. Of course, we will
supply our subsidiary banks with sufficient cap-
ital, so they can continue to make important
contributions to the transformation process, but
we cannot ensure the functioning and growth
of entire national economies.

INTERVIEW STOCK
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Is the growth phase in Central and
Eastern Europe over, then?

By no means! Of course, the entire region is af-
fected by the crisis, but the media sometimes
give the impression that Eastern Europe is the
reason for the crisis or is making it dramatically
worse. That is a worrisome tendency that |
strongly object to. | see a new chapter begin-
ning. Growth has been interrupted or continues,
but in some cases at significantly lower levels.
In the past five years, the countries in this region
have grown on average 4.5 percentage points
more strongly than the euro area. The difference
is even likely to have been above 4 percentage
points in 2008. Now, that has probably been
accompanied by some overheating tendencies
in certain regions and sectors. So, a decline of
the growth difference to about 2.5 percentage
points, as many now forecast for the medium
term, is a healthy development that will help
sustain the economic catch-up process.

Have Austria’s banks — including Raiffeisen
International — made a mistake with

their strong exposure in Eastern Europe,
the key word being “cluster risk”?

The opposite is the case. If Austrian banks
had not gone to Central and Eastern Europe,
their earnings situation would certainly be far
weaker and they would probably have been
more exposed in investment banking, like other
Western European banks. Austrian banks have
created a successful business model, with
which they can also brave the crisis in difficult
times. Raiffeisen International does not deal in
complicated structured financing instruments.
We also have no subprime transactions on
our books. Our business model is simple, but
abiding. We cover the basic financial needs of
almost 14.7 million customers in Central and
Eastern Europe.

How have you reacted to the new
situation, and what does your funding
situation look like?

We have adjusted our lending policy to the
general conditions and give even more weight
to the aspect of risk evaluation, which has tra-
ditionally played a great role for us. We are
concentrating now on short maturities and
have sharply reduced foreign currency loans

MANAGEMENT REPORT
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to private individuals or - as in the case of the
Swiss franc - stopped making them altogether.
We are assigning even greater importance
to collateral and col-
lection of overdue
receivables. On the
cost side, we real-
ized opportunities to
increase  efficiency
throughout the past
year, and numerous
projects - for exam-
ple, in the area of pro-
curement - already
contributed  substan-
tially to improving our
cost/income ratio be-
fore the crisis. Finally,
stopping our branch
expansion will also
lead to cost relief.

On the personnel side, we put a freeze on hir-
ing at the end of September, with exceptions
only for strategically important positions in ar-
eas like risk management or IT. We began the
process of reducing personnel in Ukraine. That
had been planned for a long time, and now
coincides with the crisis. We have also been
forced to take such a step in Hungary, and we
do not do so lightly.

Our funding rests on several strong pillars.
We are in the fortunate position of being able
to cover about 60 per cent of our needs by
means of customer deposits. Raiffeisen Zentral-
bank (RZB) provides more than 20 per cent,
and we obtain the rest through the syndication
market or supranational organizations like the
European Bank for Reconstruction and Devel-
opment (EBRD) and the International Finance
Corporation (IFC). We have maintained tradi-
tionally good relationships with those organi-
zations and others for many years

And how is RZB doing, your majority
shareholder, of whose managing board
you are deputy chairman?

In addition to its strong foothold in Austrian
corporate customer business and in Eastern
Europe, RZB has expanded its business with
other banks and investment banking in recent
years. Of course, it is therefore affected by
negative market valuations of its investment

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS



Page 34

Interview

MANAGING BOARD

portfolio and write-downs like most of its
local and international competitors. As a con-
sequence it will not be able to continue posting
record results as in the past years. However,
thanks to its strong core business, RZB will do
comparatively well - given the general condi-
tions - and report a positive result for 2008.
The shareholders also have given RZB and
its strategy for increasing capital their full
backing.

One thing you probably are not
happy about in 2008 is your stock price,
right?

For exactly the same reasons that we have
been praised in the past, we are now being
punished: our orientation to growth markets
and our strong focus on the CIS and especially
on Russia. Moreover, stocks in general and
bank stocks in par-
ticular are  being
avoided because of
the financial crisis.
So, our stock price
has completely dis-
connected from our
actual performance.
That is very regret-
table, but the market
is obeying its own
laws. | am person-
ally suffering from this
development like all
other  shareholders,
including many of our
employees. One sim-
ply has to accept that
the trend is not going
to go in the desired direction for a while. In
any case, the 22 research firms that evaluate
Raiffeisen International view us far better than
the market does at present. Our solid business
model, with risk diversification across 17 mar-
kets and all customer segments, large custom-
ers, small and medium-sized enterprises, and
private individuals, should ensure our investors
better times again in the medium term.

SUPERVISORY BOARD
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Where do you see the emphases in 2009?

2009 will be a difficult year for many sectors
worldwide. It will primarily be characterized by
consolidation. Our top goal will be to continue
growing on the deposit side. We are certainly
not alone in that and would be ill-advised to
undermine ourselves with cutthroat terms in this
situation. We have the region’s strongest finan-
cial brand and are a proven symbol of values
like sofety and trust. In more than 120 years,
no saver has lost even a single cent with Raif-
feisen. That is a convincing argument for many
existing and potential customers especially in
turbulent times.

Furthermore, we will do our best to support our
customers in this crisis and to emerge from it
stronger with them. What makes me particu-
larly confident is our staff. | am very proud of
them! Our employees are mostly young peo-
ple, all hungry for success, and have above-
average levels of education. Our Group has
excellent human capital at its disposal, which
is what has made us so successful and will now
contribute greatly to overcoming the crisis.

Finally, a question about your charity
organization. How is it doing?

The H. Stepic CEE Charity focuses on assist-
ing young people during their occupational
education. In addition to some smaller actions,
the organization is implementing its first large
projects in Bosnia and Herzegovina and in
Ukraine and is developing others. | am grateful
to all the members, donors, and staff volunteers
without whose dedication these initial success-
es would not have been possible. Of course,
hard times lie ahead here, too, as the crisis is
regrettably lowering the propensity to donate.
But especially in these times, it is important fo
stick together and not to forget those who have
it much worse. Solidarity, another pillar of the
Raiffeisen philosophy, is now regaining a very
special significance.

INTERVIEW STOCK
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Stock and investor
relations

Financial crisis reaches
the real economy

Market participants got a taste of what was to
come in the following months at the beginning
of 2008. Bad economic news from the United
States and negative headlines about major in-
ternational banks resulting from a widening US
mortgage crisis caused stock markets to slump
in January and March. Added to that were
worries about possible effects of the financial
crisis on the real economy. The US central bank
reacted with huge key interest rate cuts in the
first quarter, which brought temporary calm.

Concerns about inflation and rising commodity
prices dominated market events until mid-year.
In particular, the sharp rise of oil prices to a
high of almost US$ 150 per barrel drove up
inflation markedly. The inflation rate in the euro
countries was at times considerably above the
ECB’s target of 2 per cent, reaching 4 per cent
in June and July. Prices also climbed apprecia-
bly in Central and Eastern Europe, and even
increased by double-digit percentage rates in
the Commonwealth of Independent States.

The financial crisis worsened significantly in
the third quarter, triggered by the collapse of
US investment bank Lehman Brothers, which in
only a few days led several well-known banks
to seek mergers with other large financial in-
stitutions. AIG, the world’s largest insurer, US
mortgage finance companies Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac, and other banks, including some
from Europe, only managed to avoid bankrupt-
cy through government assistance and partial
nationalization.

MANAGEMENT REPORT
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It then became clear the financial crisis would
also affect the real economy. The US govern-
ment adopted a first package of measures
totaling US$ 700 billion to stabilize the finan-
cial market and restore confidence. On 11
and 12 October 2008, the European Union
likewise adopted joint measures to strengthen
the European financial system. Rescue pack-
ages were also adopted at the national level,
which mostly consisted of government guaran-
tees for liquidity procurement, providing funds
to improve the equity situation, and increasing
investor protection. These steps were buttressed
by further key interest rate cuts by the central
banks of major industrialized countries.

Although the government measures at first
served to calm the financial markets, it became
increasingly clear that the real economy would
be affected on a massive scale. Within a few
weeks, more and more businesses from nearly
all parts of the manufacturing sector reported
dramatic sales and earnings declines. As a
result, economic activity across the globe suf-
fered rapid and dramatic losses to momentum
and is currently in a recession.

In the fourth quarter, the emerging market
countries of Central and Eastern Europe were
no longer able to escape this development.
The situation there was shaped in October
and November by high exchange rate volatil-
ity and a sharp decline of growth, which had
still been strong until then. That was especially
true of Ukraine and Hungary. The International
Monetary Fund then extended loans to both
countries of about US$ 16 billion each to stabi-
lize the overall economic situation and restore
the confidence of market participants.
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Stock and investor relations

Price of Raiffeisen
International shares
in the wake of the
financial crisis

The extraordinary developments on the inter-
national financial markets and the real eco-
nomic decline that began in the third quarter
of 2008 critically influenced the price trend
of Raiffeisen International shares in the past
year. The shares began the year at a price of
€ 103.60, which initially held steady, not least
due to good business figures, and marked its
high point for the year in May at € 110.20. It
fell from that level to values around € 80 by
the end of August and thus developed in line
with the Austrian Traded Index (ATX) and the
benchmark index for European banks, the Dow
Jones Euro Stoxx Banks.

The price decline of Raiffeisen International
shares accelerated with the significant wors-
ening of the market environment due to the
financial crisis from September onward. The
great uncertainty of many market participants
was reflected in extreme volatility, which led
on individual trading days to price fluctuations
in the double-digit percentage range. Particu-
larly sharp declines were registered in stocks
with business related to the markets of Central
and Eastern Europe, including Raiffeisen Inter-
national. The publication of business figures on
the third quarter at the beginning of Novem-
ber, which were on average above analysts’

expectations, did nothing to change these
share price declines. Atyear’s end, shares were
quoting at € 19.30 and had thus lost a total of
81 per cent compared with the beginning of the
year. The ATX fell in the same period by 61 per
cent, and the Dow Jones Euro Stoxx Banks by
64 per cent. Raiffeisen International’s market
capitalization amounted to € 3 billion at the
end of 2008. At this report's editorial deadline
on 27 February 2009, the share price stood at
€14.99.

Altogether, about 137.9 million Raiffeisen Inter-
national shares were traded in 2008. Turnover
amounted to about € 8.7 billion, and average
daily trading volume to 551,618 shares.

Stock included in
major indices

Raiffeisen International is currently included in
six main share indices. In terms of weighting,
the stock occupies seventh place in each of
the two most important Austrian share indices,
the ATX and the ATX Prime. It is furthermore
included in the Dow Jones Euro Stoxx Banks,
which is important for the sector.

As one of over 300 Western European blue

chips, Raiffeisen International shares are
represented in both the DJ Euro Stoxx and the
DJ Stoxx 600, which covers the 600 Western
European companies with the largest market

capitalization.

Price performance compared with the ATX and DJ Euro Stoxx Banks

Issue price of € 32.50 = Index Basis
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Free float virtually
unchanged

By way of its 100 per cent subsidiary Cembra
Befeiligungs GmbH, RZB continues to be Raiff-
eisen International’s single largest shareholder,
with a stake of about 70 per cent. Accord-
ingly, the free float, the usual reference point
for weighting Raiffeisen International in share
indices, is unchanged at the preceding year's
level of about 30 per cent.

Private investors own about 3 per cent of the
shares, while institutional investors account for
the remaining 28 per cent and thus represent
a focal point of the shareholder structure. The
proportion held by private individuals - mostly
from Austria - thus remained constant com-
pared with the preceding year.

From a geographical standpoint, there were
partly larger shifts in the shareholder structure
concerning the shares held by institutional
investors in 2008. Most of these shares re-
main in the hands of European institutional
investors, who account for 61 per cent. Inves-
tors from Great Britain own a large part with
19 per cent, followed by Austria with 16 per
cent. The remaining 26 per cent are allocable
to shareholders from other EU countries. In-
vestors in the United States account for about
38 per cent of the shares in institutional portfo-
lios, and Asian investors for a smaller stake.

Capital Market Day
in St. Petersburg

Participating in conferences is an important
part of Raiffeisen International’s communica-
tion with the capital market. Analysts and insti-
tutional investors were kept informed in 2008
through roadshows in Europe, the United
States, and Asia and for the first time in the
Arab-speaking region as well as in many ad-
ditional individual talks.

Number of companies
Index (selection) in the index

Weight of RI
in the index

ATX 20

6%

ATX Prime 57

5%

DJ Euro Stoxx 318

<1%

DJ Euro Stoxx Banks 40

<1%

DJ Stoxx 600 600

<1%

MSCI World 1693

<1%

Organizing Raiffeisen International’s third an-
nual Capital Market Day on 26 September
2008 was a highlight of investor relations’
activities. After Austria (Vienna) and Ukraine
(Kiev) in the previous years, Russia (St. Peters-
burg) was chosen this time as the event's ven-
ve. Over 130 participants from the world’s
most important financial centers accepted the
company's invitation to the former seat of the
Russian tsars.

The event began with a tour of a Raiffeisen-
bank branch in St. Petersburg, where represen-
tatives from the financial community obtained
a first-hand picture, among other ’rhings, of how
successfully Impexbank had been integrated
into Raiffeisenbank in 2007. In addition, the
Capital Market Day offered analysts and inves-
tors an excellent opportunity to communicate
with the Group’s management and the manag-
ing boards of network banks from Romania,
Russia, and Hungary about business devel-
opment and the Group's strategy. Questions
about current development in the markets of
Central and Eastern Europe due to the finan-
cial crisis and about the assessment of that by
Raiffeisen International’s management was a
focus of the talks.

Shareholder structure of
Raiffeisen International

Private investors
~ 3%

Institutional
investors
~27%

MANAGEMENT REPORT SEGMENT REPORTS CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
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Regular conferences
and presentations

The Managing Board comprehensively in-
formed the public, investors, and analysts
about business figures for 2007 and interim
results during the year under review in the
context of presentation and conference calls.
In each case, the management faced the ques-
tions raised by the participants in detailed
question and answer sessions. These sessions
took account of the increased information
needs of market operators, particularly against
the background of the financial crisis.

All information documents from the Capital
Market Day, the presentations related to the
conference calls, and the latest corporate pre-
sentation are available to interested parties
at the Raiffeisen International website: www.
ri.co.at — Investor Relations — Financial
Reports & Figures — Presentations.

Broad research
coverage

The number of reports by analysts on Raiffeisen
International increased again in the past year.
Altogether, 22 major international investment
banks and analyst firms watched the Raiffeis-
en International stock and wrote 137 reports
about it in 2008. Their investment recommen-
dations may be viewed at www.ri.co.at —
Investor Relations — Rl Shares —» Analyst
Reports.

E-mail service for
investors

The goal of Raiffeisen International’s e-mail
service is fo ensure that institutional and private
investors receive information simultaneously.
Online registration for this widely used infor-
mation service is possible at any time at www.
ri.co.at ~ Investor Relations — Ordering
and E-mail Service.

SUPERVISORY BOARD

OVERVIEW

Annual General
Meeting

Raiffeisen International’s  Annual  General
Meeting for the 2007 financial year was held
on 10 June 2008 at the Austria Center Vienna
(ACV). About 700 investors, consisting primari-
ly of private individuals, were informed directly
by the Managing Board about the company’s
development. It was thus one of the best-at-
tended shareholder gatherings in Austria. Al-
together, almost 73 per cent of the voting stock
was represented at the Annual General Meet-
ing. The welcoming speech by the Supervisory
Board chairman and presentations by Manag-
ing Board members were webcast live, as in
previous years, and may still be downloaded
at www.ri.co.at — Investor Relations —
Events —~ Annual General Meeting. The
Annual General Meeting accepted the Man-
aging Board’s dividend proposal of € 0.93
per share and all its other motions with a large
maijority of votes. For the year 2007, € 143.8
million were distributed to the shareholders of
Raiffeisen International.

All Raiffeisen International shareholders are
again cordially invited to the next Annual Gen-
eral Meeting on 9 June 2009 at the Austria
Center Vienna. Details regarding the last and
the upcoming Annual General Meetings as
well as other important dates may be found
on the company website at www.ri.co.at —
Investor Relations.

Dividend proposal

A profit distribution for 2008 of € 0.93 per
share, as in the previous year, will be pro-
posed by the Managing Board to the An-
nual General Meeting. If the shareholders
accept, the total dividend payout will amount to
€ 143.8 million. The payment will be made on
17 June 2009 to entitled shareholders through
the banks that maintain their securities accounts.
The dividend and its amount will be determined
by reference to the holdings of Raiffeisen Inter-
national shares on 16 June 2008.

INTERVIEW STOCK
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Paid dividend Dividend
Year in € million per share in €
2004 38.8 0.31
2005 64.2 0.45
2006 101.4 0.71
2007 143.8 0.93
2008 143.8 093
"Proposal at the Annual General Meeting
Share data
Price on 31 December 2008 €19.30
High/low in 2008 (closing prices) €110.20/€ 16.23
Earnings per share for 2008 €6.39
Market capitalization as of 31 December 2008 € 3 billion
Average daily trading volume in 2008 (single counting) 551,618 shares
Stock exchange turnover in 2008 (single counting) € 8.7 billion
Free float as of 31 December 2008 approx. 30%
Share details
ISIN ATO000606306
Ticker symbols RIBH (Vienna Stock Exchange)
RIBH AV (Bloomberg)
RIBH.VI (Reuters)
Market segment Prime Market
Issue price per share at IPO (25 April 2005) € 32.50
Issue price per share at capital increase (5 October 2007) €104.00
Number of shares issued as of 31 December 2008 154,667,500
Average number of shares in 2008 153,599,079
Financial calendar 2009
26 February Start of Quiet Period
26 March 2008 Annual Report, Analyst Conference, Conference Call
30 April Start of Quiet Period
14 May First Quarter Report, Conference Call
9 June Annual General Meeting
17 June Ex Dividend and Dividend Payment Date
30 July Start of Quiet Period
13 August Semi-Annual Report, Conference Call
29 October Start of Quiet Period
12 November Third Quarter Report, Conference Call
Investor relations
E-mail:  investor.relations@ri.co.at
Internet: www.ri.co.at = Investor Relations
Phone: +43-1-71707 2089
Fax: +43-1-71707 2138
Raiffeisen International Bank-Holding AG, Investor Relations
Am Stadtpark 3, 1030 Wien, Austria
MANAGEMENT REPORT SEGMENT REPORTS CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Corporate
overnance
report

Raiffeisen International agrees to comply with the Austrian Corporate Governance Code (ACGC)
as amended in June 2007. The ACGC is publicly available at the websites of the Austrian Work-

ing Group for Corporate Governance (www.corporate-governance.at) and Raiffeisen Inter-
national (www.ri.co.at).

Composition of the Managing Board

The Managing Board currently consists of six members:

Date End of term
Managing Board Year born first appointed in office
Herbert Stepic, Chairman 1946 14 June 2001 13 June 2011
Martin Grill 1959 3 January 2005 2 January 2010
Aris Bogdaneris 1963 1 October 2004 26 September 2009
Rainer Franz 1943 20 January 2003 31 December 2009
Peter Lennkh 1963 1 October 2004 26 September 2009
Heinz Wiedner 1953 14 June 2001 13 June 2011

The members of the Managing Board have seats on the supervisory boards of the following
domestic and foreign companies not included in the consolidated financial statements:

B Herbert Stepic: OMV AG

Persons who are 68 years or older may not be appointed as member of the Managing Board or
be reappointed for another term in office.

MANAGING BOARD SUPERVISORY BOARD OVERVIEW INTERVIEW STOCK
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Composition of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board currently has six members:

Date End of

Supervisory Board Year of birth first appointed term in office

Walter Rothensteiner, 1953 11 May 2001 Regular Annual

Chairman General Meeting
2011

Manfred Url, 1956 11 May 2001 Regular Annual

Deputy Chairman General Meeting
2011

Patrick Butler 1957 28 September 2004 Regular Annual
General Meeting
2009

Karl Sevelda 1950 11 May 2001 Regular Annual
General Meeting
2011

Stewart D. Gager 1940 24 January 2005 Regular Annual
General Meeting
2009

Johann Strobl 1959 10 June 2008 Regular Annual

General Meeting
2013

Independence of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board of Raiffeisen International stipulates the following criteria for the inde-
pendence of supervisory board members of a company according to Rule 53 of the Austrian
Corporate Governance Code:

B The supervisory board member shall not have served as member of the management board
or as management-level staff of the company or one of its subsidiaries in the past five years.

B The supervisory board member shall not maintain or have maintained in the past year any
business relations with the company or one of its subsidiaries to an extent of significance for
the member of the supervisory board. This shall also apply to relationships with companies
in which a member of the supervisory board has considerable economic interest. The
approval of individual transactions by the supervisory board pursuant to L Rule 48 does not
automatically mean the person qualifies as not independent.

B The supervisory board member shall not have acted as auditor of the company or have
owned a share in the auditing company or have worked there as an employee in the past
three years.

W The supervisory board member shall not be a member of the management board of another
company in which a member of the management board of the company is a supervisory
board member.

B The supervisory board member shall not be a close relative (direct offspring, spouse, life
partner, parent, uncle, aunt, sibling, niece, or nephew) of a member of the management
board or of persons who hold one of the aforementioned positions.

The exercise of functions within the group or the mere exercise by a supervisory board member
of duties as a member of the board of management or as a managing director shall not result in
the relevant enterprise being considered an “enterprise in which the supervisory board member
has a substantial economic interest” unless the circumstances give reason to believe that the
supervisory board member draws a personal benefit from such enterprise.

MANAGEMENT REPORT SEGMENT REPORTS CONSOLIDATED
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All members of the Supervisory Board of Raiffeisen International meet the criteria applying to the
independence of supervisory board members.

As a member of the Supervisory Board, Steward D. Gager is neither a shareholder with a stake
of more than 10 per cent nor represents such shareholders and is therefore “free float representa-
tive” in the meaning of C Rule 54 of the ACGC 2007.

Members of the Supervisory Board have the following supervisory board seats in domestic and
foreign companies:

B Walter Rothensteiner: UNIQA Versicherungen AG
B Karl Sevelda: Bene AG, Unternehmens Invest AG

Persons who are 75 years or older may not be elected as a member of the Supervisory Board
or be reappointed for another term in office. Furthermore, no person may be elected who has
altogether more than eight supervisory board seats in companies listed on the stock exchange.
The chair in the supervisory board of a company listed on the stock exchange counts twice.

Members of the Committees

The bylaws of the Supervisory Board regulate its organization and assign certain tasks to the
Working, Audit, and Personnel Committees. The Committees are composed as follows:

Working Audit Personnel
Supervisory Board member Committee Committee Committee
Walter Rothensteiner, Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman
Manfred Url, Deputy Chairman Deputy Deputy Deputy
Karl Sevelda Member

Meeting participation

No member of the Supervisory Boards failed to participate personally in more than half of the
Supervisory Board meetings last year.

Contracts subject to approval

Furthermore, no contracts subject to approval as defined by the Austrian Stock Corporation Act
were made with Supervisory Board members in 2008.

Working method of the Managing Board
and Supervisory Board

Assignment of duties in the Managing Board

The Managing Board of Raiffeisen International manages the Company according to clearly
defined goals, plans, and guidelines with a forward-looking orientation and relying on modern
principles of entrepreneurship. In the process, it constantly takes into account the interests of the
shareholders and employees.

MANAGING BOARD SUPERVISORY BOARD OVERVIEW INTERVIEW STOCK
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A division of business operations governs the tasks belonging to the individual areas of responsi-
bility in the Managing Board:

CEO

Herbert Stepic

CFO/CRO
Martin Grill

Board Member

Retail Banking
Avris Bogdaneris

Board Member
Corporate Banking
& Network
Coordination
Peter Lennkh

(efe]e}
Heinz Wiedner

Board Member

Rainer Franz

l

l

l

l

Group Human
Resources'

Investor Relations

Consumer Banking

Regional Office

Process
& Productivity

Management

Management
Secretariat

[

[

[

[

[

Communications?

Group Controlling
& Accounting

SE Banking

Corporate Relationship
& Banking Alliances

Organization
& Project Management
Office

[

[

[

[

Internal Audit?

Treasury Coordination
& Asset Liability
Management

Products
& Marketing

Corporate Banking CEE

Information Technology

[

[

[

[

[

Legal & Compliance?

Group Strategy &
Portfolio Management

Sales
& Distribution

Corporate Banking
Products

Shared Service Centres

[

[

[

[

Corporate Risk
Management

Affluent
& Private Banking

Leasing International

Payment Services

[

Retail Risk Management

[

Real Estate Development

! The Learning & Development unit reports to Rainer Franz.
2 Outsourced to RZB.

Decision-making powers of the Committees

The business management measures that require the consent of the Supervisory Board or the
responsible Committee are regulated in the bylaws of the Managing Board and the Supervisory
Board and its Committees.

The Working Committee is responsible for all matters assigned to it by the full Supervisory Board.
It is thus called upon to approve the transactions and measures not reserved to the Supervisory
Board. Those include, in particular, the establishment and dissolution of subsidiaries as well as
the acquisition of shareholdings up to a certain book value amount, the making or dissolution of
syndication or voting trust agreements with co-shareholders, the assumption of duties in the cor-
porate bodies of other enterprises by Managing Board members, or the appointment of persons
to managing boards and supervisory bodies of Group lending institutions. The Working Commit-
tee furthermore approves the extension of loans and credits to Group enterprises from a certain
amount upward.

The Personnel Committee concerns itself with the matters of remuneration of the Managing
Board members and the employment contracts of the Managing Board members. It is specifically
responsible for approving the bonus allotment and the allocation of shares from the share incen-
tive program to the Managing Board members.

The Audit Committee prepares the ratification of the annual financial statements, the manage-
ment report, the consolidated financial statements, and the consolidated management report as
well as the proposal concerning the distribution of profit. It furthermore draws up the proposal for
the selection of the auditor. The content of the management letter is also discussed in the Audit
Committee.
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Number of meetings

The Supervisory Board convened for five meeting in the reporting period. In addition, the
Managing Board regularly informed the Supervisory Board in a timely and comprehensive
manner about all issues relevant to business development, including the risk situation and risk
management of the Company and material Group entities, and particularly about events of major
significance. The Audit Committee met once. As a rule, the Working and Personnel Committees
made their decisions in writing on a circulating basis, with important decision being dealt with
orally in advance.

Disclosure concerning Managing Board and
Supervisory Board remuneration

Remuneration of the Managing Board

The remuneration of the Managing Board is reported according to fixed and performance-based
components including remuneration for membership in boards of subsidiaries, bonuses, and pay-

ments in kind.

For the duration of the Managing Board contract, payments are made to pension funds on the ba-
sis of a contribution-oriented system. On the whole the same rules apply to the Managing Board
members as apply to employees. They provide that a basic contribution to a pension fund and
an additional contribution be made by the Company if the employee makes contributions in the
same amount. Three Managing Board members additionally have individual retirement benefits
that are funded by pension liability insurance.

Furthermore, there is protection against the risk of occupational disability, likewise arranged by
means of a pension fund or based on an individual pension commitment secured by pension
liability insurance.

The following amounts of remuneration were paid to the Managing Board of Raiffeisen Inter-
national:

in €000

2008 2007

Fixed and performance-based remuneration 9219 5,864

Payments to pension plans and pension liability insurance 79 80

Total

9,298 5,944

In the year under review, the share of performance-based remuneration components amounted
to 60.7 per cent. It had been 45.1 per cent in the preceding year.

The performance-based components of the Managing Board’s remuneration consist of bonus
payments linked to the achievement of Company objectives for profit after tax, return on risk-
adjusted capital, and cost/income ratio and to the achievement of annually agreed personal
objectives and the value of an allotment of shares in the framework of the share incentive pro-
gram. The value of the allotted shares corresponds to 65.7 per cent of the performance-based
remuneration components. There were no material changes in the principles for profit-sharing
compared with the preceding year.

MANAGING BOARD SUPERVISORY BOARD OVERVIEW INTERVIEW STOCK
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Share incentive program

The share incentive program (SIP) is a stock-based remuneration program for the Managing
Board, members of the managing boards of network banks, and executive personnel with a term
of three years per tranche. At the beginning, a number of shares are conditionally allotted to
beneficiaries that correspond in value to a fixed percentage of the basic annual remuneration.
The number of shares actually allotted at the end of the term is geared to two equally weighted
performance parameters - the average return on equity achieved during the term in comparison
with a target value fixed per tranche and the TSR (total shareholder return) ranking in comparison
with the banks listed in the DJ Euro Stoxx banks subindex.

It is a prerequisite for participation in the SIP that the beneficiaries make an investment of their
own and hold a number of Raiffeisen International shares during the term that corresponds to at
least 30 per cent of the number of conditionally allotted shares.

A tranche of the remuneration program matured for the first time in 2008 (the 2005 SIP tranche).
In accordance with the terms of the program (published in the Amtsblatt zur Wiener Zeitung on
9 August 2005), the maximum number of shares to be allotted, i.e., maturing shares, was reached
by exceeding the set performance criteria (average return on equity over the waiting period and
TSR ranking). Because of the designated value limit for an allotment, the lower number of shares
shown in the following table was actually transferred. The value of the allotted shares is equiva-
lent to 65.69 per cent of the performance-based remuneration components.

2005 sIP

Number Value at a share
of shares  price of € 81.17 on
Group of persons due dllotment date in €

Number of
shares actually
transferred

Managing Board members of
Raiffeisen International 45,286 3,675,865

39,206

Managing Board members
of bank subsidiaries associated
with Raiffeisen International 81,057 6,579,397

64,616

Executives of Raiffeisen International
and other enterprises associated with it 24,818 2,014,477

15,362

To avoid legal uncertainties, a severance indemnity was paid in cash instead of a transfer of
shares in four countries in accordance with plan terms and conditions for qualifying employees.
In Austria, the possibility was granted to qualifying persons likewise to receive a cash settlement
instead of half of the shares due in order to pay from that the wage tax due at the time of transfer.
For these reasons, a lower number of actually transferred shares was deducted from the total
number of own shares.

A new tranche is issued in the framework of the SIP every year. That means that conditional
shares are allotted respectively for three tranches as of the balance sheet date. The number of
those shares amounted to 202,377 as of 31 December 2008 (the 2006 allotment accounted for
65,803 of those, the 2007 allotment for 51,903, and the 2008 allotment for 84,591).
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The originally disclosed number of conditionally allotted shares changed as a result of various
personnel changes in the Group units and the maturing of the 2005 SIP tranche and is presented
in the following table as an aggregate:

2006 SIP to 2008 SIP

Number of shares Minimum Maximum
maturing as of allotment allotment

Groups of persons 31 Dec. 2008 of shares of shares
Managing Board members of
Raiffeisen International 60,977 15,244 39,206
Managing Board members
of bank subsidiaries associated
with Raiffeisen International 108,578 27144 162,867
Executives of Raiffeisen International
and other enterprises associated with it 32,822 8,206 49,234

Severance rights of the Managing Board

The Managing Board contracts are entered into for the duration of the term in office. In case
duties or employment are ended, two members of the Managing Board have rights to severance
benefits in accordance with the Austrian Salaried Employees Act (Angestelltengesetz, AngG),
two members in accordance with contractual stipulations, and two members in accordance with
the Austrian Company Pension Fund Act (Betriebliches Mitarbeitervorsorgegesetz, BMVG). The
severance rights according to the AngG or to contractual stipulations generally lapse upon notice
of termination by the employee except in the case of a Managing Board member.

Furthermore, there are no indemnification agreements between the Company and its Managing
Board and Supervisory Board members, e.g., for the eventuality of a public takeover bid.

Remuneration of the Supervisory Boards
The Annual General Meeting resolved on 10 June 2008 to pay the Supervisory Board members

total remuneration of € 330.000 and assigned to the Supervisory Board itself the task of distribut-
ing that amount.

in€ 2008
Chairman of Supervisory Board 70,000
Deputy Chairman of Supervisory Board 60,000
Member of Supervisory Board 50,000
Total 330,000

Fees for meeting attendance were not paid.
D & O insurance

Directors and officers (D & O) property damage and liability insurance was taken out again last
year for the Managing Board and Supervisory Board with UNIQA Sachversicherung AG.

MANAGING BOARD SUPERVISORY BOARD OVERVIEW INTERVIEW STOCK
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Report on external evaluation

Transparency in matters of corporate governance is of special importance for Raiffeisen Inter-
national. It therefore undertakes not “merely” to comply with the ACGC, but rather actually
lives and breathes it. In the reporting period, all of the ACGC's L and C rules were complied
with. L rules (Legal Requirement) are based on compulsory legal regulations. C rules (Comply or
Explain) are to be complied with, and any divergence must be explained and justified to achieve
behavior in conformity with the Code.

Following the recommendation in the preamble to the ACGC, the Company commissioned an
external evaluation by Univ.-Prof. DDr. Waldemar Jud Unternehmensforschungs GmbH, which
confirmed full compliance with the Austrian Corporate Governance Code. The results of that
evaluation are available to the public on the Raiffeisen International website (wwwe.ri.co.at).

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting for 2007 was held on 10 June 2008 at the Austria Center in
Vienna. The next Annual General Meeting for 2008 will take place on 9 June 2009. The invita-
tion to shareholders for this meeting will be published at least three weeks in advance.

As owners of the Company, the shareholders exercise their rights by voting at the Annual Gen-
eral Meeting. The voting proceeds according to the one-share-one-vote principle in which all
shareholders have equal rights without voting right restrictions. Every unit share issued confers
one vote, and no registered shares have been issued. The shareholders can exercise their voting
right themselves or through proxies. Unless different voting majorities are prescribed by law, the
Annual General Meeting’s resolutions are ratified by a simple majority of the capital stock in
attendance at the time of ratification. In addition to voting on the discharge of the Managing
Board and Supervisory Board, the election of Supervisory Board members and on proposals
they have submitted themselves, the shareholders vote on the use of profit and hence on the
amount of the dividend. To ensure maximum transparency of the Annual General Meeting, the
opening comments and speeches by the Managing Board are broadcast live on the internet at
www.ri.co.at — Investor Relations — Events — Annual General Meeting and may also
be viewed there later. That gives shareholders who were unable to attend the Annual General
Meeting in person the opportunity to obtain the information first-hand.

Transparency

Open and transparent communication with shareholders and their representatives, customers,
analysts, employees, and the interested public is especially important to Raiffeisen International.
The internet and particularly the Company website play an important role in that. In this regard,
the website presents, among other things, the following continuously updated information:

® Annual and interim reports

® Company presentations

B Ad hoc announcements, press releases, and IR mailings

B Share price information and data on the Company’s stock

B Financial calendar with long advance notice of important dates

W Directors’ dealings

B Articles of association of Raiffeisen International

m Criteria of independence for Supervisory Board members

B Analysts’ estimates

B Forms for ordering printed materials and signing up for automatically distributed
“Investor Relations News” by e-mail
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Conflicts of interest

Members of Raiffeisen International’s Managing Board must disclose material personal interests
in transactions of the Company and Group enterprises and other conflicts of interest to the Super-
visory Board. They must also inform the other Managing Board members.

Managing Board members who perform management functions for other enterprises are obli-
gated to work towards achieving a fair balance of the interests of the enterprises involved.

If Supervisory Board members get into conflicts of interest, they must inform the Chairman of the
Supervisory Board of that without delay. If the Chairman gets into conflicts of interest, he must
disclose them to the Deputy Chairman without delay.

The Supervisory Board's consent is required for contracts between the Company and members of
the Supervisory Board that obligate the members to performance in relation to the Company or a
subsidiary (Section 228 (3) Commercial Code) apart from their activity in the Supervisory Board
for more than merely negligible compensation. That also applies to contracts with enterprises in
which a Supervisory Board member has a considerable economic interest. The Company did not
enter into any such contracts in 2008.

Accounting and financial statement auditing

The Raiffeisen International Group's accounting is performed according to the provisions of the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The annual financial statements of Raiffeisen
International are prepared according to the provisions of the Austrian Commercial Code (UGB).
The consolidated financial statements are published within the first three months of the financial
year following the reporting period, and interim reports at the latest 45 days after the end of the
respective reporting period.

The 2008 Annual General Meeting again appointed KPMG Austria GmbH, Wirtschaftspri-
fungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft, Vienna as auditor. The auditor appointed by the last
Annual General Meeting received compensation of € 27,524 for other services ordered by the
Company. For the current financial year, no consulting services have so far been agreed beyond
the previous year’s extent. The auditor confirms that it has been issued a certificate of a quality
assurance system and no reasons for exclusion or partiality exist. Besides preparing the legally
prescribed audit report and performing an auditor’s reporting duty, the auditor writes a manage-
ment letter to the Managing Board that also contains references to weaknesses in the Company.
The letter is brought to the attention of the Supervisory Board Chairman, who ensures that it is
dealt with in the Audit Committee and a report of that is made to the Supervisory Board.

MANAGING BOARD SUPERVISORY BOARD OVERVIEW INTERVIEW STOCK



Corporate responsibility Page 49

Corporate
responsibility

Raiffeisen International is committed to corporate responsibility
as a modern version of Friedrich Wilhelm Raiffeisen’s ideas
concerning corporate conduct. The starting point for his notion
was helping the economically disadvantaged by enabling them
to help themselves through cooperative organizations. This
linkage of economic activity with aspects of social welfare may
be understood as corporate responsibility, with assumption of
environmental responsibility likewise playing a vital role both
in the concept of corporate responsibility and for Raiffeisen
International

Raiffeisen International’s close link to the issue of corporate responsibility is also shown by the
gable cross, the trademark of the entire Raiffeisen Banking Group. It consists of two stylized horse's
heads crossed on the gable of a house. It is a traditional European symbol believed to protect a
house and its occupants from outside dangers and to ward off evil. As the Raiffeisen logo, it stands
for the social security that Raiffeisenbank members enjoy through their self-determined coopera-

tion. The gable cross is used around the world, and so too for Raiffeisen International’s branding.

Five core principles

To define today's interpretation of corporate responsibility based on Raiffeisen’s ideas and clearly
communicate it o the Group’s more than 63,000 employees in 17 markets, the concept has been
broken down into the following five principles:

m A future always needs a past

Raiffeisen International has its roots in a group of companies with a long tradition and strong
brand. This solid foundation of values with its focus on social welfare, created by Friedrich
Wilhelm Raiffeisen in the 19th century, has been adapted to the present and expanded. So,
corporate responsibility can now be equated with “doing business & la Raiffeisen.”

B We are here to stay

Raiffeisen International’s business activity on its 17 markets in Central and Eastern Europe has
an appreciable effect on their national economies. Aware that that also entails great respon-
sibility, Raiffeisen International aims at a long-term commitment with positive effects for the
region, such as stimulating growth through capital investment and employment.
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m Our clients’ success defines our own success

Raiffeisen International serves more than 14.7 million customers, including many small and
medium-sized businesses as well as large enterprises. In equity participations, the company
focuses on creating value for the long term and not siphoning off profits for the short term. Even
in crises, it strives to resolve difficulties jointly with the affected parties.

B The best become better with us

Raiffeisen International is aware of the especially intense competition for qualified employees
in Central and Eastern Europe. It therefore positions itself as an attractive employer by giving
employees extensive opportunities for education and training as well as room to develop their
skills in a pleasant working environment.

B A strong cultural mix

Raiffeisen International operates in 17 markets, each with their own identity and culture. That
the company appreciates those cultures may be seen, for example, in its sponsorship of local
traditions. The international composition of its more than 63,000-strong workforce also testi-
fies to the company’s openness to diversity.

Execution of the corporate responsibility concept is manifested in concrete behavior. An example
of assuming environmental responsibility connected with Raiffeisen International’s core business
is its financing of the Kavarna wind energy farm in Bulgaria, which has an annual output of
40 megawatts, by the Rctiffeisen—l_easing International subsididry in cooperation with Raiffeisen
Energy and Environment. By making this project possible, Raiffeisen International is contributing
to the construction and operation of an environment-friendly plant to exploit renewable energy

sources.

Another example of the successful combination of Raiffeisen International’s core business with
responsible conduct is the establishment of a training center for its employees in Ukraine. The
Financial Academy Raiffeisen Bank Aval (FARBA) helps the company pursue its goal of optimally
educating and training its employees to enhance their efficiency. It does so, on the one hand,
with the intention of promoting its core business. On the other hand, the education and training
also benefits the employees, since they can realize their potential - an important aspect for work
satisfaction and career opportunities.
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In addition to environmentally and socially responsible conduct directly related to core
business, Raiffeisen International is involved in achieving goals through donations and sponsoring.
It was, for example, the first private company to contribute considerably to financing the Albanian
government's project “To bring the Internet to every school”. It has thus made possible in the last
three years the creation of 12 computer areas in higher schools across Albania. Furthermore,
the H. Stepic CEE Charity, established by Raiffeisen International’'s CEQ, is working to help
children, teenagers, and young women in economically disadvantaged regions of Central and
Eastern Europe.

o
H.STEPIC .=y

ASSOCIATION TO SUPPORT CHARITY PROJECTS
IN CENTRAL AND EASTERN EUROPE

A comprehensive presentation of Raiffeisen International’s activities may be found in the
RZB Group's Corporate Responsibility Report published in March 2009. That report is also
available on Raiffeisen International’s website at www.ri.co.at — Investor Relations —
Financial Reports & Figures.
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General economic environment

Economic
downswing felt

Economic growth in the euro area slowed sig-
nificantly during 2008 and is likely to be only
about 0.8 per cent for the full year. Real GDP in
the euro area still grew by 2.6 per cent in 2007.
The countries of Central and Eastern Europe
held up comparatively well in the context of the
global economic downswing and the continuing
crisis on international financial markets in 2008.
According to current estimates, the reporting
period’s real GDP growth in the new EU member
states of Central Europe (Czech Republic, Hun-
gary, Poland, Slovakia, and Slovenia) came to
an average of 4.1 per cent. This decline against
the 5.9 per cent increase achieved in the preced-
ing year was largely in line with and attributable
to the growth slowdown in Western Europe.

Annual real GDP growth

Economic development in the Southeastern
European countries (Albania, Bosnia and Her-
zegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia, Romania, and Ser-
bia) showed continued high momentum in 2008
with average real GDP growth of 6.1 per cent
and resulted primarily from good harvests in the
agricultural sector, which had suffered in the
year before due to weather-related losses.

A slowdown was also registered in the Euro-
pean countries of the CIS (Belarus, Russia, and
Ukraine), where real GDP growth averaged
only 5.4 per cent in 2008 after 8.1 per cent
in the previous year. One major reason for this
was the decline of raw material prices from
about mid-year onward and the worsening situ-
ation of the local and international financial sec-
tor. However, the extreme rise of oil prices still
stimulated the Russian economy until mid-year.
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Inflation decline from

mid-2008

Inflation rates in Central and Eastern Europe
continued to climb in the first half of 2008, in
some cases significantly. In addition to an in-
crease of oil prices to record levels, a sharp
rise of food prices was responsible for that.
That was caused, on the one hand, by in-
creased world market prices and, on the other,
by weather-related crop failures in the region
in 2007. Another factor is that the proportion
of food in total consumer expenditures is sig-
nificantly higher in Central and Eastern Europe
than in Western Europe. A development in the
opposite direction began in the second half
of the year. The emerging global economic
slowdown ended speculation on further oil
price increases, and a good harvest in the
region simultaneously contributed to a visible
easing of food prices.

Despite this trend reversal around mid-year,
average inflation rates in Central and Eastern
Europe were above the preceding year's level,
in some cases significantly. The increase was
least pronounced in the Central European coun-
tries at 5.1 per cent (after 3.5 per centin 2007).
The Southeastern European countries registered
an increase to an average 8.6 per cent (after
5.0 per cent in the preceding year), with infla-
tion rates in Bulgaria (12.3 per cent) and Ser-
bia (12.8 per cent) in the double-digit range.
The increase in the CIS countries was even
greater, with the average inflation rate coming
to 15.1 per cent (after 9.4 per cent the previous
year). Ukraine registered the region’s highest
inflation rate at 25.2 per cent.

Burden due to
international financial
markets

The continuing crisis on international financial
markets initially peaked in September 2008
with the bankruptcy of US investment bank
Lehman Brothers. Extensive support of the
banking sector by governments and central
banks in the United States and Europe helped
temporarily stabilize the financial markets in
the final months of 2008. On the other hand,
a severe recession began to appear in the
United States and Western Europe.

This situation had an impact on economic ac-
tivity in Central and Eastern Europe by way of
significantly weakening Western European de-
mand for exports from the region and declining
copitol investments in the region. Moreover,
credit growth declined significantly in view of
the difficulty and high cost of obtaining exter-
nal funding. Speculation and capital outflows
forced Hungary and Ukraine to seek financial
support from the International Monetary Fund.
Hungary additionally obtained assistance from
the EU, which thus underscored its willingness
and ability to stand by its more vulnerable new
member states in financial distress. At the same
time, it represents an important signal to Roma-
nia and Bulgaria as well as the EU candidates
of Southeastern Europe, whose stability is of
great political importance for Europe.

Banking sector development in
Central and Eastern Europe

The aggregate assets of banks in the entire re-
gion of Central and Eastern Europe continued
to show increases in the first half of 2008,
though at a lower level than in the past few
years. If the available figures are projected to
the full year (no final figures were available
at the time this report was completed), assets

MANAGEMENT REPORT

SEGMENT REPORTS

of the banking sector in Central and Eastern
Europe increased about 10 per cent on a euro
basis in 2008. That represents a slowing of
growth by about two-thirds, after an average
increase of somewhat more than 30 per cent
had been registered in 2007.
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The decline of credit growth was less pronounced in countries where the relationship between
loans and deposits was balanced or came out in favor of deposits. The shortage and higher cost
of funding after the collapse of US investment bank Lehman Brothers slowed bank growth in
the region further in the second half of 2008. Increasing reluctance by banks to extend credit in
foreign currencies also played a significant role in this. Overall, deposit business gained increas-
ingly in importance, after having been less of an emphasis in recent years.

Personal loans in per cent of GDP vs. GDP per capita (at purchasing power parities)

Personal loans in per cent of GDP

M Eurozone

¥
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Note: Data as of end 2008, source: Thomson Financial Datastream, wiiw, Raiffeisen RESEARCH GDP per capita (PPP), in €

Performance and financials

Introduction and scope of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of Raiffeisen International are prepared in accordance with
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Raiffeisen International Bank-Holding
AG also prepares individual financial statements conforming to the Austrian Commercial Code
(UGB), which provide the formal basis of assessment for calculating dividend payments and taxes.
For more on the disclosures required by the UGB, please see the relevant sections of the notes to
this report. The majority of Raiffeisen International is held by Raiffeisen Zentralbank Osterreich
Aktiengesellschaft (RZB), which makes it part of the RZB Group. The stake held by RZB amounted
to about 70 per cent at the end of the year, and the rest of the shares were free float.

As of 31 December 2008, Raiffeisen International’s scope of consolidation comprised 131 Group
units, including network banks and leasing companies in 17 markets and a number of financial
companies and bank-related service pro-viders. For more information on changes in the scope of
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consolidation, please see the relevant section of the notes on page 214. Neither in the year under
review nor in the preceding year were there any material additions or disposals in the scope of
consolidation that would have impaired the comparability of the two periods.
Raiffeisen International has made use early of IFRS 8 in the present consolidated financial state-
ments. This standard lays out a new structure for segment reporting. Reporting is now based
solely on regional units. Further details may be found in the consolidated financial statements.
Executive summary
Profit from operating activities grows by almost 40 per cent
Despite an unfavorable market environment worldwide, Raiffeisen International achieved its best
result ever in 2008. Operating income for the full year increased by almost 40 per cent to
€ 2,247 million. Operating income for the fourth quarter of 2008 was 10 per cent above that of
the third quarter and was therefore higher than all previous quarters.
The table below gives an overview of the development of profit from operating activities:
Profit from operating activities on an annual basis
in € million 2008 2007 Change 2006
Net interest income 3,232 2,419 33.6% 1,764
Net fee and commission income 1,496 1,250 19.7% 933
Net trading income 168 128 31.1% 175
Other net operating income (16) (5) 212.2% (4)
Operating income 4,880 3,791 28.7% 2,868
Staff costs (1,276) (1,085) 17.6% (825)
Other administrative expenses (1,113) (877) 27.0% (688)
Depreciation/amortization/write-downs (244) (223) 9.4% (181)
General administrative expenses (2,633) (2,184) 20.6% (1,694)
Profit from operating activities 2,247 1,607 39.8% 1,174
Operating income up 29 per cent due to interest result
As in the preceding years, the driver of growth was net interest income, which rose by one-third to
€ 3,232 million. Both business divisions contributed to that with corporate customers up by 39 per
cent, and retail customers by 28 per cent. The regional emphasis was in the CIS, which registered
the largest increase at over 40 per cent. That raised the Group's interest margin again by 13 basis
points on an annual basis to 3.99 per cent. The share of net interest income in operating income
was 2 percentage points above the preceding year's level and amounted to 66 per cent.
Net fee and commission income grew by almost 20 per cent, or € 247 million, to € 1,496 million,
which represents a 31 per cent share of operating income. This solid growth was about equally
distributed among all regions, with Central and Southeastern Europe accounting for the largest
MANAGEMENT REPORT SEGMENT REPORTS CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Development of operating income

in € million

4,880

3%
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Il Net interest income
Net trading income
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[ Net fee and commission income
Other net operating icome

absolute totals. As in the past, payment transfer
business (plus 14 per cent) was the most im-
portant income component, with a 43 per cent
share of net commission income.

Net trading income was 31 per cent, or € 40
million, above the preceding year’s value and
amounted to € 168 million. That resulted in
a 3 per cent share of operating income. The
individual income components developed
very differently. While the result from interest-
related business came to minus € 88 million
due to the strong interest rate movements

Development of the cost/income ratio

in € million
63.5%
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triggered by the global financial crisis, profit
from currency-related business stood at

€ 258 million.

General administrative
expenses up 21 per cent

General administrative expenses grew in the
year under review by 21 per cent, or € 449
million, to € 2,633 million. In contrast to the
preceding year, other administrative expenses
rose by 27 per cent to € 1,113 million and
therefore more than staff costs did. Staff costs
grew by 18 per cent in 2008 to € 1,276 mil-
lion. The average number of employees rose by
11 per cent, or 5,904, to 61,454 and therefore
less significantly than in the preceding years.
At 21 per cent, Southeastern Europe showed
the largest increase.

Cost/income ratio improved
by 3.6 percentage points

General administrative expenses increased
by 21 per cent in the past year, significantly
less than operating income did at 29 per cent.
That had a positive effect on the cost/income
ratio, a key measure of bank efficiency that sets
operating expenses in relation to operating
income. It improved by 3.6 percentage points
from 57.6 to 54.0 per cent.

Profit at record level despite
fourth-quarter decline

Raiffeisen International achieved record earn-
ings in 2008. Profit before tax rose by 16 per
cent from € 1,238 million to € 1,429 million.
However, because of significantly higher pro-
visioning for impairment losses (plus 119 per
cent), this increase was lower than that of
operating profit. The main reason for that was
the significant slowing of economic activity in
Central and Eastern Europe, which did not af-
fect earnings until the fourth quarter of 2008.
Earnings before tax were 60 per cent lower
in the fourth quarter of 2008 than in the third
quarter because of higher risk provisioning
and the negative effect of a partly ineffective
capital hedge.
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Development of consolidated earnings on an annual basis

in € million 2008

2007

Change

2006’

Profit from operating activities 2,247

1,607

39.8%

1,174

Provisioning for impairment losses (780)

(357)

118.6%

(309)

Other profit/loss (38)

(13)

192.3%

26

Profit before tax 1,429

1,238

15.5%

891

Income taxes (351)

(264)

32.8%

(205)

Profit after tax 1,078

973

10.8%

686

Minority interests in profit (96)

(132)

(27.2)%

(92)

Consolidated profit 982

841

16.7%

594

! Excluding one-off effects due to the sale of Raiffeisenbank Ukraine and the minority stake in Bank TuranAlem in the amount of € 588 million.

Provisioning for impairment losses

more than doubled in 2008

Against the background of the g|obo| financial and economic crisis, from which the CEE countries
are not being spared, allocations to provisioning for impairment losses had to be raised sub-
stantially in 2008, and especially in the fourth quarter. Provisions were raised by 119 per cent,
or € 423 million, to € 780 million, and their increase was far above growth of business volume.
While individual provisions rose by 78 per cent, portfolio-related provisions went up 266 per
cent. Decreasing creditworthiness of borrowers and resulting lower internal and external ratings
were the reason for that. The risk/earnings ratio therefore climbed significantly from 14.8 to
24.1 per cent.

Just under two-thirds of provisioning for impairment losses (€ 507 million) was allocated for retail
customers, and the rest was mostly due to corporate customers (€ 269 million). The regional
emphasis of new provisioning for impairment losses was in the CIS with a share of 46 per cent, or
€ 356 million, which yields a risk/earnings ratio of 28 per cent for the region. Central Europe also
showed an increased need of provisioning, and new allocations there of € 265 million resulted
in a risk/earnings ratio of 26 per cent. At € 159 million, new allocations in Southeastern Europe
grew significantly from the preceding year's very low level, but the risk/earnings ratio was the
Group's lowest at 17 per cent.

Tax rate rises to 24.6 per cent

Income taxes increased by 33 per cent to € 351 million in 2008 and hence disproportionally
relative to profit before tax. The effective tax rate rose from 21.3 to 24.6 per cent. That was due
to the different distribution of profits. The effective tax rate was the highest in the CIS at 29 per
cent, while the lowest rate was registered in Southeastern Europe at 16 per cent.

Consolidated profit just under € 1 billion

Profit after tax grew by 11 per cent from € 973 million to € 1,078 million. That was primarily due
to a 40 per cent rise of operating income, which was partly offset, however, by higher income
taxes and significantly increased provisioning for impairment losses. Other profit/loss fell to minus
€ 38 million (2007: minus € 13 million) and included, among other things, net income/loss from
derivative financial instruments (minus € 20 million), but also realized and unrealized gains and
losses from financial investments (minus € 26 million).
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In contrast to profit after tax, minority interests
in profit declined by 27 per cent to € 96 mil-
lion. That was due to the different distribution
of earnings increases within the Group. After
deduction of those minority interests, the con-
solidated profit falling to Raiffeisen Internation-
al worked out to € 982 million. That represents
an increase on the preceding year of 17 per
cent, or € 141 million.

Earnings per share
increases to € 6.39

Earnings per share (EPS) calculated from
consolidated profit improved by € 0.59 from
€ 5.80 to € 6.39. The average number of
shares outstanding amounted to 153.6 million
in 2008. That number stood at 145.0 million
in 2007, because new shares from the capital
increase of October 2007 were only included
on a pro rata basis. The proposed dividend of
€ 0.93 per share is the same as the previous
year, and the payout ratio therefore stands at
14.6 per cent.

ROE of 22.0 per cent

The return on equity (ROE) before tax fell from
25.7 to 22.0 per cent. That was primarily due
to the underlying average equity, which was
35 per cent above the preceding year's level
at € 6,483 million in 2008 because of profit

Development of profit and
return on equity

in € million
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retention and the capital increase carried out
in the fourth quarter of 2007, which brought
in € 1,220 million. The consolidated ROE,
based on the capital allocable to Raiffeis-
en International shareholders, also fell by
2.7 percentage points to 17.4 per cent due to
the higher capital base.

Equity burdened by
currency devaluations

The effects of the global financial and econom-
ic crisis were felt in some CEE countries due
to the partly massive devaluation of local cur-
rencies against the euro, including especially
the Ukrainian hryvnia, which lost 46 per cent
on an annual basis. Double-digit percentage
declines were likewise registered by the Polish
zloty (minus 16 per cent), the Russian ruble
(minus 15 per cent), and the Romanian leu
and Serbian dinar (minus 12 per cent each).
The severe currency devaluation had a corre-
sponding effect on the equity denominated in
the respective local currencies and goodwill.
That resulted in a valuation loss of € 873 mil-
lion in the year under review. Altogether, valu-
ation gains and losses had negative effects on
equity in the amount of € 1,050 million.

Furthermore, against the background of the
against
the US$, the hedge for capital investments in

Ukrainian  currency’s  devaluation
Ukraine became partly ineffective and was
therefore recognized in the income statement
in October. A resulting charge of € 88 million

was made to earnings.

Currency-driven effect on
the balance sheet total

Compared with the preceding years, the bal-
ance sheet total of the Raiffeisen International
Group grew less strongly in the period under
review. It increased from € 72.7 billion to
€ 85.4 billion on an annual basis, which means
growth of 17 per cent, or € 12.7 billion. How-
ever, that figure includes losses of about € 5.6
billion resulting from the significant devaluation
of some CEE currencies in the fourth quarter.
Adjusting for those currency effects shows or-
ganic growth of one-fourth, or € 18.3 billion.
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As in the preceding years, the increase was
mainly due to growth of loans to customers
in 2008, which were up by 18 per cent, or
€ 8.5 billion, after provisioning.

Own funds excess cover
above 21 per cent

In 2008 Basel Il was adopted to calculate capi-
tal adequacy, this provides for a more compre-
hensive and risk-sensitive backing of business
with own funds. At the beginning of December,
RZB received approval for partial use of the In-
ternal Ratings-Based approach. As a sub-group
of RZB, Raiffeisen International can use this ap-
proach too. In the case of Raiffeisen Interna-
tional, the network banks in the Czech Republic,
Slovakia, and Hungary use the approach. For
the remaining Group units, risk-weighted assets
(credit risk) is calculated according to the Stan-
dardized Approach.

Detailed review of items in the
iIncome statement

Since no significant changes in the scope of
consolidation occurred in 2008, the compara-
bility of the reported figures with the preceding
year is not adversely affected. However, the
items of the income statement were influenced
more strongly than in the preceding years by
the fluctuations of some CEE currencies.

Net interest income

Net interest income grew in the year under re-
view by more than one-third, or € 813 million,
to € 3,232 million. The increase was greater
than that of the average balance sheet total at
29 per cent. The basis for it was an improve-
ment of the interest margin by 13 basis points to
3.99 per cent (calculated on the average bal-
ance sheet total). An expansion of the interest
margin was achieved in all regional segments,
but particularly in the CIS, where it increased
by 64 basis points. That had a corresponding
effect on net interest income in the CIS, which
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While the switch to Basel Il rules initially entailed
an additional requirement totaling about € 740
million for the Standard Approach, of which
operational risk accounted for € 440 million,
use of the Internal Ratings-Based approach low-
ered the amount by € 86 million. An own funds
requirement of about € 650 million therefore
resulted for the full year from applying Basel II.
Together with organic growth in 2008, that
caused the own funds requirement to rise by
34 per cent to € 5,767 million.
Influenced in particular by the negative effect
of currency translation, own funds only rose by
5 per cent to € 6,991 million. The core capi-
tal ratio based on total risk therefore fell by
2.4 percentage points fo 8.1 per cent, and the
own funds ratio fell by 2.7 percentage points to
9.7 per cent.
rose by 41 per cent to € 1,297 million. How-
ever, net interest income also grew significantly
in Central Europe (plus 25 per cent) and South-
eastern Europe (plus 29 per cent).
Development of the interest margin
4.0%
3.99%
—  3.5%
—  3.0%
—  2.5%
—  2.0%
—  15%
—  1.0%
—  0.5%
0.0%
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
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Driven mainly by volume, net interest income in the retail customers division increased by 28 per
cent to € 1,844 million and accounted for 57 per cent of total net interest income (minus 2 per-
centage points). The share of net interest income from the corporate customers division remained
constant at about 34 per cent, but the relative increase of 39 per cent was significantly greater
than that of retail business and was primarily due to improved margins.

Interest income grew by 34 per cent to € 6,183 million. Just under 80 per cent of that derived
from the most important balance sheet item, loans and advances to customers. Interest income
from that source rose by almost 39 per cent on annual comparison. A significant plus of 71 per
cent was also shown by interest income from balances with central banks. The net contribution of
interest income from derivatives stood at € 139 million.

Interest expenses increased by 35 per cent to € 2,951 million, which was somewhat greater than
the growth of interest income. In general, the more difficult funding situation became noticeable
for the Group toward the end of the year. Because of higher interest rates, expenses of € 1,583
million were incurred for customer deposits, which represents an increase of 34 per cent. On
the other hand, the balance sheet item only rose on average by 15 per cent. Interest expenses
for subordinated liabilities, needed mainly because of local supervisory regulations, climbed by
12 per cent from € 83 million to € 93 million.

Provisioning for impairment losses

Currency and interest rate developments in the fourth quarter had substantial effects on banks
operating in Central and Eastern Europe. Raiffeisen International did not escape their influence.
They affected the credit quality of customers, which ultimately led to a significant increase of pro-
visioning for impairment losses. Compared with the preceding year, new allocations to provision-
ing for impairment losses rose in 2008 by a net 119 per cent, or € 423 million, to € 780 million,
of which the fourth quarter accounted for more than half. The net provisioning ratio - based on
the risk-weighted assets of credit risk - therefore also rose by 48 basis points to 1.32 per cent.
The allocations still had a precautionary character in 2008, since the loss rate, i.e., the ratio of
loans written off to total lendings, fell by 1 basis point to 0.11 per cent.

The risk/earnings ratio - the ratio of provisioning for impairment losses to net interest income -
went up 9.3 percentage points in the period under review to 24.1 per cent.

Newly formed individual provisions rose by 78 per cent on the preceding year to € 502 million.
The increase was mostly registered in Central Europe, where provisions climbed by 204 per cent
to € 230 million. The focus of the increase was in Hungary (plus € 49 million) and Poland (plus
€ 39 million). In the CIS, provisioning rose by 37 per cent in 2008 to € 206 million, while provi-
sions for individual loans grew the least in Southeastern Europe with a plus of 19 per cent to €
67 million.

Net new allocations to portfolio-based provisions increased by 266 per cent to € 278 million
and therefore more strongly than individual provisions did. That reflects, in particular, the expecta-
tion of rising defaults in 2009 because of the economic situation and currency levels which both
started to deteriorate significantly in 2008. Only € 42 million and hence 11 per cent less was
allocated to portfolio-based provisions in Central Europe. Most of the portfolio-based provisions
were incurred in Southeastern Europe at € 86 million and especially in the CIS at € 151 million.
Of that, Russia accounted for € 81 million, and Ukraine for € 70 million.

Compared with non-performing loans, provisioning for impairment losses showed a smaller in-
crease, which is Why the ratio of provisioning for impairment losses to non—performing loans
declined by 13.0 percentage points to 92.2 per cent.

MANAGING BOARD SUPERVISORY BOARD OVERVIEW INTERVIEW STOCK
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Net fee and
commission income

Development of net fee and commission income
from bank services was very strong in 2008,
with a plus of 20 per cent, or € 247 million, to
€ 1,496 million.

In 2008, Raiffeisen International expanded the
volume and number of transactions executed,
particularly in the areas of payment transfers,
loans, and third party services.

The most important earnings contribution came
from payment transfer business with a share of
43 per cent. Income from that rose altogether
by 14 per cent to € 643 million. The strongest
regional increase was in Central Europe at
32 per cent.

In foreign currency and precious-metals busi-
ness, the Group earned € 505 million and
therefore 39 per cent more than in the preced-
ing year. The increases came primarily from
Central Europe and Russia. With a 34 per cent
share, foreign exchange and notes/coins busi-
ness made the second-largest contribution to
net commission income.

In loan and guarantee business, net fee and
commission income rose by 27 per cent to
€ 201 million. On the other hand, commissions
from securities business remained 10 per cent
below the preceding year's level.

Net trading income

Net trading income achieved an increase of
31 per cent to € 168 million in 2008 thanks to
positive valuation results from currency transac-
tions. That plus was realized despite a special
effect related to the ineffectiveness of a capital
hedge. Entered into in US$ for the investment in
the Group's Ukrainian units, the capital hedge
had to be terminated at the end of October
due to the severe devaluation of the Ukrainian
hryvnia. Due to the ineffectiveness, the loss
for this part of the hedge of minus € 88 mil-
lion had to be recognized in earnings. About
36 per cent of net trading income derived
from Southeastern Europe, while the CIS share
remained nearly the same at 31 per cent. In
Central Europe, earnings were burdened by
valuation losses on securities, so the region’s
share shrank to 33 per cent.
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foreign exchange transactions for hedging measures. Raiffeisen Bank Aval in Ukraine and Raiff-
eisen Bank in Romania made substantial contributions to this result of € 47 million and € 44 mil-
lion, respectively. The valuation of the foreign exchange positions after the severe devaluations of
the Ukrainian hryvnia and Romanian leu was responsible for that.

Net trading income from interest rate and credit products normally plays a minor role for Raiff-
eisen International, because the limits approved by management are relatively small and only
used selectively. However, individual network banks are being forced to hold securities - primar-
ily government bonds - for the purpose of investing surplus liquidity and sometimes also in order
to comply with statutory regulations. Because of the severe interest rate fluctuations in the second
half of 2008, a loss resulted in this item of € 88 million after a profit of € 27 million in the year
before. The largest valuation losses were registered in the CIS (particularly Russia) at € 50 million
and in Central Europe (particularly the Czech Republic and Hungary) at € 27 million. In South-
eastern Europe the loss was € 11 million.

Net trading income from stock transactions amounted to minus € 1 million and therefore did not
continue the pattern of the preceding year’s positive result of € 9 million.

Net income from derivatives

Net income from derivatives improved by € 10 million in the year under review, amounting to
minus € 20 million in 2008 after minus € 30 million in the preceding year.

The negative result from other derivative instruments included in this item was greatly reduced in
2008 (minus € 16 million versus minus € 34 million in the preceding year). The main reason was
that cash flow hedge accounting was implemented in Russia in the course of the year. Interest
rate swaps were used to hedge interest rate risk from variable-rate liabilities, and changes in their
market value were initially recorded in equity without affecting income. They are charged to the
income statement only if the cash flow hedge becomes at least partly ineffective. Moreover, valu-
ation losses from interest rate swaps in the amount of € 26 million had negatively influenced the
earnings of the Russian Raiffeisenbank in the preceding year.

Net income from financial investments

Net income from financial investments amounted to minus € 26 million in the past year after
minus € 9 million in the year before. After good development in the first three quarters of 2008,
the financial market turmoil adversely affected valuation results on securities in the fourth quarter.

Net income from securities at fair value through profit and loss, which consists of valuation
results and net proceeds from disposals, amounted to minus € 47 million. Due to the situation on
the financial markets, write-downs were made in the amount of € 45 million on predominantly
fixed-income debt instruments of public-sector entities, which also made up the maijority of total
securities. Losses of € 2 million resulted from the sale of securities.

Net income from financial investments held to maturity turned out slightly negative. On the other
hand, net income from equity participations developed positively and amounted to € 21 million.
It includes net proceeds from sales of plus € 24 million and net valuations of minus € 3 million. The
sale of a 15 per cent stake in Raiffeisen stavebni sporitelna, a.s., a Prague-based building society
previously valued at equity, generated € 11 million. The sale of Raiffeisen stambena stedionica
d.d., a Zagreb-based building society, led to a loss on disposal of € 2 million. The divestment of
other participations yielded the Group a positive result of € 15 million.
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General
administrative
expenses

General administrative expenses grew in the
year under review by 21 per cent, or € 449
million, to € 2,633 million. Since operating in-
come rose by 29 per cent and therefore more
strongly than general administrative expenses
did, the cost/income ratio improved signifi-
cantly. The ratio, which represents a bank’s
cost efficiency, decreased by 3.6 percentage
points on the preceding year (57.6 per cent) to
54.0 per cent.

At 48 per cent, staff costs were the largest
share of general administrative expenses in
2008. Compared with the preceding year,
it grew by 18 per cent, or € 191 million, to
€ 1,276 million, of which wages and salaries
accounted for 78 per cent, social security
costs and staff-related taxes for 18 per cent,
and voluntary social expenses, expenses on
severance payments and retirement benefits,
and expenses on the Share Incentive Program
for 4 per cent. The strongest regional increases
of staff costs were in the CIS and Southeastern
Europe at 19 per cent each, followed by Cen-
tral Europe at 15 per cent.

The Group's average number of employees
(expressed as fulltime equivalents) grew by
11 per cent, or 5,904, to 61,454. The region
with the largest increases was Southeastern Eu-
rope, where the average number of employees
rose by 21 per cent, or 3,218. The correspond-
ing number in Central Europe increased by 10
per cent, or 1,186, and in the CIS by only 5
per cent, or 1,468. Operating income per em-
ployee developed well, rising from € 68,000
to € 79,000.

With a plus of 27 per cent, or € 237 million, to
€ 1,113 million, other administrative expenses
registered a greater increase than that of staff
costs. The largest expense items were premises
at € 314 million (plus 38 per cent), IT at € 153
million (plus 33 per cent), advertising at € 133
million (plus 17 per cent), and legal/consulting
costs at € 108 million (plus 56 per cent). The
cost of premises increased the most in the CIS
at plus 52 per cent due to higher rents, while
the corresponding figure rose by 32 per cent
in Southeastern Europe and by 28 per cent in
Central Europe.
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The number of business outlets amounted to 3,231 at the end of the year. That means a net
increase of 216 outlets compared with the preceding year. The new outlets were opened mainly
in Southeastern Europe (212), and particularly in Romania (121) and Bulgaria (46). In the CIS,
35 branches were closed on balance due to further location optimization measures.

Depreciation/amortization/write-downs on tangible and intangible assets rose on annual
comparison by 9 per cent, or € 21 million, to € 244 million. Tangible assets accounted for
€ 149 million of that, intangible assets for € 68 million, assets from operating leasing business for
€ 27 million.

Other net operating income

Other net operating income worsened in 2008 from minus € 5 million in the preceding year
to minus € 16 million. Various items are included in this. Revenues and expenses from various
non-banking activities decreased by 93 per cent, or € 16 million, to € 1 million. On the other
hand, the result from operating leasing grew by 74 per cent, or € 16 million, to € 38 million.
Operating leasing business is mainly conducted in Croatia and to a lesser extent in Poland,
Serbia, and the Czech Republic.

Due to the seftlement of litigation, it was possible to release provisions in Slovakia and Poland.
That resulted in net income from other provisions of € 4 million (2007: minus € 17 million). Other
taxes not dependent on income increased by 35 per cent to € 58 million.

Finally, further income of € 4 million resulted from release of negative goodwill of Romanian
securities service provider Raiffeisen Capital & Investment S.A., Bucharest. In the preceding year,
similar initial consolidation effects in the amount of € 13 million had resulted from integrating
three asset management companies.

Income from disposal of Group assets

Seven subsidiaries were deconsolidated in 2008, which generated income of € 8 million. The
divestments of Hungarian project companies brought in € 7 million. Of that, the largest contribu-
tion to earnings amounting to € 5 million came from the sale of SCTD Kondorosi ut Kft., Budapest,
in May 2008. The divestment of two Czech project companies furthermore yielded a positive re-
sult totaling € 1 million. In the preceding year, income from disposal of Group assets amounted to
€ 27 million. The sale of energy generating company SINESCO Energiaszolgdltaté Kft., Buda-
pest, and real estate project company Arena Corner Ingatlanfejleszté Kft., Budapest, made the
main contributions to income amounting to € 11 million and € 15 million, respectively.
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Balance sheet
The balance sheet total of the Raiffeisen In-  Structure of balance sheet assets
ternational Group amounted to € 85.4 bil- in €billion
lion as of 31 December 2008 and therefore es.a — 90
increased by 17.4 per cent, or € 12.7 billion,
on the preceding year's comparable value of 727 13% — 80
€ 72.7 billion. That was mainly due to organic o N
growth, additions and disposals in the scope
of consolidation in the year under review did — 60
not significantly impact the consolidated bal- s
ance sheet total. On the other hand, currency
effects, i.e., net effects arising from the changes 40
in the exchange rates of CEE currencies, turned
out to be significant, especially in the last few — %
months of the year. Hardest hit was the Ukrai-  —— — 20
nian hryvnia, which devalued against the euro
by 46 per cent in the course of the year. De- — 0
valuations of 15 per cent and 16 per cent were Lz 5% 0
also registered against the Russian rouble and 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
the Polish zloty, respectively. Adjusted for these B Loans and advances to banks
currency effects, the Group's organic balance .;:::i::j °dv°'gc'::°ucs:s;;mers (net)
sheet growth came to about 25 per cent, or
€ 18.3 billion.
credit assets in the CIS. A higher percentage
Assei'S plus of 51 per cent was registered in Southeast-
ern Europe, but it was at a much lower absolute
On the asset side, growth of the balance sheet  level.
total is determined by loans and advances to
customers, the main growth driver in the Raiff- Loans and advances to banks fell by 18 per
eisen International Group. They rose by 19 per  cent and amounted to € 9 billion at the end of
cent, or € 9 billion, to a total of € 579 billion  2008. That decline is attributable to a reduc-
in 2008. After deduction of provisioning for im-  tion of deposits at commercial banks by 20 per
pairment losses, loans and advances to custom-  cent, or € 1.3 billion, and of deposits at cen-
ers made up an unchanged nearly two-thirds  tral banks by 16 per cent, or € 0.7 billion. The
share of balance sheet assets. The ratio of cus-  item’s share of balance sheet assets dropped
tomer loans to customer deposits increased by by 4 percentage points to 11 per cent.
10 percentage points to 131 per cent.
Loans to corporate customers (excluding micro
businesses) totaled € 34.6 billion at year's Structure of loans and advances to customers
end. That means an increase of 15 per cent, or
€ 4.4 billion. Loans to retail customers regis-
tered a significantly larger increase of 26 per  public sector
cent, or € 4.5 billion, to € 22.1 billion. 2 (+/-0PP)
Due to the worsened economic conditions,
more provisions were made for loan defaults in ;;Z/::i i;ii;;dwls Corporate
2008. Total provisioning for impairment losses 51% (- 1PP)
therefore rose Group-wide by 49 per cent, or
€ 0.5 billion, to € 1.6 billion. In absolute terms,
the increase of provisioning for impairment  Ssmalland
losses was the highest at € 220 million for T;Zi‘(’:" ]Si;:;‘ enferprises
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The total amount of securities came to € 8.9 bil-
lion at the end of the year, of which 80 per cent
was invested in fixed-income securities. Com-
pared with the preceding year, those increased
by 28 per cent, or € 1.9 billion. The securities
accounted for a 10 per cent share of the bal-
ance sheet total.

In the second half of 2008, a new IFRS rule
was adopted by the International Accounting
Standards Board and the EU, which permits
a reclassification of securities held for trad-
ing into securities held-to-maturity. Only little
use was made of that in the Group. In the year
under review, securities totaling € 382 million
were reclassified from trading assets into the
held-to-maturity category. That had a positive
effect of € 13 million in the income statement.

The share of other assets rose by 3 percent-
age points on the preceding year to 13 per
cent. That is primarily due to the increase of
the cash reserve, including particularly positive
balances at central banks.

Liabilities

The structure of the Group's liabilities showed
a shift at the end of 2008 from deposits from
customers to deposits from banks. Deposits
from customers continued to dominate the

Structure of balance sheet liabilities
and equity

in € billion
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OVERVIEW

liability side of the balance sheet with a share
of 52 per cent, but their share of consolidated
assets declined by 4 percentage points. On
the other hand, deposits from banks increased
by 4 percentage points to 31 per cent of the
consolidated balance sheet total. The rest con-
sisted of own funds at 9 per cent and other
liabilities at 8 per cent (plus 2 percentage
points).

Deposits from customers rose altogether by
9 per cent, or € 3.7 billion, to € 44.2 billion.
At € 3.4 billion, the increase in Central Europe
was the largest. Deposits from retail customers
went up 11 per cent to € 23.2 billion, while
deposits from corporate customers grew by
3 per cent to € 18.4 billion.

The significant increase in deposits from banks
by € 6.3 billion to € 26.2 billion is mainly at-
tributable to expansion of long-term financing.
Funding arrangements by way of international
commercial banks and supranational institu-
tions were expanded by 25 per cent to € 24.9
billion. Money market dealings were down by
5 per cent to € 6 billion as of the balance sheet
date. The share of funding to banks through the
RZB Group amounted to about 61 per cent at
the end of 2008.

The share of other liabilities rose by 2 per-
centage points to 8 per cent. The liabilities
evidenced by paper included in this item,
i.e., funding from the capital market in the
framework of debt security issues, grew by
46 per cent to € 3.4 billion. The share of the
consolidated balance sheet total attributable
to own funds, which consist of equity and
subordinated capital, decreased to 9 per
cent (minus 2 percentage points). The subor-
dinated capital included in own funds rose
by 10 per cent to € 1.7 billion due to new
issues at individual network banks. Of those
additional own funds, mainly needed for lo-
cal regulatory purposes of subsidiary banks,
85 per cent were financed by the RZB Group,
and 15 per cent by supranational institutions.
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Equity

Equity on the
balance sheet

Raiffeisen International’s balance sheet equity
including consolidated profit and minority in-
terests amounted to € 6,518 million at the end
of the year. Despite consolidated profit includ-
ing minority interests of € 1,078 million, equity
remained below the preceding year's level by
2 per cent, mainly due fo currency devaluations.

Paid-in capital, which consists of subscribed
capital and capital reserves, remained nearly
unchanged at € 3,037 million. The effects
of share buy-backs and of amounts from the
Share Incentive Program booked directly to
equity reduced paid-in capital by € 20 million.

Earned capital, which consists of consolidat-
ed profit and retained earnings, declined by
€ 211 million to € 2,559 million. Consolidated
profit rose by 17 per cent to € 982 million.
However, the development of currency rates
negatively influenced retained earnings, es-
pecially in the second half of the year. The
changes in the exchange rates of some CEE
currencies against the euro (minus € 857 mil-
lion) and related capital hedging measures
(minus € 66 million) caused retained earnings
to decrease by € 923 million. The currency dif-
ferences arising from using different currency
rates for the income statement and the balance
sheet reduced retained earnings by € 107 mil-
lion. Cash flow hedge accounting was set up in
Russia to hedge variable interest rate positions.
Changes in the market value of hedging instru-
ments had an impact on retained earnings in
the amount of minus € 43 million. The dividend
distribution for 2007 in the amount of € 0.93
per share, or a total payout of € 143 million,
likewise reduced retained earnings.

Minority interests rose by 16 per cent, or
€ 128 million, to € 923 million. That increase
resulted from a current annual result of
€96 million, from capital contributions in various
Group units of € 87 million, and from changes
of share in the scope of consolidation of

€ 7 million. Set against that as reducing fac-
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tors were dividend distributions to outside
share-holders of Group units in the amount of
€ 47 million and currency differences of minus
€ 16 million.

Equity according
to the Austrian
Banking Act

Raiffeisen International is not a separate bank-
ing group within the meaning of the Austrian
Banking Act (BWG) and therefore is not itself
subject as a group to the regulatory provisions
for banks. Since the beginning of 2008, the
solvency calculation has been performed in
accordance with Basel Il. Credit risk and mar-
ket risk are calculated according to the Stan-
dardized Approach pursuant to Section 22 of
the BWG. In December 2008, the financial
market supervisory authority authorized RZB
to calculate the risk-weighted assets (credit
risk), in certain countries for certain product
groups, according to the Internal Ratings-Based
(IRB) approach. For Raiffeisen International,
that concerned the network banks in Slova-
kia, the Czech Republic, and Hungary, which
have been calculating loans and advances to
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banks, corporates and sovereigns according to the IRB approach since 1 December 2008. The
following consolidated figures have been calculated according to the provisions of the BWG and
are accounted for within the scope of the RZB-Kreditinstitutsgruppe.

Consolidated own funds pursuant to the BWG amounted to € 6,992 million at the end of 2008
(2007: € 6,684 million). Core capital rose by € 168 million to € 5,860 million. It was positively
influenced primarily by the reporting year’s profits. Set against that were negative effects on core
capital of about € 692 million from changes in the exchange rates of currencies in Central Europe
and the CIS.

Additional own funds showed an increase of 9 per cent, or € 89 million, to € 1,046 million. That
primarily concerned subordinated capital (plus € 100 million). Needed mostly because of local
supervisory regulations, this subordinated capital was financed for the most part by RZB.

Set against own funds was an own funds requirement pursuant to the BWG of € 5,767 million,
which was above the preceding year’s level by 34 per cent, or € 1,450 million, due to strong ex-
pansion and the switch to Basel Il. Excess cover amounted to 21.2 per cent, or € 1,225 million, at
the end of the year. In particular, the own funds requirement consists of requirements for credit risk
(€ 4,831 million), market risk (€ 152 million), operational risk (€ 440 million), and open foreign
exchange positions (€ 343 million).

The core capital ratio based on credit risk amounted to 9.7 per cent (minus 1.7 percentage
points). The core capital ratio based on total risk-weighted assets yielded a value of 8.1 per cent
at year's end (minus 2.4 percentage points). The own funds ratio decreased by 2.7 percentage
points to 9.7 per cent compared with the preceding year’s value, which was still calculated on
the basis of Basel | at 12.4 per cent.

Funding

Refinancing markets under pressure

Banks typically refinance their operations with their own funds and customer deposits or by way
of other external sources. The latter is known as wholesale funding and is performed partly by
way of the interbank market. The effects of the financial crisis became especially evident there in
2008, as the loss of banks’ confidence in one another inhibited mutual lending.

The loss of confidence caused the wholesale funding markets to dry up to an unprecedented ex-
tentin September 2008, which was reflected in a sharp rise of refinancing costs, especially in the
fourth quarter. The spread on senior bank bonds increased from 42 basis points at the beginning
of the year to 219 basis points at the end of 2008. In the same period, the price of senior bank
credit default swaps rose from 45 basis points to 119 basis points.

This development affected refinancing for the entire banking sector. The situation eased slightly
at the end of the year, however, thanks to capital injections and state guarantees as well as re-
peated key interest rate cuts by the ECB in the fourth quarter of 2008.
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Measures to optimize
refinancing

In view of the difficult market environment,
targeted use was made of the Group's advan-
tages, and financing activities were bundled
to a greater extent. Cooperation was intensi-
fied between Raiffeisen International (Treasury
Coordination), RZB (Treasury & Global Mar-
kets), and the network banks in preparing
structured treasury products and meeting
wholesale funding needs. Raiffeisen Interna-
tional and RZB carried out a liquidity manage-
ment project and set up a liquidity committee in
the first half of 2008. In the middle of the year,
an international sales network was established
between RZB and the network banks, which
now serves as a virtual platform for joint activi-
ties in development, placement, and trading of
financial market products.

First use was made in the reporting period by
a network bank of the opportunity to set up
a Eurobond program. ZAO Raiffeisenbank
Moscow registered a Euro Medium-Term Note
(EMTN) program in the amount of US$ 5 bil-
lion in February 2008. This program is to be
used as soon as market conditions permit.
Among the syndications completed in 2008
for funding the network banks, a syndication
loan to Raiffeisenbank Moscow in the amount
of US$ 1 billion deserves special mention. It
is the largest refinancing transaction of a Raif-
feisen International network bank to date.
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Solid funding sources

Because of the difficulties in the wholesale sec-
tor, refinancing by way of traditional deposit-
gathering business came to the fore in the
reporting period. In all Raiffeisen International
network banks, efforts were increased to gather
deposits from both corporate and retail cus-
tomers, supported by the introduction of new
products. The effects of these measures unfold-
ed particularly in the second half of 2008 and
contributed to currency-adjusted growth.

Part of Raiffeisen International’s funding needs
in the last four months of 2008 were met by
mostly medium-term loans from RZB, which
derived partly from funds provided by Oester-
reichische Kontrollbank.

Supranational institutions such as the EBRD
and the IFC, with which close relations exist
due to Raiffeisen International’s involvement
in Central and Eastern Europe, play a role in
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its refinancing. The task of these institutions lies essentially in promoting the region’s economic
development by establishing and expanding a functioning banking and financial system. Among
other things, they make financial resources available for that purpose. The Raiffeisen International
Group fulfills all the prerequisites for distribution of such supranational credit to customers in the
segment of small and medium-sized businesses. The importance of supranational institutions for
Raiffeisen International’s network is underscored by a refinancing total of € 1.4 billion outstand-
ing at year's end, granted primarily on a long-term basis. A further intensification of this coopera-
tion appears likely in 2009, especially in view of the financial market environment.

Raiffeisen International’s funding has been based on several pillars for years. Customer deposits
represented the largest share of that at 59 per cent, or € 44.2 billion, as of year's end. Wholesale
funding contributed 39 per cent, or € 29.6 billion, of which 59 per cent derived from RZB.

The further development of international financing possibilities for the region of Central and
Eastern Europe greatly depends on the successful resumption of issuing activity. The refinancing
structure of the Raiffeisen International Group will be shaped in 2009, in addition to deposits,
by the possibilities of refinancing through RZB, supranational institutions, and eventually its main
bank partners.

Risk management

Recognizing, quantifying, assessing, and actively controlling risks form an important core expertise
of banks. Raiffeisen International has constantly developed its risk management in the past years,
adapting it fo the steadily changing environment.

Setting risk policy for the Raiffeisen International Group is one of the Managing Board's key func-
tions. Risk and return are balanced against each other and managed for both the corporate and
retail customer divisions. That was done very intensively in the second half of 2008 in particular,
given the worsening financial crisis and likely effects on the real economy.

Among numerous other activities in risk management last year, applying Basel Il in the entire Group
was at the forefront. Raiffeisen International still uses the Standardized Approach to determine the
amount of capital to be held in reserve according to Basel Il regulations. As of 1 December 2008
the network banks in Slovakia, the Czech Republic, and Hungary were granted the permission by
the regulatory authority to calculate credit risk of corporates, banks, and sovereigns according to
IRB (internal ratings based approach). It is planned to move forward with the introduction of the
IRB approach in the corporate customer division in 2009 and to begin introducing the Advanced
IRB approach in the retail customer division.

For Raiffeisen International, using the IRB and Advanced IRB approaches has the advantage that
portfolio risks can be quantified even more accurately and the risk can be managed more ef-
fectively. The supervisory body honors this approach as a rule, with lower equity requirements in
comparison to the standard approach.

In the following an overview is given of the most important activities in retail and corporate risk
management in the last year and the focus for the current year. More information about risk man-
agement may be found in the notes to the consolidated financial statements beginning on p. 175.
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Retail risk management

For private individuals and small businesses Raiffeisen International focused its risk management
activities in 2008 on the following main areas:

u Deve|oping the genero| risk management system

B Improving efficiency and widening functional responsibilities

m Continuing education of the risk management staff

B Preparing the introduction of the Basel Il Advanced IRB approach

B Improving the reporting system, portfolio management, capital management tools,
and data quality

B Expanding fraud management and loan servicing

m Adaption of credit risk guidelines for all network banks taking into account
current market conditions

B Develop rating and scoring tools for use in loan decisions

In addition to these points, attention was focused on standardizing the range of services for
private individuals and small businesses in cooperation with those responsible for the products.
Almost 30 products or product groups throughout the network were thoroughly reviewed last
year from the standpoint of risk. In the process, price structures in the various portfolios were also
optimized.

Moreover, lending guidelines were reviewed and adjusted at regular intervals to cushion or mini-
mize negative effects of the financial crisis. A package of measures recently developed for that
purpose includes, among other things, higher rating requirements for customers, shorter loan
terms, restrictions on lending in foreign currencies, especially Swiss francs, more cautious evalu-
ation of customer income situations, and more selective lending to customers in certain business
sectors.

Also, more training was offered last year on the topic of dealing with retail risks. The risk manage-
ment teams of the network banks received further training in the framework of several extensive
courses and workshops. Training sessions were held on developing scorecards for micro-compa-
nies, reporting, portfolio management, loan servicing, and fraud management.

Uniform Group-wide risk management system

The set of risk management tools introduced in 2006 was expanded in 2007 and 2008 into a set
of standardized evaluation and planning instruments for the Group. All existing risk management
standards, Basel Il requirements, intra-Group principles and guidelines, and a number of best
practice approaches now flow into the system that was developed further in 2008.

As a result, the more developed instruments form a standardized system with whose help all risks
arising from the portfolios of the network banks and leasing companies can be reviewed and
assessed.

The practical implementation of the system is based on five risk emphases: application and sign-

ing, portfolio management, fraud management, customer relationship management, and loan
servicing.
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In the area of private individuals and small businesses, most risk management activities were
already conducted in accordance with the more developed instruments in 2008.

Improvement in signing and portfolio management

Risk measurement and forecasting processes were further adjusted to changed market conditions
in 2008. Significant improvements were achieved in risk assessment both at contract signing and
during the term of loans. With the introduction of the further standardized lending practices, port-
folios can be centrally controlled and optimized across the entire network. Furthermore, 40 new
scorecards were developed for the application process and for the payment behavior of private
individuals. Also, 14 new or revised scorecards for micro-companies were introduced.

A method was developed in the fourth quarter for adjusting the value of loans to small busi-
nesses that are bundled together in portfolios. Furthermore, Raiffeisen International initiated a
Group-wide project to improve the forecasting power of the IRB rating model relevant for small
businesses.

The second phase of a project to assess the quality of real estate and its revaluation in the entire
network was also successfully completed. The result was a series of process improvements at the
network banks and uniform minimum requirements, which have been implemented Group-wide
since the beginning of 2009.
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Fraud management and loan servicing strengthened

Efforts to combat credit fraud were intensified within the entire Group in 2008. New standards for
detecting and dealing with cases of fraud were defined and implemented for the entire Group.
In support, a Group-wide workshop was held that offered the opportunity to exchange ideas
and experience. That not only heightened awareness of credit fraud among the responsible staff
members, but also improved prevention, detection, and investigation of these cases.

There was also regular exchange of ideas in the area of credit servicing to optimize processes
within the Group, accompanied by workshops, training sessions, and an in-house competition
throughout the network, resulting in significantly increased efficiency in this area.

Expansion of retail risk management

The introduction of Basel Il in the retail division is proceeding according to plan. Some concepts
have been updated based on comments by supervisory authorities and initial experience with
their application. Several network banks in Central and Eastern Europe are already in the launch
phase of projects to introduce the Advanced IRB approach.

Further development of retail risk management is also planned for 2009. The negative effects of
the significantly more difficult market environment are to be counteracted by means of tightened
portfolio management and stricter lending criteria.

Raiffeisen International has already invested a great deal in the platform for risk measurement,
the reporting related to it, and the improvement of data quality. The new platform for managing
retail risk is now to be put into action in 2009. Its use is expected to contribute considerably to
innovative and modern modeling of credit risks in the future.

Use of even more sophisticated scorecards, for measuring the loss-given-default ratio, and im-
provement of the model for simulating foreign currency risks are also planned for 2009. Further
models, e.g., to control economic capital required for intra-bank purposes or to perform stress
tests at the macro level, are to be available in the first half of 2009.

In continuation of the activities of 2008, it is also planned to further adapt the concept concerning
portfolio valuation adjustment and implement minimum standards for real estate valuation and re-
valuation (third pillar of Basel l) in the entire Group by the end of 2009. Moreover, the efficiency
of loan servicing is to be increased, and staff and technical capacities expanded.

Corporate risk management

Two large topics dominated activities in corporate risk management last year. The first involved
constant development of risk management and area-wide implementation of Basel II. The second
arose from the effects of the financial crisis, especially in the second half of the year, which made
it necessary to adjust lending guidelines to the changed market environment.

Lending guidelines adjusted to market environment

Thanks to ongoing portfolio stress tests, Raiffeisen International’s risk management is also well-
prepared in the corporate customer business for the effects of the expected economic slowdown
in Eastern Europe. A comprehensive adjustment of lending policy resulted from the analyses and
stress scenarios prepared in the framework of those tests. Lending guidelines were made stricter,
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particularly for borrowers in cyclical sectors such as the construction and transportation industries.
Attention was given in that connection to reducing unsecured lines, lowering lending limits, raising
minimum requirements regarding loan repayment ability, and generally intensifying loan-related
control and monitoring. In particular, lending standards were raised appreciably for foreign cur-
rency loans, and hence new lending in foreign currencies decreased significantly. In the area
of real estate finance, Raiffeisen International od]usted its |ending standards in cooperation with
international experts and trend researchers. The changes in lending practices were made in accor-
dance with the risk profiles of the respective national economies in which Raiffeisen International
is represented in the network units.

Despite all these changes, however, expansion and strengthening of business relationships with
long-standing customers continues to be at the fore of Raiffeisen International’s lending policy.

Continuous development of risk management

To advance development of risk management, the credit quality management team established a
functional development planning process that subjects overall risk management to multiple-year
planning. The functional development plan comprises all aspects of risk organization, such as risk
functionalities, risk team strengths, risk processes, risk initiatives, and IT projects and constitutes in
a structured form the medium-term plans of the chief risk officer worked out at the national level.

In a joint effort with the external consultant who also contributed to structuring the process itself,
the results of the functional development plan were centrally evaluated. On that basis, the plan
was harmonized and approved. Functional development planning and the measures derived
from it are now an important component in the ongoing development and strengthening of risk
functionality within Raiffeisen International.

Status of Basel Il implementation

Uniform process and valuation methods are the declared goal of all Raiffeisen International ac-
tivities in the areas of Basel Il and data quality management.

As in previous years, consistent and area-wide realization of Basel Il was again one of Raiffeisen
International’s most important risk management projects in 2008. The goals went far beyond im-
plementing methods of measuring credit risk for regulatory purposes. The key pillars of the credit
management process, i.e., measurement and management of risks, were continuously developed
and adapted to international quality benchmarks.

In cooperation with RZB, Raiffeisen International sub]ected itself in 2008 to the demonding IRB
approval process. One of the greatest challenges was to meet the requirements of quite various
supervisory authorities in a relatively short time. Thanks to the regulators’ constructive approach
and great effort on the part of the Basel Il team, the approval process was successfully completed
for the first network banks. Those units are now planning to apply for the Advanced IRB approval
process for the retail portfolio in 2009.

The network banks in Croatia and Romania will undergo the Foundation IRB approval process for
the non-retail portfolio in 2009 pursuant to the Group-wide implementation plan. Furthermore,
IRB preparations for all other units are moving forward. Parallel to that, Basel Il activities in Russia
and Ukraine continue to have highest priority.

Raiffeisen International supported and coordinated the local project teams with a special center
for excellence to ensure standardized calculation of risk assets in compliance with Austrian legal
requirements and local options.
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Data quality management

Data quality management is also an important aspect of implementing Basel Il. The quality
of data is reviewed on a monthly basis based on centrally developed indicators. Any need-
ed corrections are made immediately. In addition, deficiencies in data quality are proactively
avoided by continuously optimizing credit processes both in the central office and for the local
portfolios in the network units.

Operations and IT

Raiffeisen International’s priorities in the area of operations and IT in 2008 were to introduce
and develop modern software solutions that take account of business growth and rising customer
expectations, on the one hand, and to strive consistently to utilize opportunities for cost synergy
and enhance the efficiency of all processes, on the other.

IT

Considering the constantly increasing requirements and volumes of retail business, the search for
a modern, scalable core banking system was a key emphasis in the area of IT. After a thorough
evaluation, Raiffeisen International selected the System Finacle from Infosys, which is now to be
used in an initial phase in Russia and the Czech Republic.

At the same time, necessary improvements were made to the existing core banking system in
order to cope with Slovakia’s adoption of the euro and customer growth in an efficient manner.

Furthermore, Raiffeisen International worked intensively on Group-wide implementation of a man-
agement information system and Basel Il risk management systems. Development and control of
these applications were centralized. The Group also identified standard factoring software and
began its implementation in various countries.

In the area of retail operations, two solutions defined as Group-wide standards were introduced
for processing collections (Debt Manager) and for processing loans in retail business (Capstone)
in other countries.

Set as the Group standard and operated by RZB, the Global Treasury System (GTS) was also
successfully introduced by the treasury unit in Hungary last year. Implementation of the system in
other network banks operating in the treasury area will continue in 2009.

RI Group IT GmbH, which had already been working for Raiffeisen International, was merged

retroactively as of 15 July 2007 into Raiffeisen International Bank-Holding AG to ensure closer
collaboration with the business units.
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Shared service centers

The CRISP unit (Centralized Raiffeisen International Services & Payments), founded in Romania in
2007 for processing payment transfers, in particular SWIFT transactions, and other back-office
activities for the Group, was further expanded in the reporting period according to plan. In ad-
dition to functioning as a SWIFT hub, CRISP is already checking transactions of many network
banks for irregularities on a centralized basis. Implementation of centralized software for interna-
tional transfer payments has begun. The first countries migrating to this new Group-wide platform
are Bulgaria, Romania, and Hungary. In addition, work is under way to centralize software for
reconciliation of nostro accounts maintained for clearing entries in payment transfers involving
other banks and for inquiries into interbank and corporate customer transactions.

The Group's two card-processing centers, in Bratislava and Kiev, increased the number of cards
processed to 13.4 million in 2008, and the number of transactions executed rose to over 500
million. The center in Kiev has also been working since last year on authorization of transactions
by ATMs and at cashless payment terminals and in the area of e-commerce, also for network
banks outside Ukraine.

Increasing productivity and cutting costs

Raiffeisen International took additional cost control measures in view of the worsening
financial crisis in the second half of 2008. In particular, expansion of the branch network was
sharply curtailed relative to original plans. New branches will thus only be opened selectively
in the future.

Moreover, the workforce will not be expanded further in 2009. At the same time, projects that
are not absolutely necessary or do not promise a significantly positive earnings contribution in
the medium term are being deferred. Nevertheless, Raiffeisen International continues to work
vigorously on strategic projects that will enhance the Group’s competitiveness on a medium-term
horizon. Those include, for example, the core bank system and projects in the framework of
shared services.

As in the past years, a large number of 6 sigma process optimization projects led in 2008 to
a significant increase of productivity in the amount of about € 75 million. Well over 100 such
projects were executed in the areas of credit application processing and payment transfers. One
emphasis was the operational optimization of reminder and collection processes - not least in
order to be best prepared to meet the expected increase of non-performing loans.

The rollout of i-procurement software to optimize purchasing processes in the Group was com-
pleted in 2008. In its centrally controlled purchasing, Raiffeisen International focused on data
transfer/telephony, desktop computers, notebooks, and outfitting the branches (furnishings, out-
side advertising, efc.). Measurable economies of scale were realized by means of this bundling
of Group-wide needs. Moreover, a training initiative was started to ensure specialized education
of purchasing representatives in subsidiary banks on a broad basis.

Altogether, Raiffeisen International saved around € 95 million through centralized and network-
bank-controlled purchasing activities in 2008.
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Raiffeisen International had a total of 63,376 52,732
employees as of 31 December 2008, (mea- e — 50,000
sured in full-time equivalents), which is 8.6 per 4::’;:4
cent more than at the end of 2007. The Group _ _ — 20,000
did not acquire any additional banks in the re-
porting period, so this increase is due solely to _ _ 30,000
organic growth. 22,851
18,386 lad
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The average age of employees in all network m ‘
banks remained comparatively low at 33 years ,i _ - 10,000
and thus reflects Raiffeisen International’s role L2
as a young and dynamic bank. The personnel o
structure also confirms how highly qualified the 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
staff is. Raiffeisen International’s ratio of univer- M Central Europe M Southeastern Europe cis Austria

sity graduates was an impressive 72 per cent
at the end of 2008. Women accounted for
70 per cent of the employees. However, be-
cause conditions in Raiffeisen International’s
markets vary considerably, there are diver-
gences from these averages in some countries.
The differences relate primarily to labor market
structures, educational systems, and general
economic conditions.

Human resources controlling

Raiffeisen International began developing a
human resources controlling system in 2008.
The goal of this interdisciplinary project is to
collect and evaluate data relevant to human re-
sources within the Group and thus establish a
basis for business decisions. The project should
be completed and implemented in all countries
in 2009.

Corporate responsibility

The RZB Group and Raiffeisen International
as a subgroup prepared their first corporate
responsibility report in 2008, which was pub-
lished at the beginning of 2009. The report
provides comprehensive information concern-
ing the Group's corporate principles and
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Commitment to performance and
employee development

Performance management

Setting transparent goals for individual employees in line with corporate goals ensures consis-
tent commitment to performance and provides a fundamental basis for the success of Raiffeisen
International. To achieve this, the already successfully established performance management
system was continuously expanded and refined at all network banks in 2008. The performance
management process is the foundation for the most important personnel processes and thus forms
the basis for targeted staff development, career and succession planning, performance-based
compensation, and for measures to ensure that top performers stay with the company.

Talent management and leadership development

One of the main emphases of human resources management in 2008 was the establishment of a
Group-wide international acceleration pool. Its aim is to offer high-potentials more opportunities
for cross-border careers within the Raiffeisen International network. This makes it possible to fill
vacant key positions both quickly and efficiently by means of cross-national rotation. In addi-
tion, expertise in the Group is passed on and augmented by means of international personnel
exchange, reinforcing the common “Raiffeisen Culture” in all regions.

Special emphasis is also placed on targeted further development of high-potentials in the net-
work banks in order to offer those employees appropriate professional development and career
opportunities and thereby keep them in the company. In the framework of the “Spot! - Grow!
- Lead!” program initiated in 2007, talent pools were established at individual network banks in
order to identify employees with high potential, generally promote them, and specifically cultivate
them for svitable (management) positions.

High priority continued to be given to succession planning for the managing boards and top man-
agement of the network banks in order to identify any possible personnel gaps early and provide

|u

for prompt, suitable replacement. The “top talent pool” already initiated in the framework of the
“Spotl - Grow! - Lead!” program, which identifies possible candidates for managing board
positions in the network, has already shown impressive results. Of 16 newly occupied board

positions, 14 were filled internally in 2008 thanks to the “top talent pool”.

The executive development program for managing board members and other top managers of
Raiffeisen International is a further essential component for developing management talent. In
preparation for a Group-wide strategy development process from 2008 to 2011, strategy devel-
opment and implementation were key emphases of executive development in 2008. Furthermore,
leadership themes formed the focus of the program’s extensive scope.

Qualification at all levels as key to success

Based on a standardized Group training architecture, Raiffeisen International vigorously contin-
ved its local and international training and educational activities in 2008. Consequently, 79 per
cent of all employees took part in at least one continuing education measure in the past year.

The Group's training center for the former Yugoslavian countries, the Raiffeisen Training Center
(RTC) in Zagreb, increased its training volume significantly in 2008. The number of RTC rose by
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63 per cent from 87 to 139 compared with 2007.

E-Learning

E-learning programs make it possible to help a large number of employees with their educational
needs directly, comprehensively, promptly, and efficiently. In 2008, Raiffeisen International suc-
cessfully continued on the path taken some years ago to use this modern learning method to
ensure optimal qualification of its employees. As an important medium in the qualification of Raif-
feisen International’s employees, e-learning has now become a key component of the learning
methods used at all levels.

Already seven network banks were offering their employees e-learning programs at the end of
2008. In the future, this form of learning will also be available to employees in Serbia, Albania,
and Bosnia and Herzegovina. In addition to local initiatives, there was also more cooperation at
regional and international levels in 2008.

Outlook

Economic outlook

After record growth in recent years, the economies of Central and Eastern Europe face a severe
slowdown in 2009. The main reasons for this are the indirect effects of development on global
financial markets, which also became more evident in the CEE countries in the second half of
2008.

Four factors that used to drive the economy in past years are now dimming growth prospects:

B First, the recession in the United States and Western Europe is dampening demand for
exports from the CEE region. This is already apparent from the latest monthly data for
industrial production and the trade balance.

B Second, a decline of foreign direct investment is emerging. Although Central and Eastern
Europe might profit in the medium term as a result of an outsourcing wave from Western
Europe, that will probably not suffice to offset the cyclically induced decline of capital
investment in 2009.

m Third, the shortage and higher cost of external financing are causing credit growth to slow.
It is not unlikely that the total amount of lending in the CEE region will actually fall in 2009.
Even a nominal decline is not out of the question in some countries.

W Fourth, financing current account deficits and short-term foreign debit is likely to remain
very difficult due to the continuing tension on global financial markets. Some Central and
Eastern European currencies might therefore remain under devaluation pressure. Moreover,
it is not out of the question that other countries will apply for financial assistance from the
International Monetary Fund and the European Union. By extending such help to Hungary,
the EU has already underscored its willingness and ability to support its member states in
financial distress. That probably also applies to the candidate countries of Southeastern
Europe, whose economic and political stability is very important to the EU.
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A slowing of real GDP growth in the CEE economies to an average of about 1.3 per cent may
be expected for 2009, after 5.1 per cent on average in the preceding year. This forecast is
based on the assumption of a recession in the euro area (minus 1.5 per cent) and in the United
States (minus 2.2 per cent). The reduction of the growth gap between the euro area and the CEE
region to about 1.5 percentage points also reflects a correction of the very dynamic increase
of lending volume, real estate prices, and current account deficits in the past year. In any case,
this growth difference averaged 4.5 percentage points in the five-year period 2004-2008 and
amounted to 5.5 percentage points in 2008. These large differences may be explained by the
admission to the EU of the countries in question and the resulting improvement of economic and
institutional conditions there. In the medium term, the growth gap is likely to settle in at 2.5 to 3
percentage points. That is also necessary in order o maintain long-term real convergence of per
capita incomes.

Lower imports of consumer and capital goods and hence more balanced current accounts should
be one important consequence of the decline in credit growth and direct investment. That is a
positive thing inasmuch as current account deficits in some countries have already reached ex-
ceptionally high levels in the past years.

Nevertheless, the use of foreign funds to accelerate the transformation process continues to make
good economic sense both for the CEE countries themselves and for the suppliers of the funds.
Central and Eastern Europe is extremely attractive as a production location for the European
market due to cheaper wages coupled with high level of education. That also explains the lively
inflow of foreign direct investments since the beginning of the transformation. Productivity and
incomes are rising at the same time in the Central and Eastern European countries due to the
inflow of capital and know-how.

However, the shortage and rising cost of external financing and the decline of direct investment
will slow this process in 2009, at least temporarily. That might be partly offset if efforts to raise the
saving ratio succeed in the affected countries themselves. Conditions appear to be quite favor-
able for that, if one considers the strong growth of average incomes in the past years, the recently
falling inflation rates, and the current economic uncertainty. An increase of the saving ratios
would lead to stronger deposit growth for banks, which would support the stability and financial
strength of the financial sector in a continuing difficult global environment.
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Outlook for Raiffeisen International

Against the background of the current financial and economic crisis, concerns have arisen in
recent months about the economic stability and credit rating of some of the countries in the CEE
region, as well as the financial institutions operating there. Due to the considerable currency
fluctuations of some currencies against the euro, these concerns further deepened and have
had a considerable impact on our business operations. Nevertheless, the countries of Central
and Eastern Europe offer financial institutions interesting perspectives and attractive long-term
business opportunities, which result from their catch-up potential with the countries of Western
Europe. We continue to be convinced of this potential, and continue to regard the CEE region as
our core market. As in the past, not all markets will develop at the same pace, and we therefore
consider our presence in 17 markets in CEE, where we have a large network of branch offices,
to be a strength.

We expect business with corporate customers to make the largest contribution to profit before tax
again in 2009. This year we plan to continue our business model, which is based on integrated
service and advisory solutions for our main bank customers, in the corporate customer division.
Non-interest-bearing business, e.g. the further expansion of our leading position in cash manage-
ment, will be one emphasis of our activities.

In the retail customer division we will continue to take advantage of our large branch network.
Despite the difficult market conditions, we plan to further develop our product portfolio and seg-
ment specific value propositions particularly with respect to insurance, fee based liability products
and affluent banking. We also plan to increase investment in customer relationship management
technology in order to increase product penetration for all our key customer groups.

After a strong growth in lending to customers over the last several years, the focus this year will be
on enhancing our active credit portfolio and risk management. We expect lending to customers in
2009 to be at the same level as the year before. In view of the unfavorable overall conditions for
other forms of refinancing, the focus has shifted increasingly in the direction of customer deposits.
Against this background, we will continue our efforts to gain customer deposits during the 2009
business year.

Moreover, we took a number of measures for the year 2009 that will moderate the increase in
costs that was the result of our growth in recent years. Administrative expenses should therefore
be at the level of the previous year. The number of branch offices will ultimately remain at the
same level as in the business year 2008. In this context improvements in profitability will be given
increasing attention.
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Classification of segments

Raiffeisen International adopted IFRS 8 early, and it has been applied for the year 2008. Only
the segmental reporting regulations laid out in IFRS 8 have been applied to this report.

Generally, internal management reporting in Raiffeisen International is carried out based on its
matrix organizational structure. Under this organizational structure, members of the Managing
Board are responsible for both specific countries and certain business areas. The highest decision
making bodies, Raiffeisen International’s Managing and Supervisory Boards, make important
decisions, such as the allocation of resources, according to geographical standpoints. The same
0pp|ies to the ctpprdiso| of financial streng’rh and profitobihty, which is why this has been identi-
fied as the substantial reporting criterion.

Individual Central and Eastern European countries constitute the smallest Cash Generating Units -
CGU. Countries that expect a similar long-term economic development and exhibit a similar eco-
nomic profile are grouped together as regional segments. Four regional segments have been deter-
mined in consideration of the threshold values required by IFRS 8, whereby transparent and clearly
represented reporting is achieved. The threshold values as defined by IFRS 8 are 10 per cent of
certain parameters; these are operating income, profit after tax, and segment assets.

As of 31 December 2008 the following Group segments existed. The location of the respective
business outlets served as the criterion for segment assignment:

m Central Europe (CE)

This segment contains the five countries that joined the EU on 1 May 2004 - the Czech
Republic, Hungary, Poland, Slovakia, and Slovenia. They represent not only the most
fully developed banking markets in Central and Eastern Europe, but also the markets in
which Raiffeisen International had its earliest presence.

B Southeastern Europe (SEE)
Southeastern Europe includes Albania, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Croatia, Kosovo, Moldova,
Serbia, as well as Bulgaria and Romania, which joined the EU on 1 January 2007.
Moldova has been included in this segment due to its close economic ties to Romania and
the respective management structures within the Group.

B Russia
This segment includes the assets and performance for those companies active in the Russian
Federation on behalf of Raiffeisen International. The Group is represented in Russia by a
bank, a leasing company and a capital management company.

B Commonwealth of Independent States (CIS) other

This segment contains Belarus, Kazakhstan, and Ukraine.
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The figures stated are derived from the financial statements prepared in accordance to the Inter-
national Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) that underlie the consolidated financial statements.
Divergence from locally published data is possible, as they may be based on different valuation
regulations or differing reporting deadlines.

Details on the calculation of segment results can be found in the segment report on page 121
in the notes.

Segment overview

In the period under review, the CIS region registered the highest profit before tax of all segments
at € 665 million. The earnings increase of 50 per cent, or € 223 million, is primarily attributable
to high interest income and good trading profit. Balance sheet assets grew by 18 per cent on
an annual basis. The CIS contributed 41 per cent to total profit before tax and was therefore
8 percentage points above the comparable value in the preceding year.

The region of Southeastern Europe achieved the second-largest profit before tax at € 534 mil-
lion. The earnings increase of 12 per cent, or € 59 million, was based largely on solid growth of
net interest income and net commission income and a relatively low rise of general administra-
tive expenses. The contribution to profit before tax amounted to 33 per cent and was therefore
2 percentage points below the preceding year’s value. Balance sheet assets grew by 12 per cent
on annual comparison.

In Central Europe, profit before tax fell by 2 per cent, or € 11 million, to € 442 million, although
it was positively influenced by increases in net interest income and net commission income. The
segment’s contribution to earnings therefore fell by 6 percentage points to 27 per cent. This
disproportionate reduction of the segment’s share was brought about by special effects in the
preceding year due to changes in the scope of consolidation and by earnings growth in the CIS.
The segment’s balance sheet assets rose on annual comparison by 25 per cent.

Central Europe remained dominant in respect to consolidated assets with a share of 43 per
cent (plus 2 percentage points). As in the preceding year, the Southeastern Europe segment ac-
counted for the second-largest share at 30 per cent (minus 2 percentage points), followed by the
CIS at 27 per cent.
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Central Europe

in € million 2008 2007 Change
Net interest income 1,025 821 24.8%

of which current income from associates 1 2 (49.3)%
Provisioning for impairment losses (265) (122) 117.0%
Net interest income after provisioning 760 699 8.7%
Net fee and commission income 568 471 20.7%
Net trading income 56 56 (0.5)%
Net income from derivatives (11) 1 -
Net income from financial investments 2 (7) -
General administrative expenses (930) (791) 17.6%

of which staff costs (455) (397) 14.5%

of which other administrative expenses (389) (312) 24.7%

of which depreciation/amortization/write-downs (86) (82) 51%
Other net operating income (10) 0 -
Net income from disposal of group assets 8 24 (67.0)%
Profit before tax 442 453 (2.4)%
Income taxes (91) (88) 3.6%
Profit after tax 351 365 (3.9)%
Minority interests in profit (20) (91) (0.6)%
Consolidated profit 261 274 (4.9)%
Share of profit before tax 26.9% 33.0% (6.1) PP
Share of profit after tax 27.5% 33.2% (5.7) PP
Risk-weighted assets (credit risk) 23,533 20,775 13.3%
Own funds requirement 2,401 1,743 37.8%
Total assets 36,316 28,962 25.4%
Liabilities 33,910 26,910 26.0%
Risk/earnings ratio 25.9% 14.9% 11.0 PP
Cost/income ratio 56.8% 58.7% (1.9) PP
Average equity 2,607 2,007 29.9%
Return on equity before tax 16.9% 22.6% (5.7) PP
Average number of employees 13,265 12,079 9.8%
Business outlets 572 532 7.5%

In the year under review, earnings in the region of Central Europe remained slightly below the
preceding year’s. Profit before tax fell on the comparable period by 2 per cent, or € 11 million,
to € 442 million. The return on equity before tax for Central Europe fell by 5.7 percentage points

to 16.9 per cent. The main factors responsible for this decline were a 30 per cent increase of

average equity on the comparable period, significantly higher provisioning for impairment losses

in the region, and earnings-enhancing special effects in the preceding year.

Net interest income increased by 25 per cent in 2008 to € 1,025 million. The Group's assets

in Central Europe grew by 25 per cent. The net interest margin improved by 2 basis points on
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the comparable period and amounted to 3.14 per cent. At 13 per cent, growth of risk-weighted
assets from € 20.8 billion before to € 23.5 billion was significantly weaker than that of balance
sheet assets. Their increase was based mainly on organic growth, but that was counteracted by
the introduction of Basel II, which reduced the risk-weighted assets.

New allocations to provisioning for impairment losses rose by 117 per cent to € 265 million.
That was mainly due to new allocations to individual provisions in Hungary and Poland, while
portfolio-related provisions in the region remained at the preceding year's level. The risk/earn-
ings ratio increased by 11.0 percentage points on the comparable period to 25.9 per cent. The
share of the loan portfolio attributable to non-performing loans rose by 48 basis points on the
comparable period to 3.12 per cent.

The region’s net fee and commission income grew by 21 per cent, or € 98 million, to € 568 mil-
lion. Foreign currency and precious-metals business and notes/coins business played a large part
in that at € 257 million, as did payment transfers and account services at € 201 million. Loan
and guarantee business contributed another € 55 million. The Group units in the Czech Republic
and in Poland registered the largest increases in net fee and commission income. The share of
operating income due to business affecting commission income was the highest of all segments
in Central Europe at 35 per cent.

Net trading income in the region of Central Europe came to € 56 million and therefore re-
mained at the comparable period’s level. A positive result of € 85 million was achieved there
from currency-related business. On the other hand, the region registered a loss of € 27 million in
interest-related business, which was mainly caused by valuation losses on securities - primarily
sovereigns - and derivative financial instruments.

Net income from derivative financial instruments amounted to minus € 11 million and was based
on valuation losses from hedging transactions, which were used to minimize the currency and
interest rate risk of the loan portfolio, mainly in Hungary and the Czech Republic.

Net income from financial investments amounted to € 2 million. The sale of shares valued at eg-
vity in Prague-based building society Raiffeisen stavebni sporitelna, a.s. by the local Raiffeisen-
bank made a positive contribution to earnings of € 11 million. On the other hand, valuation losses
from securities in Hungary and the Czech Republic diminished earnings by € 10 million.

General administrative expenses rose on the comparable period by 18 per cent, or € 139 mil-
lion, to € 930 million. Staff costs amounted to € 455 million, and the average number of employ-
ees increased by 10 per cent to 13,265. Other administrative expenses went up € 77 million to
€ 389 million. Depreciation/amortization/write-downs rose by € 4 million and reached a total
of € 86 million. The number of business outlets increased on an annual basis by 8 per cent, or
40 outlets, to 572. That derived mainly from Hungary (plus 24 outlets). The region’s cost/income
ratio decreased by 1.9 percentage points to 56.8 per cent.

Other net operating income amounted to minus € 10 million and mainly comprised tax expense
not dependent on income at Group units in Hungary and Slovakia. In the preceding year, the
result was offset by income of € 9 million from the initial consolidation of asset management
companies in Slovakia and Hungary.

Net income from disposal of group assets, which was primarily based on income from the
sale of two Hungarian real estate project companies in the second quarter, amounted to about
€ 8 million. The higher value in the preceding year of € 24 million mainly resulted from the sale of
a Hungarian energy generating company and a Hungarian real estate company.

Income taxes rose by 4 per cent on the comparable period to € 91 million. Profit after tax and
minority interests amounted to € 261 million.
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Czech Republic

While the Czech economy registered GDP growth of more than é per cent on average in the
years from 2005 to 2007, that growth slowed in the reporting period to 3.7 per cent. Inflation
rose at the beginning of the year, influenced by a tax reform and external factors such as higher
energy and food prices, but subsided again significantly toward the end of the year. The Czech
koruna revalued by almost 10 per cent against the euro in the period to July 2008, but lost that
gain in the second half of the year amidst the global financial market crisis. The country’s banking
sector was not affected all that much by the rising cost and shortage of external funding thanks
to the Czech central bank’s low-interest-rate policy. Total bank assets rose in 2008 by about
16 per cent. Expressed in euros, that represents an increase of about 14.5 per cent.

The merger of eBanka a.s., in which Raiffeisen International acquired a maijority interest in 2006,
with Raiffeisenbank a.s., which was founded in 1993, was successfully completed in July 2008.
Since then, the two banks have been doing business jointly as Raiffeisenbank. All business outlets
with the eBanka design have been remodeled over the past months in the style of Raiffeisen
International’s new Group-wide branch design.

Raiffeisen had about 2,654 employees at 107 business outlets in the Czech Republic as of
31 December 2008. It had 411,000 customers at that time and showed a balance sheet total
of € 7.2 billion. That represents a market share of just under 4 per cent. Raiffeisenbank is thus
one of the five largest banks in the country. Serving upscale private individuals and corporate
customer business with small and medium-sized enterprises and large companies form the busi-
ness emphases. In the past year, total deposits increased by 18.7 per cent to € 4.2 billion, while
the loan portfolio grew by 25.6% per cent to € 5.5 billion.

Raiffeisen improved its cost/income ratio in the Czech Republic to 60.7 per cent in 2008, com-
pared with 8.7 per cent in the preceding year. On this basis, it achieved profit before tax of
€ 68 million, which led to a return on equity before tax of 18.3 per cent. The return on equity after
tax of 14.4 per cent is based on a taxed profit of € 53 million.

Raiffeisen International owned 51 per cent of Czech firm Raiffeisenbank a.s. at the end of 2008.
Furthermore, Raiffeisenlandesbank Niederésterreich-Wien AG and  Raiffeisenlandesbank
Oberssterreich AG held nearly equal interests in the bank of 24 and 25 per cent, respectively.

Monetary values in € million 2008 2007 Change

Loans and advances to customers 5,464 4,351 25.6%

Deposits from customers 4,191 3,531 18.7%

Balance sheet total

7,198 5,670 27.0%

Profit before tax

68 46 49.5%

Profit after tax

53 32 65.6%

Return on equity before tax 18.3% 16.4% 1.9 PP

Return on equity after tax 14.4% 11.3% 3.1PP

Cost/income ratio

60.7% 68.7% (8.0) PP

Employees

2,654 2,495 6.4%

Business outlets

107 105 1.9%
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Hungary

The Hungarian economy has been shaped by budget consolidation in recent years. After real

GDP growth of 1.1 per cent in 2007, growth in the year under review came to 0.7 per cent. When

the turmoil on the global financial markets put the Hungarian forint under heavy pressure in the

second half of 2008, the Hungarian central bank raised its key interest rates temporarily despite

declining inflation rates and requested financial assistance from the IMF and the EU. The growth

of total bank assets in 2008 came to 12.5 per cent, or 8 per cent after conversion to euros.

Raiffeisen Bank Zrt., one of the largest network banks in the Raiffeisen International Group, be-

gan business operations in 1987. At the end of 2008, it was Hungary's fifth-largest bank with a

balance sheet total of about € 9.6 billion. In the framework of a multi-year expansion program,

the number of Raiffeisen International’s branches in Hungary increased in the year under review

by 24 to over 164 business outlets. At the end of 2008, about 3,960 employees were serving

more than 657,000 customers, whose number thus increased in the reporting period by 8.9 per

cent. As a universal bank, Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. serves not only private individuals and small and

medium-sized enterprises, but also a large number of corporate customers.

Based on an innovative and extensive product range, total lendings to customers rose by 13.3 per

cent in 2008 to € 7.2 billion. At the same time, customer deposits increased by 16.4 per cent on

annual comparison to € 5.7 billion.

The cost/income ratio of Raiffeisen in Hungary improved from 55.9 per cent in the preceding

year to 58.5 per cent at the end of 2008. Profit before tax amounted to € 83 million, which meant

a return on equity before tax of 14.5 per cent. The return on equity after tax of 11.7 per cent

resulted from taxed profit € 67 million.

Raiffeisen International held 70 per cent interest at the end of 2008, making it the largest share-

holder in Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. The remaining shares are held indirectly by several Raiffeisen

Landesbanken.

Monetary values in € million 2008 2007 Change

Loans and advances to customers 7,186 6,343 13.3%

Deposits from customers 5,654 4,857 16.4%

Balance sheet total 9,568 8,079 18.4%

Profit before tax 83 145 (42.6)%

Profit after tax 76 118 (43.0)%

Return on equity before tax 14.5% 28.2% (13.7) PP

Return on equity after tax 11.7% 23.8% (12.1) PP

Cost/income ratio 58.5% 559% 2.6 PP

Employees 3,960 3,454 14.7%

Business outlets 164 140 17.4%
MANAGEMENT REPORT SEGMENT REPORTS CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Page 88 Segment reports
Poland
The Polish economy achieved real GDP growth of 4.8 per cent in 2008, which was thus some-
what below the preceding year's 6.5 per cent. After a strong revaluation up to mid-year, the zloty
came under devaluation pressure in the second half due to the global financial market crisis.
The Polish banking sector was one of the few in Central and Eastern Europe to show a rise of
asset growth in 2008. On an annual basis, total bank assets increased in the year under review
by almost 27 per cent. Due to the devaluation of the zloty, that represents an increase of about
9 per cent, expressed in euros.
Raiffeisen International has been represented in Poland since the founding of Raiffeisen Bank
Polska S.A. in 1991. In the year under review, it had about 290,000 customers, a balance
sheet total of € 7.1 billion, and about 3,271 employees. As a universal bank, Raiffeisen Bank
Polska serves corporate customers, small and medium-sized enterprises, and private individuals.
The main focus in the past years has been on upscale private individuals.
Total lending by Raiffeisen Bank Polska rose in the year under review by 14.9 per cent to € 5.3
billion, while an increase of total deposits was registered by 3.6 per cent to € 3.5 billion.
In |easing business, Raiffeisen is the ’rhird—|c|rgest provider in Poland with a portfo|io of about
€ 1.5 billion, and it even occupies the country’s top spot in factoring. Selling the Raiffeisen Capital
Management funds in all 123 business outlets also makes the bank one of the largest providers
of foreign investment funds in the market.
Raiffeisen achieved profit before tax in Poland of about € 129 million in the year under re-
view, with a cost/income ratio of 51.6 per cent. The return on equity (ROE) before tax came to
25.7 per cent. Profit after tax amounted to € 103 million. That put the return on equity after tax
at 20.5 per cent.
Monetary values in € million 2008 2007 Change
Loans and advances to customers 5,319 4,631 14.9%
Deposits from customers 3,516 3,394 3.6%
Balance sheet total 7,108 5,958 19.3%
Profit before tax 129 106 21.7%
Profit after tax 103 91 13.2%
Return on equity before tax 25.7% 28.0% (2.3) PP
Return on equity after tax 20.5% 24.5% (4.0) PP
Cost/income ratio 51.6% 59.2% (7.6) PP
Employees 3,271 2,870 14.0%
Business outlets 123 116 6.0%
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Slovakia

After record growth of 10.4 per cent in the preceding year, Slovakia’s real GDP grew by
6.8 per cent in 2008. This dynamic development was borne by the huge investments of foreign
businesses in the past years. In mid-2008, the ECOFIN Council of the EU, consisting of the
economics and finance ministers of the member countries, confirmed Slovakia’s fulfillment of all
criteria for introduction of the euro at the beginning of 2009. The conversion rate of the Slovakian
koruna against the euro amounted to 30.164. The successful launch of the euro at the beginning
of this year has largely cushioned the turbulence of the global financial market in Slovakia. Total
bank assets increased in 2008 by about é per cent. Expressed in euros, that represents growth
of about 18 per cent.

Established in 1991 as Slovakid's first private bank, Tatra banka, a.s. is now the third-largest bank
in the country. As of 31 December 2008, Raiffeisen had a balance sheet total of € 11 billion and
a branch network of 162 business outlets (2007: 156) in Slovakia. Its 3,885 employees were
serving about 744,000 customers at the end of the reporting period.

From the beginning, Tatra banka operated as one of the most successful banks in the country in
both retail and corporate customer business. Although Tatra banka offers products and services
in a high price segment, the personal customer segment has grown faster than the market. Total
deposits rose in 2008 by 34.6 per cent to € 7.5 billion, while the loan portfolio increased by
€ 1.7 billion to € 6.2 billion. One business emphasis of Tatra banka is asset management. The
subsidiary operating in that area, Tatra Asset Management s.r.o., covers one-third of the Slova-
kian market.

Raiffeisen in Slovakia achieved profit before tax of about € 157 million last year, with the cost-
income ratio improving from 56.2 per cent to 53.3 per cent. That yields a return on equity before
tax of 28.9 per cent. Based on profit after tax of € 124 million, the return on equity reached
a level of 22.8 per cent.

In December 2008, the bank received a rating of Al with a stable outlook from Moody’s, while
the rating from Standard & Poor’s was A- with a negative outlook.

Raiffeisen International held a stake of 63 per cent in Tatra banka a.s. as of 31 December 2008.
The rest was held indirectly by Raiffeisenlandesbank Niederdsterreich-Wien AG, by the bank’s
employees, or in free float.

The bank received numerous awards in the year under review, including Best Bank from
Euromoney and Bank of the Year from The Banker.

Monetary values in € million 2008 2007 Change
Loans and advances to customers 6,215 4,508 37.9%
Deposits from customers 7,454 5,539 34.6%
Balance sheet total 10,973 7,845 39.9%
Profit before tax 157 138 14.0%
Profit after tax 124 109 13.4%
Return on equity before tax 28.9% 28.8% 0.1 PP
Return on equity after tax 22.8% 22.5% 0.3 PP
Cost/income ratio 53.3% 56.2% (2.9) PP
Employees 3,885 3,652 6.4%
Business outlets 162 156 3.8%
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Slovenia

After real GDP growth of 6.8 per cent in 2007, the year of the euro launch, the Slovenian econo-
my registered growth of 5 per centin 2008. Above all, external factors such as increased energy
and food prices contributed to a rise of inflation to an average of 5.7 per cent year-on-year. Total
bank assets grew in 2008 by about 14.5 per cent.

In 2002, Raiffeisen acquired Krekova banka, which was founded in 1992 and today does busi-
ness as Raiffeisen Banka d.d. At the end of 2008, the balance sheet total of Raiffeisen in Slovenia
stood at € 1.5 billion. Its over 71,000 customers were being served at that time by about 344
employees in 16 business outlets and by almost 40 mobile bankers.

The business activities of Raiffeisen Banka focus on upscale private individuals and on small and
medium-sized business customers. In total, lendings to customers rose by 10.4 per cent in 2008
to € 1.2 billion, and customer deposits by 23.3 per cent to € 545 million. To further increase
business with upscale private individuals, the bank began implementation of an affluent banking
concept after a successful pilot program in summer 2008. The launch of this special advisory and
service concept in all business outlets will be completed during 2009. Great attention is also be-
ing placed on cross-border financing transactions in the corporate customer segment.

Raiffeisen’s cost/income ratio in Slovenia stabilized in 2008 at a level of 87.6 per cent. Profit
before tax of € 4 million was registered, while profit after tax amounted to € 3 million. The return
on equity was 6 per cent before tax, and 4.3 per cent after tax.

Raiffeisen International held an 86 per cent interest in Raiffeisen Banka d.d. at the end of the
reporting period. Except for a small free float, the remaining shares were owned by Raiffeisen-
Landesbank Steiermark AG and by Raiffeisenlandesbank Burgenland und Revisionsverband
registrierte Genossenschaft mit beschrénkter Haftung.

Monetary values in € million 2008 2007 Change

Loans and advances to customers 1,179 1,068 10.4%

Deposits from customers 545 442 23.3%

Balance sheet total

1,509 1,410 7.0%

Profit before tax

4 13 (70.0)%

Profit after tax

3 10 (71.2)%

Return on equity before tax 6.0% 21.1% (15.1) PP

Return on equity after tax 4.3% 16.7% (12.4) PP

Cost/income ratio

87.6% 87.2% 0.4 PP

Employees

344 363 (5.2)%

Business outlets

16 15 6.7%
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Southeastern Europe
in € million 2008 2007 Change
Net interest income 947 732 29.3%
of which current income from associates 0 (3) -
Provisioning for impairment losses (159) (59) 170.8%
Net interest income after provisioning 788 673 17.0%
Net fee and commission income 463 385 20.4%
Net trading income 57 48 20.0%
Net income from derivatives (5) 0 -
Net income from financial investments (19) 0 -
General administrative expenses (773) (647) 19.5%
of which staff costs (344) (290) 18.9%
of which other administrative expenses (339) (283) 19.6%
of which depreciation/amortization/write-downs (90) (74) 21.3%
Other net operating income 23 17 36.3%
Profit before tax 534 476 12.3%
Income taxes (84) (68) 251%
Profit after tax 450 408 10.2%
Minority interests in profit (21) (26) (17.3)%
Consolidated profit 429 382 12.1%
Share of profit before tax 32.5% 34.7% (2.2) PP
Share of profit after tax 35.3% 37.1% (1.8) PP
Risk-weighted assets (credit risk) 18,939 16,278 16.3%
Own funds requirement 1,704 1,324 28.7%
Total assets 25,239 22,605 11.7%
Liabilities 22,488 20,487 9.8%
Risk/earnings ratio 16.8% 8.0% 8.8 PP
Cost/income ratio 51.9% 54.7% (2.8) PP
Average equity 2,072 1,572 31.8%
Return on equity before tax 25.8% 30.3% (4.5) PP
Average number of employees 18,261 15,043 21.4%
Business outlets 1,184 973 21.7%
In the region of Southeastern Europe, profit before tax amounted to € 534 million and was
therefore significantly above the preceding year’s comparable value of € 476 million. Profit grew
by 12 per cent, mainly thanks to the strong increase of net interest income and net fee and com-
mission income. The region registered the second-highest earnings of all segments. Because of a
significantly higher equity base, the return on equity before tax fell by 4.5 percentage points to
25.8 per cent.
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Net interest income in the region increased by 29 per cent, or € 215 million, to € 947 million,
while balance sheet assets rose by 12 per cent to € 25.2 billion. That was achieved by means of
an improved net interest margin, which went up 22 basis points to 3.96 per cent. Risk-weighted
assets increased by 16 per cent from € 16.3 billion to € 18.9 billion. The Basel Il effect was some-
what stronger because countries with lower ratings are included in this region.

Allocations to provisioning for impairment losses rose from a very low level by 171 per cent, or
€ 100 million, to € 159 million. This increase was primarily due to new allocations to portfolio-
related provisions in nearly all of the region’s Group units. Individual provisions grew mainly as a
result of allocations in the Group's Serbian unit. The risk/earnings ratio therefore rose to 16.8 per
cent (plus 8.8 percentage points). The share of the loan portfolio attributable to non-performing
loans increased on an annual basis by 68 basis points to 2.26 per cent.

Net fee and commission income rose by 20 per cent from € 385 million to € 463 million.
Payment transfers contributed € 175 million to that, and foreign currency and precious-metals
business € 102 million. Loan administration and guarantee business rendered another € 91 mil-
lion. The region’s largest increases were booked by the unit strongest in commissions, Raiffeisen
Bank in Romania (plus € 52 million).

Net trading income also registered positive development in the region of Southeastern Europe.
Altogether, it increased by 20 per cent to € 57 million. At € 80 million, currency-related business
was significantly above the comparable period’s value (€ 26 million). Due to market influences,
a loss of € 12 million was booked in interest-related business, and losses of € 11 million in stock-
related business, especially due to positions in Croatia and Bosnia and Herzegovina.

Net income from derivative financial instruments amounted to minus € 5 million and was based
on valuation losses from hedging transactions due to other derivatives, used to minimize the inter-
est rate risk of the loan portfolio in the Group's unit in Kosovo.

Net income from financial investments amounted to minus € 19 million. After a balanced result
in the preceding year, this decline was shaped by losses arising from the valuation of securities
(outside of the trading portfolio) primarily in Romania and Croatia.

General administrative expenses increased altogether by 20 per cent to € 773 million. Staff
costs grew from € 290 million to € 344 million. The average number of employees rose on the
comparable period by 21 per cent, or 3,218, to 18,261. Despite strong business expansion, other
administrative expenses came to € 339 million and were therefore only 20 per cent higher than
in the preceding year. Depreciation/amortization/write-downs, mostly for investments in branch
offices, increased to € 90 million. Starting from 973 business outlets at the end of the comparable
period, their number rose by 22 per cent to 1,184, which means Southeastern Europe showed
the largest increase of all segments, especially in Romania. The cost/income ratio improved sig-
nificantly by 2.8 percentage points to 51.9 per cent.

Other net operating income increased on the comparable period by € 6 million and amounted
to € 23 million. In addition to smaller expense items, the main contribution to this was made by
income from operating leasing business at € 32 million in the year under review.

The inclusion of Bucharest-based investment banking firm Raiffeisen Capital & Investment Roma-
nia S.A. due to materiality resulted in a special effect from initial consolidation of € 4 million.

Income taxes rose on the comparable period by 25 per cent to € 84 million. Profit after tax and
minority interests amounted to € 429 million.
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Albania

Real growth of the Albanian economy, which continues to have the lowest GDP per capita of
all Central and Eastern European countries, has averaged 5.7 per cent per year in the last five
years. It was 6 per cent in the reporting period. Because of the banking sector’s relatively early
stage of development there, Albania is one of the few countries of Central and Eastern Europe
where customer deposits still far exceed lendings. Consequently, the country’s banking sector is
hardly affected by the rising cost and shortage of external funding due to the global financial
crisis. Total bank assets rose in 2008 by about 18 per cent. Converted to euros, that represents
about 16 per cent.

Raiffeisen International changed the name of Banka e Kursimeve Sh.a., which was founded
in 1992, to Raiffeisen Bank Sh.a. after acquiring it in 2004. The bank is currently the market
leader in all business segments. In 2008, the Group's balance sheet total in Albania exceeded
€ 2 billion for the first time. The network was expanded by 4 more business outlets to 102, which
gives Raiffeisen International full-area coverage in Albania. While the number of employees
remained nearly unchanged on the preceding year at about 1,400, the number of customers
increased to almost 532,000.

Raiffeisen Bank’s attention in 2008 mainly focused on expanding business relationships with
small and medium-sized enterprises and servicing affluent private individuals. Lendings to
customers rose by 34 per cent in the year under review to € 692 million, while customer deposits
remained that the level of the previous year with € 1.7 billion.

Founded in 2006, leasing subsidiary Raiffeisen Leasing Sh.a. also continued to expand its market
position.

The cost/income ratio of Raiffeisen in Albania amounted to 39.8 per cent in 2008. Despite the
difficult environment, profit before tax amounted to € 46 million, and profit after tax to € 41 mil-
lion, thus remaining at nearly the preceding year's levels. On that basis, the return on equity came
to 37.8 per cent before tax, and to 33.8 per cent after tax.

The bank received awards in 2008 both from Global Finance and from Euromoney as
Best Bank in Albania.

Monetary values in € million 2008 2007 Change
Loans and advances to customers 692 515 34.4%
Deposits from customers 1,745 1,795 (2.8)%
Balance sheet total 2,048 1,952 5.0%
Profit before tax 46 49 (6.7)%
Profit after tax 41 40 3.8%
Return on equity before tax 37.8% 58.1% (20.3) PP
Return on equity after tax 33.8% 46.6% (12.8) PP
Cost/income ratio 39.8% 40.3% (0.5) PP
Employees 1,427 1,355 5.3%
Business outlets 102 98 4.1%
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Bosnia and Herzegovina

Bosnia and Herzegovina achieved real GDP growth of 5.5 per cent in 2008. The national
currency, the convertible mark, has been pegged fix to the euro (previously the German mark)
since 1997. Nevertheless, the inflation rate reached 7.4 per cent on average in 2008 due to
increased energy and food prices. In relation to GDP per capita, the banking sector in Bosnia
and Herzegovina shows a high rate of market penetration. On a euro basis, the banking sector’s
total assets grew by about 10 per cent in 2008 on annual comparison.

Raiffeisen entered the local banking market in 2000 with the acquisition of Market Banka,
which was founded in 1992. After merging with Hrvatska Postanska Banka in 2002, Raiffeisen
Bank d.d. Bosna i Hercegovina is now the country’s second-largest bank.

The balance sheet total of Raiffeisen in Bosnia and Herzegovina amounted to over € 2.4 billion
at the end of 2008. More than 1,700 employees were serving almost 740,000 customers as of
31 December 2008, including especially private individuals and small and medium-sized enter-
prises. Lendings to customers came to € 1.7 billion, set against customer deposits of € 1.5 billion.
To continue meeting demands as a universal bank, the branch network was expanded again in
2008. It comprised 100 business outlets at the end of 2008, and hence 7 branches more than
at the end of 2007.

Subsidiaries such as Raiffeisen Leasing d.o.o. Sarajevo and brokerage firm Raiffeisen Brokers
d.o.o. complete the range of offerings in Bosnia and Herzegovina.

The cost/income ratio of Raiffeisen in Bosnia and Herzegovina improved to 4.3 per cent in
2008 from 64.5 per cent in the preceding year. Profit before tax for 2008 amounted to € 28
million (2007: € 24 million), while profit after tax came to € 16 million (2007: € 24 million). The
return on equity thus declined to 15 per cent before tax, and 8.7 per cent after tax.

While Raiffeisen International held a clear majority of 97 per cent in Raiffeisen Bank d.d. Bosna
i Hercegovina at the end of the reporting period, 3 per cent of the bank was held in indirect
ownership by Raiffeisen-Landesbank Steiermark AG.

Raiffeisen Bank d.d. Bosna i Hercegovina was recognized in 2008 by both Euromoney and
Global Finance as Bosnia’s Best Bank.

Monetary values in € million 2008 2007 Change

Loans and advances to customers 1,671 1,422 17.5%

Deposits from customers 1,510 1,334 13.2%

Balance sheet total

2,395 2,121 12.9%

Profit before tax

28 24 18.1%

Profit after tax

16 24 (32.5)%

Return on equity before tax 15% 17.8% (2.8) PP

Return on equity after tax 8.7% 17.8% (9.1) PP

Cost/income ratio

64.3% 64.5% (0.2) PP

Employees

1,776 1,553 14.4%

Business outlets

100 93 7.5%
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Bulgaria

The Bulgarian economy continued its strong growth of the past years - annual GDP growth

averaged 6.3 per cent from 2004 to 2007 - with a real increase of 6 per cent in 2008. The

country entered the EU at the same time as Romania at the beginning of 2007, and the Bulgarian

lev has been pegged fix to the euro and originally to the German mark since 1997. Because of

sharply higher energy and food prices, the inflation rate nevertheless averaged 12.3 per cent in

2008. The Bulgarian banking sector experienced a boom in the past year, which was reflected

in an annual increase of total bank assets by about 22.5 per cent.

Raiffeisen International has been represented in Bulgaria since the founding of Raiffeisenbank

(Bulgaria) EAD in 1994. It increased its balance sheet total by 20.2 per cent in the year under

review to € 4.8 billion and employed about 3,700 employees at the end of the year. That rep-

resents a rise of 21.5 per cent compared with 2007. Set against that is an increase of customers

by 22.9 per cent to 653,000 customers. The branch network in Bulgaria was expanded by

45 business outlets in 2008 to 197. The range of sales activities is completed by 272 mobile

bankers.

The dynamic growth continued in 2008, particularly in business with private individuals and small

and medium-sized enterprises. Total lending in that segment increased by 32.5 per cent to € 3.4

billion. At the same time, innovative products were marketed more intensively, which resulted in

an increase of customer deposits by 20.7 per cent to € 2.2 billion.

Since commencing business operations in 2006, subsidiary Raiffeisen Asset Management

(Bulgaria) EAD has defended its position among the country’s top three. In the reporting period,

it managed five local funds and distributed 14 investment funds from Austrian firm Raiffeisen

Capital Management. It has a market share of about 15 per cent and managed funds with

a volume of € 45.7 million.

The cost/income ratio improved in 2008 from 53.2 per cent to 47.4 per cent. Against that back-

ground, Raiffeisen International in Bulgaria achieved profit before tax of € 78 million, and profit

after tax of € 70 million. The return on equity amounted to 23.4 per cent before tax, and to

21.0 per cent after tax.

The foreign currency deposit rating of Raiffeisenbank from Moody’s is Baa3 with a stable out-

look. The Banker gave the company, which now occupies fourth place on the Bulgarian market,

its 2008 Bank of the Year award.

Monetary values in € million 2008 2007 Change

Loans and advances to customers 3,364 2,539 32.5%

Deposits from customers 2,230 1,848 20.7%

Balance sheet total 4,766 3,963 20.2%

Profit before tax 78 69 12.9%

Profit after tax 70 62 12.9%

Return on equity before tax 23.4% 38.2% (14.8) PP

Return on equity after tax 21.0% 34.5% (13.5) PP

Cost/income ratio 47.4% 53.2% (5.8) PP

Employees 3,708 3,051 21.5%

Business outlets 197 152 29.6%
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Croatia

The Croatian economy slowed significantly in 2008 with real GDP growth of 2.2 per cent com-
pared with an increase of 5.6 per cent in 2007. As in previous years, the Croatian kuna reached
its highs at the peak of the tourist season again in 2008. The Croatian banking sector, which has
the highes’r rate of market penetration in all of Central and Eastern Europe after Slovenia, was hit
relatively hard by the rising cost and shortage of external funding due to its high share of foreign
currency loans. Total bank assets increased by about 3.5 per cent in 2008.

After the founding of Raiffeisenbank Austria d.d. in 1994, Raiffeisen successively expanded its
presence Croatia. At the end of 2008, Raiffeisenbank Austria was the country’s fourth-largest
bank with a balance sheet total of € 6.0 billion, which represents an increase of 7.3 per cent
compared with 2007. Not least due to the stronger growth of the branch network last year to
79 business outlets as of 31 December, the number of customers served rose in the reporting
period by 29,300 to about 582,000. The number of employees grew in the same period by
24410 2,333.

Besides serving private individuals, making loans to large and medium-sized corporate custom-
ers was another focus of Raiffeisenbank Austria’s business activity as a universal bank. Total
lendings to customers rose in the reporting period to € 3.9 billion, while customer deposits
increased to € 3.3 billion.

After 54.1 per cent in the preceding year, the cost/income ratio of Raiffeisen in Croatia improved
in 2008 to 61.2 per cent. Thanks primarily to the widely diversified range of services such as
leasing, asset management, factoring, insurance, and pension plans, profit before tax rose in
2008 to € 76 million. Profit after tax amounted to € 61 million. The return on equity thus came to
11.7 per cent before tax, and to 9.3 per cent after tax.

Raiffeisen International was the largest shareholder in Raiffeisenbank Austria d.d. at the end
of 2008 with a stake of 73 per cent, while several Raiffeisen Landesbanken held 24 per cent

indirectly. The remaining shares were owned by employees.

Raiffeisenbank Austria was awarded the title of Best Bank in Croatia by The Banker in 2008.

Monetary values in € million 2008 2007 Change

Loans and advances to customers 3,921 3,390 15.7%

Deposits from customers 3,296 3,233 19.5%

Balance sheet total

5,984 5,578 7.3%

Profit before tax

76 120 (36.7)%

Profit after tax

61 96 (36.5)%

Return on equity before tax 11.7% 21.5% (9.8) PP

Return on equity after tax 9.3% 16.6% (7.3) PP

Cost/income ratio

61.2% 54.1% 7.1 PP

Employees

2,333 2,089 11.7%

Business outlets

79 65 21.5%
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Kosovo

According to an estimate of the International Monetary Fund, real GDP in Kosovo rose in 2008
by 6.1 per cent. Domestic demand was bolstered by contributions from international lender coun-
tries and continuing credit growth. At the same time, the inflation rate increased to 13 per cent
in the first half of the year due to higher energy and food prices. The trade and current account
deficits also grew.

Raiffeisen Bank Kosovo J.S.C. was the country’s second-largest bank at the end of 2008 with
a balance sheet total of € 598 million. Founded in 2001 as American Bank of Kosovo, it was
acquired by Raiffeisen International in 2002. The bank is especially well-positioned in business
with small and medium-sized enterprises, where it has a market share of 35 per cent as measured
by lending business. Among large customers, it has a market share of 60 per cent.

Raiffeisen International had 720 employees in Kosovo at the end of 2008. The branch network
was expanded by 9 in the year under review to 47 business outlets. Mobile bankers additionally
supported the bank’s position on this small, but dynamic market. The total number of customers
increased by 32.6 per cent on an annual basis to about 229,000. Compared with 2007, total
lendings rose by 25.1 per cent to € 424 million. The deposit portfolio increased by 26 per cent
in 2008 to € 495 million.

The cost/income ratio of Raiffeisen in Kosovo improved to 45.2 per cent. Profit before tax amount-
ed to € 20 million after € 18.3 million in the preceding year, while profit after tax stood at
€ 15 million. The return on equity thus came to 34.7 per cent before tax, and to 25.5 per cent
after tax.

Euromoney awarded Raiffeisen Bank Kosovo the title of the country’s Best Bank in 2008.

Monetary values in € million 2008 2007

Change

Loans and advances to customers 424 339

251%

Deposits from customers 495 393

26.0%

Balance sheet total 598 473

26.4%

Profit before tax 20 18

9.3%

Profit after tax 15 15

2.0%

Return on equity before tax 34.7% 41.5%

(6.8) PP

Return on equity after tax 25.5% 33.3%

(7.8) PP

Cost/income ratio 45.2% 43.3%

1.9 PP

Employees 720 554

30.0%

Business outlets 47 38

23.7%

Romania

The Romanian economy achieved GDP growth of 7.2 per cent in 2008 not least thanks to a good
harvest, after economic development in 2007 had suffered from weather-related crop failures.
The inflation rate rose in this environment to 7.9 per cent on average mainly because of higher
energy and food prices. Given the difficult financial market environment worldwide, the Romanian
leu, which had registered slightly positive development until mid-year, came under devaluation
pressure in the second half of the year. Although the Romanian banking sector has grown strongly
in the past years, it still shows relatively low market penetration compared with other Central
and Eastern European countries. Total bank assets grew by about 24 per cent in 2008. Due to
the devaluation of the leu, that represents an increase of about 12.5 per cent on a euro basis.
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Raiffeisen has had a presence in Romania since the founding of Raiffeisen Bank S.A. in 1998. At
the end of 2008, it had a balance sheet total of € 6.6 billion, which is 17.1 per cent more than
in the preceding year, and had about 6,899 employees. Raiffeisen Bank is the country’s third-
largest bank since its merger with Banca Agricola in 2002.

As a universal bank, Raiffeisen Bank offers a full range of financial services and products to its
customers, who numbered about 2 million at the end of 2008. Its national network, which was
expanded last year by 122 business outlets, consisted of 557 business outlets as of 31 Decem-
ber. The bank focused its attention in the past year mainly on expanding dealings with private
individuals in all business areas. That included specific products for upscale private individuals
and lending business with medium-sized corporate customers.

At the end of 2008, customer deposits in Romania stood with € 3.5 billion on preceding
year's level, while lending to customers rose by 30.1 per cent on an annual basis to about

€ 4.6 billion.

In addition to banking business, Raiffeisen is also one of the leading firms in Romania in leas-
ing, insurance, asset management, building society saving, and capital market dealings. Raiff-
eisen Asset Management SA, for example, is one of the three most important providers of asset
management, and Raiffeisen Capital & Investment SA ranks as the second-largest investment
bank. Raiffeisen Leasing IFN SA occupied third place among Romania’s leasing companies in
2008, with total new business of € 150 million.

The cost/income ratio of Raiffeisen in Rumania improved last year to 53.3 per cent, which reflects
strong centralization of all business processes. Against that background, profit before tax of
€ 193 million was achieved, which led to a return on equity before tax of 46.6 per cent. The
return on equity after tax of 39.0 per cent resulted from a taxed profit of € 161 million.

Except for a small free float, Raiffeisen Bank was owned by Raiffeisen International as of

31 December 2008.

Moody’s gives Raiffeisen Bank a foreign currency deposit rating of Baa3 with a stable
outlook. Global Finance awarded the bank the title of Best Consumer Internet Bank in Romania

in 2008.

Monetary values in € million 2008 2007 Change

Loans and advances to customers 4,594 3,532 30.1%

Deposits from customers 3,525 3,538 (0.4)%

Balance sheet total

6,561 5,603 17.1%

Profit before tax

193 124 55.9%

Profit after tax

161 101 60.2%

Return on equity before tax 46.6% 30.8% 15.8 PP

Return on equity after tax 39.0% 25.0% 14.0 PP

Cost/income ratio

53.3% 63.5% (10.2) PP

Employees

6,899 5,948 16.0%

Business outlets

557 435 28.0%
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Serbia

Growth of Serbia’s GDP amounted to 6.5 per cent in the reporting period, while inflation aver-
aged 12.8 per cent in 2008 due to the rise of energy and food prices. After revaluing until about
mid-year, the Serbian dinar came under devaluation pressure in the second half because of the
global financial market crisis. Serbia’s total bank assets increased by about 11 per cent in 2008.
They remained nearly unchanged on a euro basis, however, due to the dinar’s devaluation.

Raiffeisen International had a balance sheet total of € 2.9 billion in Serbia at the end of 2008.
It founded Raiffeisen banka a.d. there in 2001. Now the country’s second-largest lending institu-
tion, this universal bank offers financial services in all customer segments. Its wide range of bank
products and services is completed by the Raiffeisen Leasing d.o.o., Raiffeisen Voluntary Pension
Fund, and an asset management company.

In retail and corporate customer business and in the treasury and investment banking areas,
Raiffeisen banka is one of the best addresses in the Serbia banking market. Business with
affluent customers was expanded in 2008. In addition, the successful course taken in the area
of small and medium-sized enterprises was continued. Consequently, total lendings to custom-
ers increased by about € 2.0 billion in 2008, and customer deposits totaled € 1.2 billion at
year's end. Altogether, Raiffeisen banka and its subsidiaries had 2,210 employees serving over
585,000 customers in 103 business outlets at the end of 2008.

The improvement of the cost/income ratio from 58.9 per cent to 49.2 per cent in 2008 was
reflected in profit before tax of € 87 million. Profit after tax amounted to € 80 million. On that
basis, the return on equity reached 19.8 per cent before tax, and 18.1 per cent after tax.

Both Euromoney and Global Finance awarded Raiffeisen banka a.d. the title of Best Bank in
Serbia in 2008.

Monetary values in € million 2008 2007 Change
Loans and advances to customers 1,963 1,704 15.2%
Deposits from customers 1,205 1,329 (9.3)%
Balance sheet total 2,913 2914 (0.1)%
Profit before tax 87 62 41.4%
Profit after tax 80 61 31.1%
Return on equity before tax 19.8% 20.5% (0.7) PP
Return on equity after tax 18.1% 20.3% (2.2) PP
Cost/income ratio 49.2% 58.9% (9.7) PP
Employees 2,210 2,111 4.7%
Business outlets 103 92 12.0%
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CIS

in € million 2008 2007 Change
Net interest income 1,297 921 40.7%
Provisioning for impairment losses (356) (176) 102.6%
Net interest income after provisioning 941 745 26.2%
Net fee and commission income 457 393 16.2%
Net trading income 161 47 239.7%
Net income from derivatives (8) (31) (72.5)%
Net income from financial investments (8) (3) 206.9%
General administrative expenses (853) (691) 23.3%

of which staff costs (425) (357) 19.0%

of which other administrative expenses (362) (269) 34.4%

of which depreciation/amortization/write-downs (66) (65) 0.9%
Other Net operating income (23) (21) 9.0%
Net income from disposal of group assets - 3 -
Profit before tax 665 442 50.4%
Income taxes (192) (116) 65.3%
Profit after tax 474 326 45.1%
Minority interests in profit 3 (17) (118.4)%
Consolidated profit 477 311 53.3%
Share of profit before tax 40.5% 32.3% 8.3 PP
Share of profit after tax 37.2% 29.7% 7.5 PP
Risk-weighted assets (credit risk) 18,063 15,344 17.7%
Own funds requirement 1,594 1,278 24.7%
Total assets 22,980 19,537 17.6%
Liabilities 20,428 17,405 17.4%
Risk/earnings ratio 27.5% 19.1% 8.4 PP
Cost/income ratio 451% 51.6% (6.5) PP
Average equity 1,965 1,482 32.6%
Return on equity before tax 33.9% 29.9% 4.0 PP
Average number of employees 29,665 28,197 5.2%
Business outlets 1,475 1,510 (2.3)%

Profit before tax of this segment grew in the period under review by 50 per cent, or € 223 million,
to € 665 million. The increase of earnings in the region was significantly greater than in the rest of
the Group. It resulted mainly from very high growth of net interest income and trading profit. The
return on equity before tax rose accordingly by 4.0 percentage points to 33.9 per cent.
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With a plus of 41 per cent, or € 375 million, to € 1,297 million, development of the region’s net in-
terest income was significantly more dynamic than that of balance sheet assets, which increased
by 18 per cent, or € 3.4 billion, to € 22.9 billion. An important reason for that was a significantly
improved net interest margin, which rose by 64 basis points to 6.10 per cent.

Risk-weighted assets increased in line with balance sheet assets by 18 per cent to € 18.1 billion.
That development was shaped by opposing influences. Growing retail business benefited from
the more favorable Basel Il calculation, since the preceding year’s comparable values had still
been based on the Basel | calculation. On the other hand, expansion of business with corporates
led to a comparatively stronger increase in risk-weighted assets.

The allocation to provisioning for impairment losses doubled from € 176 million in the compa-
rable period to € 356 million in the year under review. This increase was mainly due to extensive
portfolio-related provisions, formed in connection with loans to private individuals in Ukraine. The
reason for that was the sharp currency decline, which has led to higher debt service payments
for customers. On the other hand, the increase of individual provisions came to only 37 per cent
and was mostly a consequence of retail customers. The risk/earnings ratio rose by 8.4 percent-
age points to 27.5 per cent. The share of the loan portfolio attributable to non-performing loans
increased by 186 basis points and reached 3.61 per cent.

Net fee and commission income registered growth in 2008 of € 64 million to € 457 million.
Payment transfer business was the most important source at € 261 million. Foreign currency and
precious-metals business contributed € 146 million.

Net trading income grew from € 47 million to € 161 million. Currency-related business gave rise
here to income of € 199 million. Most of that (€ 145 million) derived from hedging transactions
in the Group's Russian unit aimed at minimizing the currency risk of certain loan portfolios. On the
other hand, interest-related business brought a loss of € 50 million, which was mainly based on
valuation losses on securities of corporates in Russia.

Net income from derivative financial instruments amounted to minus € 8 million in the year under
review. That was largely based on a valuation result in Russia, where interest rate swaps had
been entered into to reduce yield curve risk.

Net income from financial investments also amounted to minus € 8 million. A positive earnings
contribution of € 10 million derived from the sale of other participations of the Russian network
bank. On the other hand, the valuation losses of the securities portfolio, which were incurred
primarily at the Group's Ukrainian subsidiary, had a negative effect.

General administrative expenses rose by 23 per cent, or € 161 million, to € 853 million. Staff
costs went up 19 per cent, or € 68 million, to € 425 million. The region showed the highest aver-
age number of employees at 29,665, with the increase on the comparable period amounting
to 1,468. Other administrative expenses rose by 34 per cent, or € 93 million, to € 362 million,
for which a significant increase of rental expenses in the Group’s Russian units was mainly re-
sponsible. At € 66 million, depreciation/amortization/write-downs remained at the comparable
period’s level. The region’s cost/income ratio improved significantly by 6.5 percentage points to
45.1 per cent.

The segment’s other net operating income amounted to minus € 23 million and remained at the
preceding year's level. Expenses for taxes not dependent on income and allocations to other pro-
visions for expenses and provisions for restructuring (the latter in Russia) were mainly responsible
for that result.
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In the preceding year, net income from disposal of Group assets of € 3 million had to be taken
into account. In the period under review, there were no disposals from the scope of consolidation
from the region.

Income taxes rose by 65 per cent on the comparable period and came to € 192 million. Be-
cause of the different bases for tax assessment, they grew somewhat more strongly than earnings
before tax did. Minority interests in profit fell in the period under review through elimination of
non-Group losses of a Russian Group unit. Earnings after tax and minority interests increased to
€ 477 million, which means a plus of 53 per cent.

Belarus

The Belarusian economy achieved real GDP growth of 10 per centin 2008. Although the central
bank kept the Belarusian rouble stable relative to the US$ throughout the year, the inflation
rate averaged 14.8 per cent. Despite strong growth in recent years, the Belarusian banking
sector exhibits relative low market penetration compared with other Central and Eastern Euro-
pean countries. Total bank assets registered growth of almost 60 per cent in 2008.

Founded in 1989 as a commercial customer bank, Priorbank, OAO is now the country's
third-largest bank, measured by balance sheet totals. Operating in Belarus since 2002,
Raiffeisen had a balance sheet total of about € 1.6 billion at the end of 2008. It had about
2,170 employees, serving almost 856,000 customers in 103 business outlets. Raiffeisen has built
up a dynamic personal customer business in Belarus in recent years and expanded its branch
network by 20 business outlets in 2008. In addition to a network of mobile bankers, it cooperates
in distribution with post office branches, which are very successful, particularly in selling simple
savings products. Moreover, Raiffeisen offers home financing by way of its own mortgage cen-
ters. It thus acquired on average more than 10,000 new customers per month in 2008.

One of the country’s leading leasing companies, SOOQ Raiffeisen Leasing generated new busi-
ness in the amount of € 54.9 million in 2008. The lending business of Priorbank reached a
total of € 1.2 billion as of 31 December 2008, while deposit business grew by 16.2 per cent to
€ 0.6 billion thanks to an enlarged branch network and new joint marketing arrangement with
the Belarusian postal service.

Despite expansion in personal customer business, the cost/income ratio of Raiffeisen in Belarus
reached 47.8 per cent in the reporting period, which underscores the high cost efficiency of
operations in Belarus. Profit before tax amounted to € 54 million and led to a return on equity
before tax of 38.4 per cent. The return on equity after tax of 27.1 per cent resulted from profit
after tax of about € 38 million.

Raiffeisen International held a clear majority in Priorbank, OAO of 88 per cent at the end of the
reporting period. The remaining shares were in free float.

Priorbank was again awarded the title of Best Bank in Belarus by the financial magazine
Euromoney in the year under review.
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Monetary values in € million 2008 2007

Change

Loans and advances to customers 1,249 837

49.2%

Deposits from customers 645 555

16.2%

Balance sheet total 1,646 1,081

52.3%

Profit before tax 54 39

38.5%

Profit after tax 38 27

40.7%

Return on equity before tax 38.4% 37.4%

1.0 PP

Return on equity after tax 27.1% 26.0%

1.1 PP

Cost/income ratio 47.8% 50.5%

(2.7) PP

Employees 2,148 1,899

14.2%

Business outlets 103 83

24.1%

Russia

The Russian economy registered real GDP growth of 5.6 per cent in 2008. Strong performance
in the first half of the year, supported largely by the rise of crude oil prices to historical highs, was
followed by a slump in the second half, which was reflected in, among other things, a devalu-
ation of the Russian rouble against the currency basket. However, high reserves have allowed
the government and central bank to give the financial sector and important enterprises massive
support. Total bank assets registered growth of about 25 per cent in 2008. Converted to euros,
that amounted to about 8.5 per cent due to the devaluation of the ruble.

Founded in 1996, ZAO Raiffeisenbank is now one of Russia’s leading banks. The balance sheet
total of Raiffeisen International in Russia rose by 22.8 per cent in the year under review to around
€ 15 billion, and by expanding its network further in 2008, the bank is now represented in 45 of
83 regions of the Russian Federation. As a universal bank, Raiffeisenbank offers its products to
both retail and corporate customers.

The corporate customer segment registered significant growth of lending in the year under review.
The loan portfolio increased by 4.2 per cent on 2007 to € 6.1 billion at the end of 2008. The
number of corporate customers served rose to about 9,500 in the year under review. Total depos-
its of corporate customers at ZAO Raiffeisenbank amounted to € 2.9 billion at the end of 2008.

Raiffeisenbank likewise successfully defended its strong position in the retail customer segment
and continued the positive trend of recent years. The number of retail customers grew by 16.9 per
cent to 1.65 million at the end of 2008. The loan portfolio in this segment registered an increase
of 19.3 per cent in 2008 to € 2.7 billion as of year’s end, while deposits from retail customers
rose to € 2.9 billion. Jointly with subsidiaries OOO Raiffeisen Leasing, OOO Raiffeisen Capital
Asset Management, and NPF Raiffeisen, Raiffeisenbank had 1.7 million customers and 10,276
employees in 236 business outlets in the year under review.

Taking up a syndicated loan of US$ 1 billion - the largest funding transaction of a Raiffeisen
International network bank to date - was an important measure in the past year.

The cost/income ratio of Raiffeisen in Russia improved to 42.6 per cent in 2008 from 49.1 per
cent in the preceding year. Profit before tax amounted to € 438 million at the end of 2008 (2007
€ 260 million), and profit after tax to € 313 million (2007: € 197 million). The resulting return on
equity was 36.2 per cent before tax and 25.8 per cent after tax.
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Standard & Poor’s last rated Raiffeisenbank at BBB with a stable outlook, which was better than
the agency’s rating for the country overall. Fitch Ratings gave the bank an A- with a negative
outlook, which was also better than Russia’s rating. The rating from Moody’s is Baal with a stable
outlook and is thus slightly below the Russian government's rating.

Monetary values in € million 2008 2007 Change
Loans and advances to customers 9,381 8,536 9.7%
Deposits from customers 6,065 5,650 7.3%
Balance sheet total 14,952 12,171 22.8%
Profit before tax 438 260 68.3%
Profit after tax 313 197 58.8%
Return on equity before tax 36.2% 26.6% 9.6 PP
Return on equity after tax 25.8% 20.2% 5.6 PP
Cost/income ratio 42.6% 491% (6.5) PP
Employees 10,276 8,915 15.3%
Business outlets 236 240 (1.7)%

Ukraine

Ukraine was among the first Central and Eastern European countries that claimed financial sup-
port from the IMF in the second half of 2008. The global financial market crisis called into
question both the stability of the country’s economy and confidence in its currency. Against that
background, the Ukrainian hryvnia dropped sharply in value. The Ukrainian banking sector,
which has experienced a boom in recent years, suffered greatly from the rising cost and shortage
of external funding because of its high proportion of foreign currency loans. It registered growth
again in 2008, but because of the crisis in the second half of the year, that came almost entirely
from the first half. Total bank assets increased by about 55 per cent in 2008. Expressed in euros,
that represents an increase by about 8.3 per cent due to the sharp devaluation of the hryvnia.

Founded in 1992, VAT Bank Aval developed within a few years into one of Ukraine's leading
banks. It was taken over by Raiffeisen in 2005, and its name was changed to Raiffeisen Bank
Aval the following year. Measured by its balance sheet total, it was the country’s second-largest
bank as of 31 December 2008. As a universal bank, it serves both private individuals and small
and medium-sized enterprises as well as corporate customers. lts range includes a wide variety
of credit and investment products, completed by the services of LLC Raiffeisen Leasing Aval and
Raiffeisen Asset Management companies.

With 1,134 business outlets, Raiffeisen in Ukraine has one of the country’s largest distribution net-
works, which was further optimized in 2008. The customer base in Ukraine included around 4.5
million private individuals and about 210,000 small and medium-sized enterprises in addition to
about 6,800 corporate customers in the year under review.

The loan portfolio of Raiffeisen Bank Aval increased by 2.7 per cent in 2008 to € 5.3 billion,
while deposits declined by 20.6 per cent to € 2.4 billion. The balance sheet total increased by
1.9 per cent to € 6.3 billion. As a consequence of the financial crisis, however, the staff had to be
reduced in the fourth quarter of 2008 by 412 to 17,368 employees.
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Restructuring and increased cost control in Ukraine, which began immediately after the takeover,
found expression last year in an improved cost/income ratio of 48.2 per cent and growing finan-
cial strength. The return on equity rose to 23.3 per cent on profit before tax of € 176 million. The
return on equity after tax of 16.8 per cent resulted from profit after tax of € 127 million.

After acquiring 94 per cent of VAT Bank Aval in October 2005, Raiffeisen International increased
its stake to 96 per cent by the end of December 2008. The remaining shares were in free float.

In the context of a general downgrade of the Ukrainian government, the bank’s rating was
changed in 2008 by Moody’s to B2 with a stable outlook.

Monetary values in € million 2008 2007 Change
Loans and advances to customers 5,261 5,125 2.7%
Deposits from customers 2,399 3,023 (20.6)%
Balance sheet total 6,285 6,166 1.9%
Profit before tax 176 142 24.3%
Profit after tax 127 101 25.7%
Return on equity before tax 23.3% 19.3% 4.0 PP
Return on equity after tax 16.8% 13.8% 3.0PP
Cost/income ratio 48.2% 62.0% (13.8) PP
Employees 17,368 17,780 (2.3)%
Business outlets 1,134 1,186 (4.4)%
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Business divisions

As well as the regional segmentation Raiffeisen International is structured into business divisions
which reflect the internal organization and reporting structure. Business is divided into the follow-
ing divisions:

®m Corporate customers

® Retail customers

B Treasury

m Participations and other

The corporate customers division comprises business with large corporates and mid market com-
panies from Central and Eastern Europe (CEE) as well as with companies from other countries that
are operating in the CEE region, including especially multinationals. Sales volume is used as the
relevant criteria between large corporates and mid market companies. Small and medium-sized
companies are considered corporate customers if their annual sales are at least € 5 million or they
are clearly project or trade finance companies. All other small and medium-sized enterprises are
included in the small entities sub-division of the retail customers division.

The public sector and companies owned by state-owned entities and institutions are also part of the
corporate customers division. The public sector comprises all public sector entities such as ministries,
provinces, municipalities and similar public corporations. Embassies and trade representations also
belong fo this division.

Moreover, business with banks, providers of financial services, or insurance companies is reported
in this division (financial institutions). This excludes transactions that are connected to proprietary
trading with financial instruments or invested for the asset and liability management as those are
allocated to the treasury division. The banks subdivision encompasses national and international
commercial, retail and private banks. Banks also include supranational institutions like the World
Bank, the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD), the European Investment
Bank (EIB), and the International Monetary Fund (IMF). Financial service providers include brokers
and asset managers such as investment banks, investment fund companies, leasing companies.
Insurance companies consist of all kind of insurers and reinsurers. They include property, health, life
and pension insurers.

Because of the minor importance of public sector and financial institutions for the consolidated
results of Raiffeisen International, their results are included in the corporate customers division.

The retail customers division includes private individuals (consumers) and small and medium-sized
enterprises with an annual turnover of less than € 5 million (small enterprises). There may be minor
deviations in some countries. Small enterprises engaged in project or trade finance related activities
are not included. Furthermore, micro customers, whose annual revenues are less than € 1 million
and where exposure is lower than € 100 thousand are included. They are offered standardized
products such as savings accounts, time deposits, current and salary accounts, consumer credits,
overdraft lines, credit cards, and mortgages as well as other earmarked loans.

Earnings arising from private banking provided by a number of Group units are also included in this
customer division. For high-net-worth individuals an individualized advisory approach is applied
and asset management services are offered.
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The treasury division encompasses the treasury’s proprietary trading and investment banking
activities, which are carried out only in a few Group units.
Own-account trading involves on-balance and off-balance sheet interest and currency products
(futures, and options), which include money market transactions, currency transactions, cash man-
agement, refindncing and osset/|iobi|ity management (maturity conversion). Proprietary trctding in
financial instruments is centrally controlled and subject fo strictly monitored limits. In addition, Raiff-
eisen International has a portfolio of medium-term and long-term financial investments.
Whereas the entirety of the Group's proprietary trading is shown in the treasury division, treasury
activities carried out on customers’ account are recognized in other divisions like corporate custom-
ers and retail customers. That part of proceeds exceeding market prices is assigned to the customer
divisions.
Besides non-banking activities, the participations and other division encompasses the manage-
ment of participations. Moreover, other general activities are involved, including especially those
carried out by the parent company Raiffeisen International Bank-Holding AG.
BUS'"GSS d|V|S|°n overview
Financial year 2008
Corporate Retail Participations

in € million Customers  Customers  Treasury and Other Total
Net interest income 1,113 1,844 172 103 3,232
Provisioning for impairment loss (269) (507) (3) (1 (780)
Net interest income
after provisioning 844 1,337 169 102 2,452
Net fee and commission income 531 962 5 (1) 1,496
Net trading income 1 1 169 (3) 168
Net income from derivatives - - (20) - (20)
Net income from financial investments 1 0 (48) 21 (26)
General administrative expenses (526) (1,876) (108) (123) (2,633)
Other net operating income 33 12 0 (61) (16)
Net ncome from disposal of group assets - - - 8 8
Profit before tax 884 435 166 (56) 1,429
Risk-weighted assets, credit risk 31,132 19,063 6,879 3,313 60,388
Own funds requirement 2,642 1,779 1,075 271 5,767
Average number of staff 9,760 48,062 1,529 2,103 61,454
Cost/income ratio 31.3% 66.6% 31.3% - 54.0%
Average equity 3,348 1,949 648 538 6,483
Return on equity before tax 26.4% 22.3% 25.6% - 22.0%
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Financial year 2007

Corporate Retail Participations

in € million Customers  Customers Treasury and Other Total
Net interest income 798 1,441 151 28 2,419
Provisioning for impairment loss (134) (218) 0 (4) (357)
Net interest income

after provisioning 664 1,223 151 24 2,062
Net fee and commission income 420 799 22 8 1,250
Net trading income 3 129 (9) 128
Net income from derivatives 0 (9) (22) - (30)
Net income from financial investments 1 0 (9) (1) (9)
General administrative expenses (447) (1,537) (83) (116) (2,184)
Other net operating income 27 7 0 (39) (5)
Net income from disposal of group assets - - - 27 27
Profit before tax 669 487 188 (106) 1,238
Risk-weighted assets,credit risk 24,743 18,978 1,780 4,301 49802
Own funds requirement 1,980 1,518 475 344 4,317
Average number of staff 8,089 44,582 1,244 1,635 55,550
Cost/income ratio 35.8% 68.3% 27.6% - 57.6%
Average equity 2,215 1,649 572 374 4,810
Return on equity before tax 30.2% 29.5% 32.9% - 25.7%

Corporate customers

The corporate customers division registered strong earnings growth in the year under review.
Profit before tax increased by 32 per cent on the comparable period to € 884 million. Operating
business developed positively in all respects. Net interest income rose by 39 per centto € 1,113
million, and net fee and commission income registered a significant plus of 26 per cent to € 531
million. Altogether, the division’s operating income rose by 34 per cent from € 1,250 million to
€ 1,678 million. Provisioning for impairment losses doubled to € 269 million.

General administrative expenses grew by a moderate 18 per cent to € 526 million, which further
improved the cost/income ratio to 31.3 per cent. Other net operating income rose by 25 per cent
to € 33 million, to which operating leasing contributed the most at € 28 million. Risk-weighted
assets for credit risk according to Basel Il amounted to € 31.1 billion, which means an increase
of 26 per cent on the preceding year’s comparable value, still calculated according to Basel I.
In addition to business expansion, the new method of calculation, which in particular burdens
loans and advances to banks and to the public sector with higher risk weightings, was also
responsible for this.

Despite high profit, the return on equity before tax declined by 3.8 percentage points to
26.4 per cent due to a sharply increased equity base. This division’s share of total earnings rose
by 8 percentage points to 62 per cent.
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For the corporate customer division, the past year was shaped by two opposing business devel-
opments. On the one hand, the division registered profit before tax of € 884 million, its best result
in Raiffeisen International’s history, and once again proved to be a foundational core business
of the Group. On the other hand, the final months of 2008 were already characterized by the
effects of the financial crisis.

Against this background, the strategy of concentrating acquisition efforts on mid-market cus-
tomers and on long-term customer relationships with main bank status has proved its value.
Raiffeisen International is achieving great proximity to customers with this business model, which
enables it to recognize opportunities and risks early and adjust to them accordingly. Moreover,
the company’s mid-market strategy has led to a corresponding diversification of its customer port-
folio, which may be regarded as a strong advantage given the difficult market environment.

With a business model based on close customer relationships and with wide regional and
sectoral diversification, Raiffeisen International is well-prepared for the expected effects of the
financial crisis. The focus of the corporate customer division in 2009 will be primarily on deposit
business, corporate cash management, and factoring products.

The long-standing cooperation between the risk management teams of the network banks and
the sales force was further intensified and optimized in the past year. That made it possible to
analyze the risks of certain products, customers, and sectors, e.g., from real estate projects, and
to develop measures early to avoid or manage them.

Concentration on mid-market

A key measure to boost the company’s position in the mid-market is “Formula Uno”, a marketing
project. Proceeding from a detailed market analysis, trend forecasts have been prepared for
each country based on a market model. That is the foundation for setting individual acquisition
and cross-selling targets for each customer adviser with the help of an international customer
portfolio and product need analysis.

Raiffeisen International has always supplied leading Western European banks that have no
branches of their own in Central and Eastern Europe with services for their mid-market customers
in the framework of cooperative relationships. The customers of these cooperating banks are
referred to international desks. That ensures an especially service-oriented reception for Western
European customers by highly qualified contact persons.

The corporate customer division benefited again in 2008 from cultivating and intensifying these
cooperative relationships. The focus was on advising and supporting Western European busi-
nesses of very high credit standing in opening offices and establishing companies in Central and
Eastern Europe. Since these new customers already have a corresponding track record in their
home countries, Raiffeisen International can offer simplified, customer-friendly solutions thanks to
the support provided - in consultation with the customer - by the respective cooperating bank.
With the help of this strategy, Raiffeisen International again expanded its leading position with
international customers in 2008.

In 2009, Raiffeisen International will continue its proven business model in the corporate customer
division with emphasis on full service for its main bank customers.
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Retail customers

Profit before tax in the retail customers division fell by 11 per cent on the comparable period
to € 435 million. A 133 per cent increase of new allocations to provisioning for impairment losses
(€ 507 million) and a rise of general administrative expenses by 22 per cent to € 1,876 million
due to continuing investments in the branch network were mainly responsible for this decline.

Operating income from the retail customers division grew by 25 per cent to € 2,819 mil-
lion. The greatest increase was achieved in net interest income with a plus of 28 per
cent to € 1,844 million. Net fee and commission income rose by 20 per cent and reached
€ 962 million. Despite continued high general administrative expenses, the cost/income ratio fell
by 1.7 percentage points to 66.6 per cent. Risk-weighted assets amounted to € 19.1 billion at
the end of the period under review and therefore remained at the preceding year's level. Despite
organic growth, the Basel Il rules led to a lower weighting of total lendings to retail customers
compared with the preceding year’s value calculated according to Basel |.

The return on equity before tax fell sharply by 7.2 percentage points to 22.3 per cent due to
strong growth of the equity base in the past year and the decline in profit. The division’s share of
total earnings dropped by 9 percentage points to 30 per cent.

Unique network in Central and Eastern Europe

In the retail customer segment, Raiffeisen International was serving almost 14.7 million private
individuals and small enterprises at the end of the reporting period through business outlets,
ATMs, and internet and phone banking. Customers had at their disposal the 3,213 branches of
the largest banking network in Central and Eastern Europe, almost 6,600 ATMs, and more than
60 mortgage centers for their daily banking and financial transactions. More than 20,000 adyvis-
ers helped customers with all questions related to checking and savings accounts, payment trans-
fers, real estate financing, consumer loans, and credit cards. Moreover, Raiffeisen International
offered its customers the possibility of financing with more than 1,500 automobile dealers and
2,150 retailers.

Raiffeisen International’s focus increasingly shifted last year to attracting customer deposits.
Numerous marketing campaigns were initiated for this purpose and led in the fourth quarter to
a strong inflow of customer deposits, which thus returned to the level before the financial crisis
escalated. In December, the retail customer segment registered the highest monthly inflows of
customer deposits to date. The intensive marketing activities and efforts in this direction are to
continue in 2009.

Retail business continues to grow

Raiffeisen International opened 216 new business outlets in the past year and is thus present with
its network now in most large cities of Central and Eastern Europe. Now that expansion of the
branch network has been suspended temporarily because of the financial crisis, the focus is shift-
ing fo continuously improving service quality. Optimizing processes and strengthening complaint
management are initially at the forefront in the effort to increase customer satisfaction and reduce
account closings by customers.
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Raiffeisen International further expanded its offering of credit and debit cards in 2008. That
involved not only increasing the number of cards issued, but also promoting their active use by
cardholders to raise contribution margins. Altogether, the number of credit cards issued rose in
the reporting period to 1.7 million, and that of debit cards to 8.2 million. Transaction volume
increased from € 15 billion in the preceding year to € 21.4 billion in the reporting period. Various
new products were also launched on the market in 2008, including for example products intro-
duced by Raiffeisen Bank Aval in cooperation with MTS, the third-largest mobile phone carrier
in Ukraine.

Raiffeisen International also offers card processing services for retailers in 11 of its 15 markets. In
8 of those, the Group's network banks rank among the country’s top three and thus make Raiff-
eisen International one of the most important regional providers in this area.

All-finance business continues to develop as a key element of Raiffeisen International’s retail
strategy. Total commissions generated by selling insurance thus increased by 44 per cent on an
annual comparison. That development was positively influenced by the launch of new products,
higher sales goals in the entire network, and a strategic partnership with insurance company
UNIQA Versicherungen AG. A large part of the net commission income resulted from products
connected with lending to retail customers. In view of the expected growth decline in lending
business, however, other products such as life insurance, for example, are likely to play an impor-
tant role for further growth in this area in the years ahead.

Because of the turmoil on the stock markets worldwide, assets under management declined by
28 per cent in 2008 to € 3.4 billion. On the other hand, about 60 per cent of the money from
returned investment fund shares was kept in the Group as customer deposits. In the expectation
of a more positive environment, Raiffeisen International is now developing in cooperation with
Raiffeisen Capital Management both specific local products and international investment funds.

Despite the significantly worsened economic situation, Raiffeisen International registered good
business development in 2008 in the area of small businesses. That was attributable in particular
to non-interest-bearing business. Deposit business again benefited from higher margins. Business
with self-employed persons (businesses with sales of less than € 1 million) was further expanded
by means of extensive marketing initiatives and measures in the product, process, and risk areas.

Raiffeisen International also achieved great progress in 2008 in business with affluent private
individuals (assets above € 25,000). This new business area was taken up in Croatia, the Czech
Republic, Romania, Russia, and Serbia, and more countries are to follow in 2009. The goal is
appeal to discriminating customers with a balanced offering of sales and advice. Income from
business with affluent private individuals contributed around 11 per cent to the retail segment’s
total result in 2008 and is expected to continue growing in the years ahead.

Raiffeisen International’s retails business will be shaped by four factors in 2009, which are ex-
pected to strengthen the distribution network. An important goal is to increase customer deposits.
Also, the infrastructure of customer relationship management is to be further developed. It is also
planned to realize a customer service initiative in all network banks and to expand the range and
distribution capacities for affluent private individuals and self-employed individuals.
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Treasury

The treasury division achieved profit before tax of € 166 million (minus 12 per cent). The positive
earnings contribution was achieved despite a loss from financial investments and current financial
assets thanks mainly to a 31 per cent increase of trading profit. That rose despite a special effect
that yielded a loss of € 88 million due to the release of a capital hedge primarily because of high
valuation gains from foreign currency derivatives. The loss from financial investments amounted
to € 48 million and was explained by the devaluation of securities following the financial crisis.

General administrative expenses rose by 30 per cent in the year under review. The cost/income
ratio also went up 3.7 percentage points to 31.3 per cent. The own funds requirement and risk-
weighted assets increased sharply due to the initial application of Basel Il rules, which link invest-
ments in sovereigns and banks to the corresponding rating. The preferential weightings according
to Basel | may no longer be applied.

The division’s return on equity before tax fell by 7.3 percentage points to 25.6 per cent due to the
fall in profit and rise of the own funds requirement and of equity calculated on that basis.

Participations and other

Profit before tax in the participations and other division improved by 47 per cent on the compa-
rable period to minus € 56 million. The result is negative mainly because in addition to net income
from participations and non-banking activities, the division includes the costs of central group
management. Those remain in the division and are not distributed to the other business areas.

The division also includes the computational results from the investment of equity, which rose
sharply in the period under review due to the high interest rate level in the CEE region.

Profit before tax by divisions

in € million
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statements

Income statement

€000 Notes 2008 2007 Change
Interest income 6,183,278 4,606,007 34.2%
Current income from associates 603 (691) -
Interest expenses (2,951,871) (2,186,467) 35.0%
Net interest income (2) 3,232,010 2,418,849 33.6%
Provisioning for impairment losses (3) (780,301) (356,977) 118.6%
Net interest income after provisioning 2,451,709 2,061,872 18.9%
Fee and commission income 1,764,236 1,474,635 19.6%
Fee and commission expense (267,867) (224,800) 19.2%
Net fee and commission income (4) 1,496,369 1,249,835 19.7%
Net trading income (5) 167,642 127,891 31.1%
Net income from derivatives (6) (19,921) (30,170) (34.0)%
Net income from financial investments (7) (25,638) (9,243) 177 .4%
General administrative expenses (8) (2,633,030) (2,184,020) 20.6%
Other net operating income Q) (15,856) (5,078) 212.2%
Net income from disposal of group assets (10) 7,860 26,517 (70.4)%
Profit before tax 1,429,135 1,237,604 15.5%
Income taxes (1 (350,880) (264,149) 32.8%
Profit after tax 1,078,255 973,455 10.8%
Minority interests in profit (96,269) (132,197) (27.2)%
Consolidated profit 981,986 841,258 16.7%
in€ Notes 2008 2007 Change
Earnings per share (12) 6.39 5.80 0.59

There were no conversion or option rights outstanding, so undiluted earnings per share are equal to
diluted earnings per share.
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Profit development
P

Quarterly results
€000 Q1/2008 Q2/2008 Q3/2008 Q4/2008
Net interest income 711,123 786,471 844,086 890,330
Provisioning for impairment losses (93,032) (108,342) (164,163) (414,764)
Net interest income after provisioning 618,091 678,130 679,923 475,566
Net fee and commission income 330,866 371,989 394,925 398,588
Net trading income 37,578 54,598 35,187 40,280
Net income from derivatives (36,712) 44,109 (6,292) (21,026)
Net income from financial investments (1,53¢) 884 10,782 (35,768)
General administrative expenses (584,430) (665,458) (689,650) (693,492)
Other net operating income 5,753 (16,996) (6,384) 1,771
Net income from disposal of group assets — 5,834 (188) 2,213
Profit before tax 369,609 473,090 418,304 168,133
Income taxes (90,227) (106,027) (99,324) (55,303)
Profit after tax 279,382 367,063 318,980 112,830
Minority inferests in profit (24,940) (55,813) (23,191) 7,675
Consolidated profit 254,442 311,250 295,788 120,506
€000 Q1/2007 Q2/2007 Q3/2007 Q4/2007
Net interest income 505,009 573,764 625,012 715,063
Provisioning for impairment losses (75,948) (77,319) (88,835) (114,875)
Net interest income after provisioning 429,061 496,445 536,178 600,188
Net fee and commission income 275,075 297,151 322,765 354,844
Net trading income 35,605 43,721 41,435 7,130
Net income from derivatives (2,683) 6,836 (26,336) (7,987)
Net income from financial investments 806 (7,964) (2,894) 809
General administrative expenses (476,533) (526,211) (534,963) (646,313)
Other net operating income 16,986 3,933 (2,455) (23,542)
Net income from disposal of group assets 14,144 204 13,080 (211)
Profit before tax 292,462 314,115 346,809 284,218
Income taxes (61,696) (67,865) (87,219) (47,369)
Profit after tax 230,765 246,250 259,590 236,849
Minority inferests in profit (38,207) (37,435) (35,266) (21,290)
Consolidated profit 192,558 208,816 224,324 215,560
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Balance sheet

Assets

€000 Notes 31.12.2008 31.12.2007 Change
Cash reserve (14,35) 7,129,860 3,664,187 94.6%
Loans and advances to banks (15,35,3¢) 9,038,096 11,053,202 (18.2)%
Loans and advances to customers (16,35,36) 57,902,304 48,879,806 18.5%
Impairment losses on loans and advances (17) (1,641,262) (1,103,166) 48.8%
Trading assets (18,35,3¢) 3,763,178 2,809,362 34.0%
Derivatives (19,35,36) 864,944 92,325 >500.0%
Financial investments (20,35,3¢) 5,136,607 4,133,415 24.3%
Investments in associates (21,35,3¢) 2,526 23,994 (89.5)%
Intangible fixed assets (22,24,35) 951,888 1,136,809 (16.3)%
Tangible fixed assets (23,24,35) 1,263,769 1,153,596 9.6%
Other assets (25,35,3¢) 985,075 899,275 9.5%
Total assets 85,396,985 72,742,805 17.4%

Equity and liabilities

€000 Notes 31.12.2008 31.12.2007 Change
Deposits from banks (26,35,3¢) 26,213,163 19,926,970 31.5%
Deposits from customers (27,35,3¢) 44,205,906 40,457,266 9.3%
Liabilities evidenced by paper (28,35,36) 3,393,383 2,320,428 46.2%
Provisions for liabilities and charges (29,35,36) 436,767 315,008 38.7%
Trading liabilities (30,35,36) 1,460,135 541,010 169.9%
Derivatives (31,35,36) 831,896 154,265 439.3%
Other liabilities (32,35,36) 653,073 873,954 (25.3)%
Subordinated capital (33,35,36) 1,684,456 1,531,766 10.0%
Equity (34,35) 6,518,206 6,622,138 (1.6)%

Consolidated equity 4,613,194 4,986,179 (7.5)%

Consolidated profit 981,986 841,258 16.7%

Minority interests 923,026 794,701 16.1%
Total equity and liabilities 85,396,985 72,742,805 17.4%
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Statement of changes in equi
g quity

Subscribed Capital Retained  Consolidated Minority Total
€000 capital reserves earnings profit interests
Equity as of 1.1.2007 433,719 1,426,575 943,307 1,182,126 603,856 4,589,583
Capital increases 36,287 1,183,546 - - 85,496 1,305,329
Transferred to retained
earnings - - 1,081,007 (1,081,007) - -
Dividend payments - - - (101,119) (38,216) (139,335)
Comprehensive income - - (64,535) 841,258 131,365 908,087
Own shares/share
incentive program (1,722) (21,481) - - - (23,203)
Other changes 931 (931) (30,524 - 12,200 (18,324)
Equity as of 31.12.2007 469,215 2,587,709 1,929,255 841,258 794,701 6,622,138

Subscribed Capital Retained  Consolidated Minority Total
€000 capital reserves earnings profit interests
Equity as of 1.1.2008 469,215 2,587,709 1,929,255 841,258 794,701 6,622,138
Capital increases - - - - 87,580 87,580
Transferred to retained
earnings - - 698,485 (698,485) - -
Dividend payments - - - (142,773) (46,855) (189,628)
Comprehensive income - - (943,324) 981,986 80,669 119,331
Own shares/share
incentive program (618) (19,706) - - - (20,325)
Other changes - - (107,822) - 6,932 (100,889)
Equity as of 31.12.2008 468,597 2,568,003 1,576,594 981,986 923,026 6,518,206
Further details to the above mentioned changes are reported under note (34) equity.
Other changes in equity are due to currency differences between the income statement and the
balance sheet and changes in shares in Group units.
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Comprehensive income
Group equity Minority interests
€000 31.12.2008 31.12.2007 31.12.2008 31.12.2007
Consolidated profit 981,986 841,258 96,269 132,197
Exchange differences (856,901) (160,026) (15,600) (1,194)
Capital Hedge (65,613) 103,778 - -
Cash-Flow Hedge (42,771) (7,941) - 363
Valuation result of available-for-sale financial assets 19,541 (320)
Sundry income and expenses directly recognized in
equity - (27) - -
Deferred taxes on income and expenses directly
recognized in equity 2,420 - - -
Comprehensive income 38,662 776,722 80,669 131,365
Retained earnings
ltems booked directly in retained earnings developed as follows:
Exchange Capital Cash flow Valuation of
differences hedge hedge af-s financial
€000 assets
As of 1.1.2007 (62,821) 52,833 - 316
Net changes in financial period (160,026) 103,778 (7,941) (320)
As of 31.12.2007 (222,847) 156,611 (7,941) (4)
Exchange Capital Cash-Flow Valuation of
differences Hedge Hedge a-s financial
€000 assets
As of 1.1.2008 (222,847) 156,611 (7,941) (4)
Net changes in financial period (856,901) (65,613) (42,771) 19,541
As of 31.12.2008 (1,079,748) 90,998 (50,712) 19,537
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Cash flow statement
€000 2008 2007
Profit after tax 1,078,255 973,455
Non-cash positions in profit and transition to net cash from operating activities:
Write-downs/write-ups of tangible fixed assets and financial investments 216,302 218,452
Net provisioning for liabilities and charges and impairment losses 948,903 321,236
Gains (losses) from disposals of tangible fixed assets and financial investments 2,754 2,648
Other adjustments (nef) 754,581 (322,702)
Subtotal 3,000,795 1,193,089
Changes in assets and liabilities arising from operating activities after corrections for
non-cash positions:
Loans and advances to banks and customers (11,617,659)  (20,652,322)
Trading assets/trading liabilities (net) (307,099) 119,932
Other assets/other liabilities (nef) (501,221) (578,055)
Deposits from banks and customers 10,398,098 15,046,200
Liabilities evidenced by paper 765,797 772,460
Interest received 5,800,753 4,324,635
Dividends received 2,900 1,266
Interest paid (2,626,455) (1,612,673)
Income taxes paid (117,618) (121,546)
Net cash from operating activities 4,798,291 (1,507,014)
Proceeds from sale of:
Financial investments and equity participations 1,099,311 1,883,523
Tangible and intangible fixed assets 113,988 158,099
Proceeds from disposal of group assets 8,011 31,530
Payments for purchase of:
Financial investments and equity participations (1,544,858) (1,601,710)
Tangible and intangible fixed assets (663,110) (593,179)
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries - (1,308)
Net cash from investing activities (986,658) (123,045)
Capital increases 87,580 1,305,329
Inflows/outflows of subordinated capital 152,690 115,606
Dividends paid (189,628) (139,335)
Net cash from financing activities 50,642 1,281,600
€000 2008 2007
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of previous period 3,664,187 4,063,633
Net cash from operating activities 4,798,291 (1,507,014)
Net cash from investing activities (986,658) (123,045)
Net cash from financing activities 50,642 1,281,600
Effect of exchange rate changes (396,600) (50,987)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period 7,129,860 3,664,187
MANAGEMENT REPORT SEGMENT REPORTS CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Page 120

Consolidated Financial Statement

The cash flow statement shows the structure and changes in cash and cash equivalents during the
financial year and is broken down into three sections: operating activities, investing acfivities and
financing activities.

Net cash from operating activities comprises inflows and outflows from loans and advances to banks
and customers, from deposits from banks and customers as well as liabilities evidenced by paper.
Further, inflows and outflows from trading assets and liabilities, from derivatives, as well as from other
assefs and other liabilities are shown in operating acfivities. The inferest and dividend received from
operating activities are also reflected in net cash from operating activities.

Net cash from investing activities shows inflows and outflows from financial investments, tangible and
intangible assets, proceeds from disposal of group assets, and payments for acquisition of subsidiar-
ies.

Net cash from financing activities consists of inflows and outflows of equity and subordinated capital.
This covers capital increases, dividend payments, and changes in subordinated capital.

Cash and cash equivalents include the cash reserve recognized in the balance sheet, which consists
of cash in hand and balances at central banks due at call. It does not include loans and advances to
banks that are due at call, which belong to operating activities.
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Segment reporting

Classification of segments

Raiffeisen International adopted IFRS 8 early, and it has been applied for the year 2008. Only the
segmental reporting regulations laid out in IFRS 8 have been applied to this report.

Generally, internal management reporting in Raiffeisen International is carried out based on its matrix
organizational structure. Under this organizational structure, members of the Managing Board are
responsible for both specific countries and certain business areas. The highest decision making bod-
ies, Raiffeisen International’'s Managing and Supervisory Boards, make important decisions, such as
the allocation of resources, according to geographical standpoints. The same applies to the appraisal
of financial strength and profitability, which is why this has been identified as the substantial report-
ing criterion.

Individual Central and Eastern European countries constitute the smallest Cash Generating Units —
CGU. Countfries that expect a similar longferm economic development and exhibit a similar eco-
nomic profile are grouped together as regional segments. Four regional segments have been deter-
mined in consideration of the threshold values required by IFRS 8, whereby transparent and clearly
represented reporfing is achieved. The threshold values as defined by IFRS 8 are 10 per cent of
certain parameters; these are operating income, profit after tax, and segment asses.

As of 31 December 2008 the following Group segments existed. The location of the respective

business outlets served as the criterion for segment assignment:

« Central Europe
This segment contains the five countries that joined the EU on 1 May 2004 — the Czech Republic,
Hungary, Poland, Slovakia, and Slovenia. They represent not only the most fully developed
banking markets in Central and Eastern Europe, but also the markets in which Raiffeisen
International had its earliest presence.

« Southeastern Europe
Southeastern Europe includes Albania, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Croatia, Kosovo, Moldova,
Serbia, as well as Bulgaria and Romania, which joined the EU on 1 January 2007. Moldova has
been included in this segment due fo its close economic ties to Romania and the respective
management structures within the Group.

* Russia
This segment includes the assets and performance for those companies active in the Russian
Federation on behalf of Raiffeisen International. The Group is represented in Russia by a bank, a
leasing company and a capital management company.

» Commonweadlth of Independent States (CIS) other
This segment includes Belarus, Kazakhstan and Ukraine.

The figures stated are derived from the financial statements prepared in accordance to the Interna-
tional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) that underlie the consolidated financial statements. Diver-
gence from locally published data is possible, as they may be based on different valuation regulo-
tions or differing reporting deadlines.
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Assessment of segment profit and loss

The segment reporting according to IFRS 8 shows the segment performance on the basis of internal
management reporting, supplemented with the reconciliation of the segment results to the group
results. Raiffeisen International’s management reporting is based on IFRS. Therefore, no differences
oceur in the recognition and measurement principles between segment reporting and consolidated
financial accounts.

In order to ensure a transparent and significant segment reporting, the following control and report-
ing indicators were used to evaluate the performance of a CGU.

= The return on equity before tax measures the rentability of every CGU. This figure shows the
proportion between the profit before tax and the average capital employed. Additionally, the re-
turn on equity shows the return of the capital employed in each segment. For a broad rentability
measurement, the Return on Risk Adjusted Capital Ratio (RORAC) is used within the infernal man-
agement reporting system. The figure shows the refurn of the risk adjusted equity (economic equity).
This figure is no indicator according to IFRS.

= The cost/income ratio represents the cost efficiency of the segment. The cost/income ratio shows
the proportion of the administrative expenses and the sum of interest income, net fee and commis-
sion income, net trading income and the other net operating income.

= The growth of the risk-weighted assets reflects the increase of the business volume and is an
important growth indicator. The risk-weighted assets according to Austrian Banking Act (based on
Basel Il) illustrates a sector specific addition fo the segment assets of which the own funds require-
ment of 8 per cent is based.

The presentation of segment performance is based on the income statement. Profit and loss are attrib-
uted to the country in which the profit is generated. Income positions are the net inferest income, net
fee and commission income, net trading income and the other net operating income. Additionally,
the current income from associates which are accounted at equity is stated. The material expense
positions, which are part of the segment reporting, are included in the income statement. The segment
performance is reported up to the consolidated profit. The segment assets are represented by the
balance sheet total and the risk-weighted assefs. The item liabilities includes all positions of the liabili-
ties side except the equity.

The reconciliation implies the amounts resulting from the elimination of intra-group results, the consoli-
dation between the segments and headquarters’ results. It also includes the refinancing of the partici-
pations in the holding company. Finally, financial ratios — usual in line of business — are added to
evaluate the results.
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Financial year 2008 Central Europe Southeastern Russia CIS other  Reconciliation Total
€000 Europe
Net interest income 1,024,538 946,789 763,894 532,945 (36,157) 3,232,010
of which current income from associates 919 (316) - - - 603
Provisioning for impairment losses (265,365) (159,177) (175,322) (180,969) 532 (780,301)
Net interest income after provisioning 759,173 787,612 588,572 351,976 (35,625) 2,451,709
Net fee and commission income 568,379 463,136 223,046 233,594 8,214 1,496,369
Net trading income 55,713 57,077 101,977 58,658 (105,783) 167,642
Net income from derivatives (10,929) (4,958) (7,302) (1,121) 4,390 (19,921)
Net income from financial investments 1,753 (18,923) 5,383 (13,83¢) (15) (25,638)
General administrative expenses (930,035) (772,706)  (455,870) (396,656) (77.763)  (2,633,030)
of which staff expenses (454,853) (344,411) (217,015) (208,030) (51,705) (1,276,014)
of which other administrative expenses ~ (389,498) (338,589) (211,976) (149,9006) (23,510) (1,113,480)
of which depreciation (85,684) (89,706) (26,878) (38,720) (2,548) (243,536)
Other net operating income (10,160) 23,044 (17,840) (5,150) (5,750) (15,856)
Net income from disposal of group assets 7,860 - - - - 7,860
Profit before tax 441,755 534,282 437,967 227,464 (212,333) 1,429,135
Income taxes (90,695) (84,262) (125,218) (66,564) 15,858 (350,880)
Profit after tax 351,060 450,020 312,749 160,900 (196,475) 1,078,255
Minority interests in profit (90,488) (21,456) 13,765 (10,881) 12,791 (96,269)
Consolidated profit 260,572 428,564 326,514 150,019 (183,683) 981,986
Share of profit before tax 26.9% 32.5% 26.7% 13.9% - 100.0%
Share of profit after tax 27.5% 35.3% 24.5% 12.6% - 100.0%
Risk-weighted assets (credit risk) 23,532,546 18,939,238 9,551,204 8,511,732 (147,157) 60,387,563
Own funds requirement 2,400,956 1,704,413 845,343 748,479 67,623 5,766,815
Total assets 36,316,186 25,239,486 14,952,381 8,027,668 861,264 85,396,985
Liabilities 33,909,679 22,487,774 13,381,115 7,046,516 2,053,696 78,878,779
Risk/earnings ratio 25.9% 16.8% 23.0% 34.0% - 24.1%
Cost/income ratio 56.8% 51.9% 42.6% 48.4% - 54.0%
Average equity 2,606,729 2,071,959 1,113,543 851,873 - 6,482,786
Return on equity before tax 16.9% 25.8% 39.3% 26.7% - 22.0%
Average number of staff 13,265 18,261 9,654 20,011 263 61,454
Business outlets 572 1,184 237 1,238 - 3,231
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The values for 2007 were adapted according to IFRS 8:

Financial year 2007 Central Europe Southeastern Russia CIS other Reconciliation Total
€000 Europe
Net interest income 821,029 732,026 547,265 374,119 (55,591) 2,418,849
of which current income from associates 1,813 (2,504) - - - (691)
Provisioning for impairment losses (122,306) (58,780) (119,973) (55,917) - (356,977)
Net interest income after provisioning 698,724 673,246 427,292 318,202 (55,591) 2,061,872
Net fee and commission income 470,780 384,819 195,368 197,482 1,385 1,249,835
Net trading income 56,015 47,551 42,786 4,500 (22,961) 127,891
Net income from derivatives 714 (284) (30,600) - - (30,170)
Net income from financial investments (6,591) 104 (3,278) 524 (2) (9,243)
General administrative expenses (790,941) (646,716) (364,709) (326,671) (54,983) (2,184,020)
of which staff expenses (397,189) (289,692) (183,429) (173,775) (40,763) (1,084,847)
of which other administrative expenses ~ (312,239) (283,063) (156,618) (112,555) (12,140) (876,615)
of which depreciation (81,513) (73,962) (24,661) (40,341) (2,080) (222,558)
Other net operating income 182 16,904 (7,583) (13,499) (1,082) (5,078)
Net income from disposal of group assets 23,805 - 2,711 - - 26,517
Profit before tax 452,689 475,624 261,988 180,538 (133,235) 1,237,604
Income faxes (87,519) (67,348) (63,006) (53,043) 6,767 (264,149)
Profit after tax 365,170 408,276 198,981 127,495 (126,468) 973,455
Minority interests in profit (91,062) (25,958) (646) (15,035) 504 (132,197)
Consolidated profit 274,109 382,319 198,335 112,460 (125,964) 841,258
Share of profit before tax 33.0% 34.7% 19.1% 13.2% - 100.0%
Share of profit affer tax 33.2% 37.1% 18.1% 11.6% - 100.0%
Risk-weighted assets (credit risk) 20,774,820 16,278,479 9,376,028 5,967,819 (2,594,838) 49,802,310
Own funds requirement 1,742,912 1,324,009 800,818 477,426 (28,045) 4,317,119
Total assets 28,962,370 22,605,026 12,171,401 7,365,525 1,638,483 72,742,805
Liabilities 26,910,045 20,487,100 11,012,594 6,392,495 1,318,433 66,120,667
Risk/earnings ratio 14.9% 8.0% 21.9% 14.9% - 14.8%
Cost/income ratio 58.7% 54.7% 46.9% 58.1% - 57 .6%
Average equity 2,006,552 1,572,269 905,591 576,406 - 4,810,194
Return on equity before tax 22.6% 30.3% 28.9% 31.3% - 25.7%
Average number of staff 12,079 15,043 8,516 19,681 231 55,550
Business outlets 532 973 240 1,270 - 3,015
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Notes

Reporting entity

Raiffeisen International Bank-Holding AG is a financial holding company domiciled at Am Stadipark
3, A-1030 Vienna and registered in the Companies Register at the Vienna Commercial Court (Han-
delsgericht Wien) under Companies Register number FN 122.119m. The shares have been listed on
the Prime Market of the Vienna Stock Exchange since 25 April 2005. Raiffeisen Zentralbank
Osterreich Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna, holds the majority stake in the company, totalling 70.8 per
cent of its issued share capital as of the balance sheet date.

The company also belongs to the Group of Raiffeisen-landesbanken-Holding GmbH, Vienna, which
is the ultimate parent company. This financial holding owns the majority stake in Raiffeisen Zentral-
bank Osterreich Aktiengesellschaft. Moreover Raiffeisen International is also included in the con-
solidated financial statements of Raiffeisen Zentralbank Osterreich Akfiengesellschaft.

Raiffeisen Infernational specialises in providing banking and financial services in Central and Eastern
Europe (CEE). The Group includes universal banks in 15 countries that operate a broad network of
local business outlets. Raiffeisen Infernational renders a comprehensive range of banking and finan-
cial services. These services range from account and cash management, deposittaking, lending,
trade finance, and credit card services fo mortgages and leasing. The Group’s diversified client base
comprises multinationals and large local groups, small and medium-sized enterprises, public sector
institutions, and retail customers.

These consolidated financial statements were signed by the Managing Board on 26 February 2009
and subsequently submitted to the Supervisory Board for review and approval (ascertainment).
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Principles underlying the
consolidated financial statements

Policies

The consolidated financial statements for the financial year 2008 and the comparative figures for the
financial year 2007 were prepared in accordance with the Infernational Financial Reporting Stan-
dards (IFRS) published by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the infernational
accounting standards adopted by the EU on the basis of IAS Regulation (EC) 1606,/2002 including
the inferpretations of the International Financial Reporting Inferpretations Committee (IFRIC/SIC) that
were already applicable. All standards published by the IASB to be applied to financial statements
for 2008 and adopted by the EU, have been applied.

All standards and interpretations to be applied fo financial statements 2008 have been applied. IAS
20, 1AS 31, 1AS 41, IFRS 4 and IFRS 6 are not applied as there were no relevant business transac-
tions in the Group.

The new interprefations effective since 2008 had no material effects on the recognition and meas-
urement methods of the bank: IFRIC 12 (Service Concession Arrangements), IFRIC 13 (Cusfomer
Loyalty Programmes), IFRIC 14 (IAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset Minimum, Funding
Requirements and their Inferaction), IFRIC 15 (Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate) and
IFRIC 16 (Hedging of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation).

IFRS 8 (Operating Segments) published in November 2006 by the IASB replaces IAS 14 and defines
the segment reporting on the basis of operative segments. According to IFRS 8, segments are com-
ponents of an entity. Financial information is disclosed for each segment which is controlled by the
chief operating decision maker on a regular basis (management approach). IFRS 8 has to be applied
for periods beginning on or after 1 January, 2009. But the Group applies IFRS 8 starting with the
year end 2008. In order to ensure comparability, the figures for the year 2007 were adapted and
reported according fo operating segments.

Relevant Standards and Inferpretations published but not effective have not yet been applied: The
adapted IAS 1 (Presentation of Financial Statements, effective date: periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009), I1AS 23 (Borrowing Costs; effective date: periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009), IAS 32 (Financial Instruments: Presentation; effective date: periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009), IFRS 2 (Share-based Payment; effective date: periods beginning on or after 1January
2009) and changes within the scope of the improvement project.

Due to the modified IAS 39.50, adopted by the EU in October 2008, non-derivative financial instru-
ments are permitted to be reclassified in rare circumstances from the category heldfortrading to held-
to-maturity (until 31 October 2008 also refroactively as of 1 July 2008). Because of the current finan-
cial turmoil and the fact that certain financial instruments are no longer traded, the possibility to
transfer the affected financial instruments from heldforfrading to held-fo-maturity category has been
applied.
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The consolidated financial statements are based on the reporting packages of all fully consolidated
Group members which are prepared according to uniform Group standards and IFRS rules. All fully
consolidated companies prepared their annual financial statements as of 31 December. Figures in
these financial statements are stated in thousands of euros.

A financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the
enterprise and the cost or value can be reliably measured. A financial liability is recognized when it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will result from the sefflement
of the obligation and the amount at which the setlement will take place can be measured reliably.

If estimates or assessments are necessary for the recognition and measurement according to
IAS/IFRS, they are made in accordance with the respective standards. They are based on past ex-
perience and other factors such as planning and expectations or forecasts of future events that ap-
pear likely from the current perspective. Basically, this applies fo impairment losses on loans and
advances, fair value and impairment of financial instruments, deferred taxes, provisions for refirement
and similar benefits, calculations for the recoverability of goodwill and intangible fixed assets which
are recognized in the course of business combinations. The actual figures may deviate from the
esfimated values.

Deferred taxes were not separately shown in the income statement and on the balance sheet. Defails
are provided under the appropriate headings in the notes.
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Consolidation methods

Raiffeisen International consolidates all material subsidiaries, in which Raiffeisen International Bank-
Holding AG directly or indirectly, holds either more than 50 per cent of the voting rights or otherwise
has control over the financial and operating policies. On principle, these subsidiaries are firstly inte-
grated on the date when the Group obtains control of the company and are excluded when the
group no longer has confrol of the company. Special purpose vehicles founded for securitization
transactions which are — from an economic point of view — confrolled by the Group, are integrated
according fo SIC 12.

In the case that further shares are acquired under existing control or shares are sold without loss of con-
trol, such transactions are recognized directly in equity during the course of continuing consolidation.

Material interests in associated companies — the Group exerts a significant influence on finan-
cial and operating polices of these companies — are valued at equity and reported under in-
vestments in associates. Profit or losses occurring in companies valued at equity are shown net in
current income from associates. The same rules apply fo companies valued at equity (offsetting acqui-
siion cosfs against proportional fair net asset value) as apply to fully consolidated companies. On
principle, IFRS financial statements of associated companies are used. Changes in equity of compa-
nies valued at equity are also treated in the consolidated accounts as changes in equity.

Shareholdings in subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements because of their
minor significance and shareholdings in companies which have not been valued at equity are shown
under financial investments and are measured at amortized cost.

Business combinations

In the course of capital consolidation, all identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
subsidiary are measured at their fair values on the acquisition date according to IFRS 3. The acquisi-
tion costs are offset with the proportional net assets. The resulting positive differences are capitalized
as goodwill. The goodwill is tested annually for impairment. Negative differences in the course of first
integration are recognized in the income statement.

On each balancesheet date, goodwill is examined with a view to their future economic utility on the
basis of Cash Generating Units. The Cash Generating Units are defined by the management. The
carrying value of the Cash Generating Unit (including any allocated goodwill) is compared with their
recoverable value. The recoverable value represents the higher of an item’s value in use and the fair
value less cost to sell. It is based on the expected cash flows in accordance with the business plan of
the units. They are discounted at an inferest rate reflecting the risk involved. The estimation of future
earnings requires judgement of the past and actual performance and the expected development in
the respective markets and overall macro-economic environment.

The estimation of the future development of the Cash Generating Units starts with macro-economic
facts (gross domestic product, inflation expectations) and considers specific market conditions and the
business policy. In order to better 